Board of County Commissioners
Workshop Item

Date of Meeting:  March 13, 2007

Date Submitted: March 7, 2007

To: Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board
From: Parwez Alam, County Administrator

Vincent S. Long, Deputy County Administrator

Don Lanham, Health and Human Services Director
Subject: Workshop on Leon County Primary Healthcare Program

Statement of Issue:
This workshop item presents an update on the Leon County Primary Healthcare Program as well as

presentations of the services provided by participants in the program.

Background:
Healthcare for the uninsured in Leon County has been an issue of concern for the Board since 1995.

After much community deliberation and study by the Board, the Leon County’s Primary Healthcare
Program (Program) was created on January 1, 2002. The purpose of this Program is to efficiently
provide primary healthcare to the County’s uninsured residents.

The County contracts with Bond Community Health Care Center (Bond CHC), Neighborhood Health
Services (NHS), Inc., the WeCare Network ofthe Capital Medical Society Foundation (WeCare) and
Florida A&M University, College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences (FAMU Pharmacy) for
the provision of primary care, limited specialty care and pharmacy services, respectively, for the
Primary Healthcare Program (Attachments #1 - #4). Additionally, in FY 05/06, the Board initiated a
separate three-year contract with Bond CHC for the provision of women’s and children’s heathcare
services (Attachment # 1, pages #5 — #12).

This following table demonstrates the Primary Healthcare Program payments per entity during its six
years of existence:

FY 01/02 | FY 02/03 |{FY 03/04 | FY 04/05 | FY 05/06 | FY 06/07
Bond $320,485 | $468,980 | $468,980 | $468,980 [ $679,791 $676,791
NHS $259,455 | $494,780 | $494,780 | $494,780 | $355,000 | $355,000
WeCare $60,027 $90,043 $90,043 $90,043 $90,043 $50,043
FAMU * . * * * $355,000 | $355,000
Total Payments | $639,967 | $1,053,803 $1,053,803 | $1,479,834 | $1,479,834

$1,053,803
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* During the first four years of the program, FAMU Pharmacy was reimbursed for pharmaceutical
services by Bond CHC and NHS. In FY 05/06, the PHIAB approved the unification of pharmacy
services. This unification enhances program efficiency by allowing use of a community-wide
formulary, participation in drug manufacturers’ bulk drug replacement programs, and electronic
efficiencies. The Board began contracting directly with FAMU Pharmacy in FY 05/06 and thus
reduced the annual allocations of Bond CHC and NHS accordingly.

When the Program was created in 2002, a Primary Healthcare Implementation Advisory Board
(PHIAB) was also created to review the effectiveness of the primary healthcare program and to
report their findings and recommendations for programmatic improvements to the Board on an
annual basis (Attachments #5). The current membership of the PHIAB is included as Attachment #6.

During the January 9, 2007 board meeting, the BOCC requested the providers in the Primary
Healthcare Program present an overview of the services they render to the community. The following
information was requested from the Program participants (Attachment #7).

¢ Mission of Organization

o List of Programs and Services Provided

o List of Population Served

¢ Number of Leon County Residents Served

o Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of expenses by
services/programs :

» List of staff positions associated with services/ programs

 Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit process
procedures.

¢ List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare Funding and
include statistics.

The information each provider submitted in response to this request is included for Board
consideration (Attachments #8 - #11).

Analysis:
Leon County contracts with Bond CHC and NHS to provide primary healthcare. Both clinics provide

a wide range of primary healthcare services for children and adults. The clinics accept patients by
appointment or walk-in and upon rcferral from hospital emergency departments. Bond CHC and
NHS provide social workers and case managers for patient follow-up.
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The WeCare Network of the Capital Medical Society Foundation provides limited specialty care to
participants of the County Primary Healthcare Program. WeCare relies upon the availability of
physician volunteers and as such, the availability of specialty care is limited by the capacity of
various volunteer specialists who donate their services.. Currently, WeCare reports it is at capacity in
the following medical specialties: Gynecology, Neurology, Endocrinology, and Gastroenterology.

The Florida A&M Unijversity, College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences provides
prescription drug services for the Primary Healthcare Program. Pharmacy services are supported by
FAMU. Prescription drug cost is substantially reduced by the participation of the FAMU Pharmacy
in the federal prescription drug purchasing program. The FAMU Pharmacy assists uninsured
residents with application to drug manufacturers special low-income and uninsured programs drug
assistance programs. The FAMU Pharmacy also provides educational services on appropriate drug
usage and disease management counseling.

Leon County Iealth Department (LCHD) is the final piece to the County Primary Healthcare
Program. In addition to collaborating with LCHD on various issues regarding uninsurance in the
community, LCHD performs the auditing functions for the Leon County Primary Healthcare
Program. LCHD provides quarterly quality assurance surveys at Bond CHC and NHS. LCHD
verifies patients medical records for Leon County residency status, insures that patients seen under
the County’s program are not eligible for other, more appropriate programs, performs a clinical
analysis on random samples of patient files and notifies staff of irregularities and of any failure of the
eligibility verification processes at Bond and NHS clinics.

The Program participants have been asked to present an overview of their programs and services
during today’s Board workshop. The following is the schedule for presentations:

¢ Introduction of Workshop — 5 minutes

e Presentation by Bond CHC — 15 minutes

» Presentation by NHS — 15 minutes

¢ Presentation by WeCare — 15 minutes

e Presentation by FAMU Pharmacy - 15 minutes

s Presentation of Audit Findings by LCHD — 15 minutes |

e Board deliberation

As reported in the PHIAB's 2004/2005 Annual Report, the County’s primary healthcare program
continues to be a sound investment, returning $5.33 in community benefits for each $1 of County tax
revenue expended. There were 7,988 Leon County citizens receiving primary or specialty care for
FY 04-05, which is 177% of the original targeted number of 4,500. The average cost per patient/per
yéar was $131.75, a reduction of $15.00 from the FY 03-04 cost of $146.55 per patient/per year. In
cooperation with the FAMU School of Pharmacy, 58,540 prescriptions were filled with a value of
$2,500,829. Finally, a total of 176 hospital inpatient admissions were avoided for FY 04-05,
resulting in a cost-avoidance of $1,061,205 (Attachment # 12).
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Optigons:

1. Accept report and provider presentations on the Primary Healthcare Program.
2. Do not accept report and provider presentations on the Primary Healthcare Program.
3. Board direction

Recommendation:

Option #1

Attachments:

1. Bond Community licalth Center Contract FY 06/07
2. Neighborhood Health Services Contract FY 06/07
3. WeCare Contract FY 06/07

4. Florida A&M University College of Pharmacy Contract FY 06/07
5. Resolution No. R01-50

6. Primary Healthcare Advisory Board Membership
7. Letters from the County Administrator

8. Bond Community Health Center Presentation

9. Neighborhood Health Services Presentation

10. WeCare Presentation
11. Florida A&M University College of Pharmacy Presentation
12. PHIAB Annual Report for FY 2004/2005

PA/VSL/DL/FP
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EON COUNTY
DivISION OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

PRIMARY HEALTHCARE PROGRAM
STANDARD CONTRACT — AMENOMENT #1

This CONTRACT ic entered into between Leon County hereinafier referred to as the County and Bond Community Health Center., hereinafier refenec
as the provider.
Tue PARTIES AGREE:

L THE PROVIDER AGREES!
A To provide services in accordance with the conditions specified in Attachment L.

B. Requirements of §287.058, Florida Statutes {FS)

To provide units of defiverables, including reports, findings, and drafts as spedified in Attachment |, to be received and accepted by the contract man
priof 1o payment. To comply with the criteria and final date by which such criteria must be mel for completion of this contracl as specified in Sectic
Paragraph A of this contract. To submit bills for fees or other compensation for services o expenses in sufficent detail for a proper pre-audit
post-audit thereof. To allow public access lo all documents, papers, letters, or other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, FS, mat
received by the provider in conjunction with this contract. If Is expressly understood that the provider's refusal to comply with this provision
constitule an immediate breach of contract.

C. To the Following Governing Law

1. Siate of Florida Law
This contrad! is executed and entered inte in the State of Florida, and shall be construed, performed, and enforced in all respects in accord
with the laws, rules, and regulations of the State of Fiorida. Each party shall perform its obligations herein in accordance with the terms
conditions of the contract.

2. Federal Law

Ii this contract contains federal funds, the provider shall comply with the provisions of 45 CFR, Part 74, andior 45 CFR, Part 92, and

applicable regutations as specified in Atlachment .

b. I this contract contains federal funds and is over $100.000, the provider shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations e

under §306 of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1857(h} et seq.}, §508 of the Clean Water Act, as amended (33 U.5.C, 1365 el :

Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Pari 15). The provider shall report any violations of the abg

the department.

If this contract contains federal funding in excess of $100,000, the provider mus\, prior to contracl execution, complete the Certification Regs

Lobbying form, Attachment NA. If a Disclosure of Lobbying Activities form, Standard Form LLL, is requited, it may be obtained trom the co

manager. All disclosure forms as required by the Certification Regarding Lobbying form must be completed and retumed 1o the contract mana:

d. MNot to employ unauthorized aliens. The department shall consider employment of unauthorized aliens 2 violation of §§274A(e) of the Immig
and Naturalization Adl. Such violation shall be cause for unilateral canceliation of this contract by the department.

e. The provider and any subcontraclors agree to comply with Pro-Children Act of 1994, Public Law 103-277, which requires that smoking
permitled in any portion of any indaor fadility used for the provision of federally funded services including health, day care, early chik
development, education or library services on a routine or regular basis, to children up to age 18. Failure to comply with the provisions of @
may result in the imposition of civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance
on the responsible entity.

f. HIPAA: Where applicable, the provider will comply with the Health Insurance Porlability Accountability Act as well as all regulations promu
thereunder (45CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164).

D. Audits, Records, and Records Retention .

1. To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic storage media) in accordance with generally accepted acco
procedures and praclices, which sufficiently and properly refiect all revenues and expenditures of funds provided by the department und:
contract

2. To retain all client records, finandial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and any other documents (inciuding electronic §
redia) pertinent to this contract for a period of six (6) years afler termination of the contract, or if an audit has been initiated and audit finding:
not been resolved at the end of six (6) years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the audil findings or any litigation which may be
on the terms of this contract.

3. Upon completion of termination of the contract and at the request of the department, the provider will cooperate with the depariment 10 fadilitz
duplication and transler of any said records or documents during the required retention period as specified in Section |, paragraph D.2. above

4. To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or awdil by Federal, stale, or other personn
authorized by the department.

5. Persons duly authorized by the department and Federal suditors, pursuant to 45 CFR, Part 92.36(iX10), shall have full access to and the
examine -
any of provider's contract and related records and documents, regardiess of the form in which kept, at gll reasonable times for as long as 1

are retained.
6. To provide a financial and compliance audit 10 the department as specified in Attachment _1I and to ensure that all related party trans

are disclosed to the auditor, ‘
7. Yo incude these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all approved subcontracts and assignments.

E. Moniloring by the Departrment

To permil persons duly authorized by the depariment 1o inspect any records, papers, documents, fadlities, goods, and services of the provides
are relevan to this contract, and interview any clients and employees of the provider to assure the department of satisfactory performance of th
and conditions of this contract. Following such evaluation the department will deliver 1o the provider a writlen report of its findings and will indude
recommendations with regard to the provider's performance of the terms and conditions of this contract. The provider will correct all noted defic
identified by the department within the specified period of ime set forth in the recommendalions. The provider's failure 10 cored noted deficienci
st the sole and exdusive discretion of the depariment, result in any one or any combination of the following: (1} the provider being deemed in br
default of this contiact: (2) the withholding of payments to the provider by the depantment; and (3) the termination of this contrad! for cause.

1 ‘ Provider Contract
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F. Indemnification

1. The provider shali be liable for and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the depaniment and ali of its officers, agents, and employees fror
claims, suits, judgments, or damages, consequential or ctherwise and including attormneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any adt, aclions, neglec
omissions by the provider, ils agents, or employees during the performance or operation of this contract or any subsequenl modifications then
whether direct or indirecl, and whether to any person or langible or intangible property.

2. The providers inability 1o evaluale liability or its evaluation of liability shall not excuse the provider's duty to defend and indemnify within sevex
days sfier such notice by the depariment is given by cerlified mafi. Only adjudication, or judgment afier highest appeal is exhausied specifi
finding the provider not lizble shall excuse perfformance of this provision. The provider shall pay sll costs and fees related to this obligation an
enforcement by the depariment. The depariment’s failure to notify the provider of a claim shall not release the provider of the above duty to det

G. Insurance
To provide adequate kability insurance coverage on a comprehensive basis and to hold such liability insurance at all imes during the existence of this cor
and any renewal(s) and extension(s) of it Lipon execution of this contract, the provider accepts full responsibility for identifying and delermining the type(s;
extent of Eability insurance necessary to provide reasonable finandal prolections for the provider and the dients 1o be served under this contracl. Upon
execution of this contract, the provider shall fumish the depanment writien verification supporting both the determination and existence of such insur
coverage. Such coverage may be provided by a seff-insurance program established and operating under the laws of the Stele of Florida. The depart
reserves the right o require additional insurance as speciied in Attachment | where appropriate.

H. Safeguarding Information _

Nol to use or disclose any information conceming a recipient of services under this contract for any purpose not in conformity with state and federz

of regulations except upon written consent of the recipient, or his responsible parent or guardian when authorized by law.

L. Assignments and Subcontracts

1. To neither assign the responsibility of this contract to znother parly nor subcontract for any of the work conlemplated under this contract wi
prior wiitien approval of the department, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any sublicense, assignment, or transfer otherwise occy
shall be null and void.

2.  The provider shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incumred with the project. i the departmenl pennits the provid
subcontract all o pan of the work contemplated under this contract, indluding entering into subcontracts with venders for services and commaox
it is understood by the provider that the department shall not be liable to the subcontraclor for any expenses of liabilities incurred unde
subcontract and the provider shall be solety liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incumed under the subcontract. The pror
at its expense, will defend the departiment against such claims.

3. Leon County shall at all mes be entited to assign or transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this contract to another govemmental agency in
County Government, upon giving prior written notice 10 the provider. In the event Leon County approves transier of the provider’s obligations, the pn
rermnains responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurmed in connection with the contract. In addition, this contract shall bind the succe
assigns, and legal representatives of the provider and of any legat entity that succeeds to the obligations of Leon County, Florida. :

4. Unless othernise stated in the contrac! between the provider and subcontractor, payments made by the provider 1o the subcontraciorn must be within
(7) working days after receipt of full or partial paymerts from the depariment in accordance with §§287.0585, FS. Failure 1o pay within seven (7} workine
will resutt in a penstty charged against the provider and paid 1o the subcontracior in the amount of one-hall of one (1) percent of the amount due per day fre
expiration of the period aflowed herein for payment. Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed and shall not exceed fifieen (15) percert

‘ outstanding balance due.

J. Retum of Funds

To retum 10 the department any overpayments due to uneamed funds or funds disaliowed pursuant 1o the terms of this contract that were disbursed

provider by the department. In the event that the provider or its independent auditor discovers that overpayment has been made, the provider shall repa

overpayment within 40 calendar days without prior notification from the department. In the event that the department first discovers an overpayment has
made, the department will notify the provider by letter of such a finding. Should repayment not be made in a fimely manner, the department will charge inte
one (1} percent per month compounded on the outstanding balance afier 40 calendar days afier the date of notification or discovery.

K. Incident Reporting

Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Reporting

In compliance with Chapter 415, FS, an employee of the provider who knows or has reasonable cause to suspect that 2 child, aged person, or disabled adult is

been abused, neglected, or exploited shall imruediately repont such knowledge or suspicion 1o the Florida Abuse Hotline on the single statewide toll-free 1ol

number {1-800-26ABUSE).

L. Civil Rights Reguirements ‘

Civil Rights Cerlification: The provider will comply with applicable provisions of the State of Florida Depariment of Health publication, "Metk
Administration, Equal Opportunity in Service Delivery.”

M. Independent Capacity of the Contractor :

1.  Inthe performance of this contract, it Is agreed between the parties thal the provider is an independent contraclor and that the provider is solely fable
performance of all tasks conternplated by this contract, which are nol the exdusive responsibility of the department

2. The provider, its officers, agents, employees, subcontraclors, of assignees, in performance of this contract, shall adt in the capacity of an indeg
contracior and not as an officer, employee, or agenl of the Leon County, Florida nor shall the provider represent to others that it has the authority to &
department unless spedifically authorized to do so.

3.  Neither the provider, its officers, agents, employees, subcontraciors, nor assignees are entiied to county retirement or county leave benefits, or o ar
compensation of county employment as a result of performing the duties and obligabions of this contract.

4. The provider agrees o take such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each subconbacior of the provider will be deemed to be an indeg
contracior and will not be considered or permitted to be an agent, servant, joint venturer, or partner of Leon County, Florida.

5 Unless justified by the provider and agreed 10 by the department In Attachment |, the department is not responsible for services of supporl (e.c
space, office supplies, telephone service, secretarial, o derical supporl} to the provider, or its subcontraclor of assignee.

6. Al deductions for social security, withholding taxes, income taxes, contributions to unemployment compensation funds, and all necessary insurance
provider, the provider's officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or assignees shall be the responsibilty of the provider.

N. Sponsorship

If the provider is 2 non-govenmental organization which sponsors a program financed wholly of in part by county funds, including any funds obtained thro

corrad, I shall, in publicizing, adverising, or descibing the sponsorship of the program, state: Sponsored by (provider's name) and Board of

Commissioners with County Logo, H the sponsorship reference Is in writlen material, the words, Board of County Commissioners, Leon County and cou

shall appear in the same size letters or type as the name of the organization.
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Q. Final Invoice

To submit the final invoice for payment o the department no more than 45 days after the contract ends or is terminated. i the provider falls to do so, all gt
payment is forfeiled and the department will not honor any requests submitled afier the aloresaid time period. Any payment due under the temms of this cony
may be withheld until all reports due from the provider and necessary adjustments therelo have been approved by the departiment.

P. Use of Funds for Lobbying Prohibited

To comply with the provisions of §216.347, FS, which prohibil the expendiure of contract funds for the purpose of kebbying the Legistature, judicial branch, or a 1

agency.

Q. Patents, Copyrights, and Royalties

1. ¥ any discovery or invention arises or is developed in the course or as a resull of work of senvices performed under this contract, o in anyway conne
herewith, the
provider shall refer the discovery or invention to the department 10 be referred 1o the Department of State to detenmine whether patert protection vw
sought in the name of Leon County, Florida. Any and all patent rights accruing under or in connection with the pedformance of this contract are he
reserved to Leon County, Florida.

2. Inthe evenl that any books, manuals, films, of other copyrightable materials are produced, the provider shall notify the Depariment . Aty and all copyrigl
aceruing under or in connection with the performance under this confract are hereby reserved to Leon County, Florida.

3. The provider, without exception, shall indemnify and save hammless Leon County and its employees from Eabfiity of ary nature or kind, including cost
expenses for or on account of any copyrighled, patented, or unpatented invention, process, or artide manufactured by the provider. Leon Count
provide prompt wiitten notification of daim of copyright or patent infringement. Further, if such daim s made or s pending, the provider may, alits ©
ard expense, procure for Leon County, the right to continue use of, replace, or modify the arlicle 1o render H non-infringing. If the provider uses any de
device, or matenals covered by letlers, patent, or copyright, it is mutually agreed and understood without exception that the bid prices shall indu
royalies or cost arising from the use of such design, device. or materials in any way involved in the work.

R. Construction or Renovation of Facilities Using County Funds
Any county funds provided for the purchase of or improvements 1o real property are contingent upon the provider granting ¢ the county a sex
interest in the property at least 1o the amount of the county funds provided for al least (5} years from the date of purchase or the completion ¢
improvements of as further required by law. As a condition of a receipt of county funding for this purpose, the provider agrees that, if it dispos
the property before the department's intetest is vacated, the provider will refund the proportionate share of the county’s initial investmer
adjusted by depreciation.

S. Infosmation Security
The provider shall maintain confidentiality of all data, files, and records including client secords related 1o the services provided pursuant
agreement and shall comply with state and federal laws, including, but not limited 1o, sections 384.29, 381.004, 392.65, and 456.057, &
Statutes. Procedures must be implemented by the provider 10 ensure the protection and confidentiality of all confidential matters. 1
procedures shall be consisient with Leon County Information Security Policies, as amended, which is incorporated herein by reference an
receipt of which is acknowiedged by the provider, upon execution of this agreement. The provider will adhere 10 any amendments 1t
depariment’s security requirements provided to it during the pericd of this agreement. The provider must also comply with any appli
professional standards of practice with respect 1o dient confidentiality.

Il. The County Agrees:

A Contract Amount

The lotal contract amount is $329,380.00. $43.755 of the contracd amount shali be remitted to the Agency for Health Care Administration as €

match in order to draw down Medicaid Lower Income Pool funding on the provider's behalf. The remainder of the contradt shall fund contracled se

according to the conditons of Attachment | to this Agreement in an amount of $80.00 per patient visit not lo exceed a total of $285,625.00 subject
availability of funds. Leon County’s performance and cbligation to pay under this contradt is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Board of €

Commissioners. The costs of services paid under any other contrad or from any other source are not eligible for reimbursement under this contract.

B. Contract Payment

Invoice payment requirements do not start until 3 property compleled invoice is provided.

Bl. The Provider and the County Murtually Agree

A. Effective and Ending Dates

This contradt shall begin on October 1, 2006, and shall end on September 30, 2007.

B. Termination

1.  Termination at Vil

This contract may be terminaled by either party upon no less than thirty (30} calendar days notice in writing to the other party, without cause, unless a less
is mutually agreed upon in wiiting by both parties. Said notice shall be delivered by certified mall, retum receipt requested, of in person with proof of defiven
2.  Temmination Because of Lack of Funds

In the everdt funds 1o finance this cuntract become unavailable, the department may terminate the contract upon N less than twenty-four (24) hours
wiiting to the provider. Said notice shall be delivered by cerfified mail, retum receipt requested, or in person with prodf of delivery. The depariment shall
final authority as lo the availability and adequacy of funds. In the event of termination of this contract, the provider will be compensaled for any work satis!
completed prior to notification of termination.

3. Temmination for Breach .

This contract may be terminated for the provider's non-performance upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice in wiiting o the provider. If appiica
depanment may empioy the defaull provisions in Chapter 60A-1.006 (3), FAC. Waiver of treach of any provisions of this contract shall not be deemed
waiver of any other breach and shall not be construed 1o be a2 modification of the tenms of this contracl The provisions herein do not limit he department’s
remedies al law of in equity.

4. Temination for Failure to Satisfactority Perform Prior Agreement

Failure to have performed any contractual obligations with the department in a manner satisfaciory 1o the department will be a sufficient cause for termina
be lerminated as a provider under this provision, the provider must have: (1) previousty faited 10 satisfactorily perform in a contract with the county, been
by the county of the unsatistaciory performance, and falled to comed the unsatisfactory performance to the satisfacton of the county; or {2) had a «
terminated by the county for cause.
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C. Renegotiation or Modification

Modifications of provisions of this contract shall only be valid when they have been reduced lo wiiting and duly signed by both paries. The rate of payment
doflar amount may be adjusted retroactively to refiect price level ineases and changes in the rate of payment when these have been established through
county budgeting process and subsequently identified in the department’s operating budget. )

D. Otficial Payee and Representatives (Names, Addresses and Telephone Numbers)

1. The name (provider name as shown on page 1 of this contract} and mailing 3. The name, address, and lelephone number of the contract mank
address of the official payee o whom the payment shall be made is: for the County for this contract is:
Bond Community Health Center Frederick L. Pearson Jr., Human Services Anatyst
710 W. Orange Ave, Division of Health and Human Services
Tallahassee, Florida 32310 918 Railroad Avenue
Tallahassee, Flonda 32310
2. The name of the contact person and streel address where finandial 4. The name, address, and telephone number of the provi
and administrative records are maintained ks ~ representative responsible for administration of the program u
Borxd Community Health Center this contradt is: )
Bond Community Health Center

710 W. Orange Ave.

Tallshasseg, Florida 32310

710 W. Orange Ave.
Tallahassee, Florida 32310 (850) 5764073

6. Upon change of representatives (names, addresses, telephone numbers) by cither party, notice shall be provided in wiiting to the other party and
notification attached to onginals of this contract.

E. All Terms and Conditions Included

This contract and its eftachments as referenced, Attachments E& lland Exhibits 1, AB C D E &F

contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the paries. There are no provisions, tenms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein

this contract shall supersede all previous commurications, representations, of agreements, either verbal or writlen between the parties. i any term or provisi

the contract is found 1o be illegat or unenforceable, the remainder of the contrect shall remain in full force and cffect and such tenm or provision shall be strick:

I have read the above contract and understand each section and paragraph.

Provider: Bbw //7 (‘(_?2/ %/ D€
/o

Signed by: 7

Namez/j’- R RiecHARY =
Title: é ga

ome: D/ L/2 6
Federal EID# 54;‘7};%]7

LEON COUNTY, FL\(J)LODA
BY: M
C.E. DePuy, Jr., Chii)fian’

Board of County Commissioners

/ - 7
r 7/
Approved as te Form:
Leon CountyAttorney’s Office

Herbert W.A. Thicle, Esq.
County Atlorney
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County Primary Healthcare Contract with Bond Community Health Center,
Tnc. for Women’s and Children’s Healthcare Services

This Agreement dated this 20th day of September, 2005, by and between LEON COUNTY,
FLORIDA, a charter county and political subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafier referred to
as the “County” and Bond Community Health Center, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor.”

WHEREAS, the Board has identified the need to further the provision of primary and
specialized healthcare services 1o the citizens of our community; Services to include basic diagnostic
procedures and drug or other therapeutic modalities ordered or provided by the care practitioner in
the course of treating the patient, along with ambulatory care, preventive health services and
continuing management of the healthcare needs of registered clients; and

WHEREAS, the CareNet group of providers, including Neighborhood Health Services, Bond
Community Health Center, Inc., the Capital Medical Society, the FAMU College of Pharmacy,
Tallahassee Memorial Healthcare, Tallahassee Community Hospital and Leon County Health
Department have provided primary and specialty healthcare services to the citizens of Leon County
in a coordinated fashion for a number of years; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a great need for women’s and children’s
healthcare in our community exists above the curmrent level of services offered by the CareNet

partners at their current levels of funding and participation; and

WHEREAS, the Board has found it in the best interest of Leon County to dedicate funding
for the expansion of the existing CareNet program to service the community’s additional need for
women’s and children’s healthcare services, and

WHEREAS, the CareNet group of providers have agreed to work cooperatively with the
Board to meet that additional community need for women’s and children’s healthcare services,

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1: Clients To Be Served

The Contractor hereby agrees to serve the following residents of the County in accordance with the
following: '

1. Eligibility for services under this contract shall be limited to those residents of Leon
County with net incomes less than 200% of the most current federal poverty levels
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget, who seek women’s and
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children’s medical care and who, initially, have no health insurance. Residents with net
incomes between 100 and 200% federal poverty level shall be charged a sliding scale

rate,

No fees of any kind shall be collected for registered comprehensive healthcare clients
who are below 100% of the most current federal poverty levels.

Clients who are not currently receiving Medicaid or Healthy Kids, or any other state or
federal program, and who appear 10 meet the income and categorical eligibility
requirements of Medicaid or Healthy Kids, should be strongly encouraged to pursue

obtaining eligibility for those programs.

The contractor will determine eligibility for enrollment into primary and specialty care.
Eligibility will be determined at least annually. A client shall be allowed, however, to
request determination of eligibility afier submitting verified confirmation of changes to

his\her income.

The contractor will abide by Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPPA) policies and procedures established for the Primary Health Care Program as
related to the processing of client’s medical information of the women’s and children’s

healtheare program.

Services to be offered by the Contractor:

1.

Section 3

The Contractor shall provide women’s and children’s specialty healthcare services to
qualifying recipients.

Reporis to be performed by Contractor:

1.

. The Contractor must submit a monthly invoice (Exhibit A) to the County on or before the

15" day of the month. The invoice shall be sent to the following address to the attention
of the "Uninsured Healthcare Program Administrator”

Leon County Health and
Human Services Division
918 Railroad Ave.
Tallahassee, FI. 32301

The Contractor must submit the required attachments as designated in the monthly
invoice (please see Attachment A). These attachments shall at a minimum contain the
following information: ‘
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A) A comprehensive list of all clients registered during the month to include
the unique client identification number and program start date.

B) Number of total patients (seen-by contractor entirely) and total patient
encounters per month, - :

C) Number of new and existing Women’s Health program patients and
number of new and existing Women’s Health program patient encounters
per month.

D) Total amount of sliding scale fee revenues collected specifying the

number of patients from which it was collected. .

3. The Contractor shall provide a Client Satisfaction Survey to randomly sample a

minimum of 20 women’s and children’s care clients seen during cach quarter of the

~ contract period. This survey shal be similar to the one delineated in the contract between

the Leon County Health Departiment and the contractor (Please See Attachmem B).

Completed forms shall be forwarded to the county contract manager, as par of the
Quarterly Progress Report.

4, Annually, the Contractor shall submit a final report that provides a detailed summary of
all expenditures utilizing the funds from this contract. The annual report shall include a
comprehensive detail of the amount of new women and children patients as compared to
overall patients served by the Contractor and the types of service performed in the
reporting year. The report will also compare the current period against measures from
pIEVious years.

" Section 4: Audits. Records, and Records Retention:

The Contractor agrees:

1. To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic storage
media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and practices,
which sufficiently and properly reflect all revenues and expenditures of funds provided
by the County under this contract.

2. To retain all client records, financial records, time sheets, supporting documents,
statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media)
pertinent to this contract for a period of five (5) years afier termination of the contract, or
if an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of five
(5) years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings or any
litigation which may be based on the terms of this contract.

3. Upon completion or termination of the contract and at the request of the County, the
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Contractor will cooperate with the County to facilitate the duplication and transfer of any
said records or documents during the required retention period as specified in paragraph

1 above.
4. To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review,
or audit by Federal, state, or other perscnnel duly autherized by the County subject to

HIPPA.
5. Persons duly authorized by the County and Federal auditors, pursuant to 45 CFR, Part

92.36(1)(10), shall have full access to and the right to examine any of provider’s centract
and related records and documents, regardless of the form in which kept, at all reasonable
times for as long as the records are retained.

6. To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all approved
subcontracts and assignments.

Section 5: Monitoring:

The Contraclor agrees:

1. To permit persons duly avthorized by the County to inspect any records, papers,
documenits, facilities, goods, and services of the provider which are relevant to this
contract, and interview any clients and employees of the provider to assure the County of
satisfactory performance of the terms and conditions of this contract,

2. Following such evaluation, the County will deliver to the provider a writien report of its
findings and will include written recommendations with regard to the provider's
performance of the terms and conditions of this contract. The Contractor will correct all
noted deficiencies identified by the County within the specified period of time set forth in
the recommendations. The Contractor’s failure to correct noted deficiencies may, at the
sole and exclusive direction of the County, result in any one or any combination of the
following: (a) the provider being deemed in breach or default of this contract; (b) the
withholding of payments to the Contractor by the County; and (c) the termination of this
contract for cause.

Section 6: Payment:

1. Payment shall be made by the County upon receipt of valid invoice by Contractor at a
monthly rate equal to no more than one thirty-sixth (1/36) of the following total contractual
amount: $1,051,233.00 for a period of thirty six (36) months. The contractual amounts
which follow are based upon the following line items for a twelve months period.
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Women's and Children’s Health Care Services:
OB/GYN Physician (12 Hrs / Wk) @ $180 per Hour: §$112,320

Pediatrician (2 days/ wk) @ $110 per Hour: $91,520
1OFTELPN $ 30,000
1.0 FTE Prenatal Case Manager $ 30,000
1.0 FTE Community Liaison/Outreach Person $27,000

On Call Coverage $ 59,571
The specialty physicians contracted hereunder shall have admitting privileges at
Tallahassee Memorial Hospital and/or Capital Regional Medical Center, or both, and
shall have back-up coverage.

2. The payment shall be made by the County within 30 days of receipt and approval by the
County of a monthly invoice (Exhibit A). The monthly invoice is to be completed and

submitted by the Contractor 1o the County.

3. No Jine item (as identified in paragraph 1 above) payment shall be made until such time
as the siaff members identified in Section 6 of this contract are hired by the Contractor.
Similarly, no payment shall be made if the required monthly reports, as delineated in
Section 3 of this contract, are not attached to the monthly invoice appropriately.

Section 7: Sliding Scale Fees:

Sliding scale fees shall be charged to qualifying patients who are above 100% and at or below 200%
of federal poverty levels. ,

Section 8: Term:

The length of this contract shall be for a term of thirty-six (36) months beginning on October 1, 2005
and ending on September 30, 2008.

Section 9: Hold Harmless:

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County from all claims, damages,
liabilities, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because of, or due 1o the breach of this
agreement by Contractor, its delegates, agents or employees, or due 1o any act or occurrence of
omission or commission of the Contractor, including but not limited 1o costs and a reasonable
attorney’s fee. The County may, at its sole option, defend itself or allow the Contractor to provide
the defense. The Contractor acknowledges that ten dollars ($10.00) of the amount paid to the
Contractor is sufficient consideration for the Contractor's indemnification of the County.

Section 10: Termination
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1. The County may terminate this contract without cause, by giving the Contractor thirty
(30) days written notice of termination. Either party may terminate this contract for
cause by giving the other party hereto thirty (30) days writien notice of termination. The
County shall not be required to give the Contractor such thirty (30) day written notice if,
in the opinion of the County, the Contractor is unable 10 perform its obligations
hereunder, or if in the County's opinion, the services being provided are not satisfactory.
In such case, the County may immediately terminate the Contract by mailing a notice of
termination to the Contractor.

2. Termination with cause shall include but not be limited to the discovery of improper or
inappropriate accounting, expenditures, reporting or service delivery by the contractor or
due to the discovery of noncompliance with any item detailed within the sections of this

contract.

Section 11: Revisions

In any case where, in fulfilling the requirements of this contract or of any guarantee, embraced inor
required thereby it is necessary for the Contractor to deviate from the requirements of the contract,
Contractor shall obtain the prior written consent of the County. The parties agree 10 renegotiate this
contract if revision of any applicable laws or regulations make changes in this contract necessary.

Section 12: Construction

The validity, construction, and effect of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida. —

Section 13: Budget

The performance of Leon County of any of its obligations under the purchase order or agreement
shall be subject to and contingent upon the availability of funds lawfully expendable for the purposes
of the purchase order or agreement for the current and any future periods provided for within the bid
specifications.

Section 14: Status

The Contractor at all times relevant to this Agreement shall be an independent contractor and inno
event shall the Contractor nor any employees or sub-contractors under it be considered 10 be
employees of Leon County.

Section 15: Assignments
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Section 15: Assignments

This Contract shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the written consent of the
County nor shall the contractor assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the

previous written consent of the County.

Sectjion 16: Public Entity Crimes Statement

In accordance with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, Contractor hereby cerlifies that to the best of
his knowledge and belief neither Contractor nor his affiliates has been convicted of a public entity
crime. Contractor and his affiliates shall provide the County with a completed public entity crime
statemnent form no Jater than January 15 of each year this agreement is in effect. Violation of this
section by the Contractor shall be grounds for cancellation of this agreement by Leon County.

Section 17: Contractor’s Responsibility

It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to comply with all applicable Federal, State,
County and City, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of the Contractor’s

obligations under this agreement.

WHERETO, the parties have set their hands.

CONTRA
BOND C@}

BY: / /
Ti;i;é; C
gATE: f
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ATTEST: ‘ 4 (O
BOB INZER, CLERK OF COURT
LEQN COU , FLORIDA

By: A ’\//'
/-

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
LEON COUNTY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

By:

Herbert W. A, Thiele, Esq.
County Attorney

Attachments:
Attachment A

"~ Attachment B

e ——————

haell, Chairman
Board of County Commissioners

DATE: ;/ 212/ 75
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DIvISION OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 1

PRIMARY HEALTHCARE PROGRAM
STANDARD CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is entered into between Leon County hereinafter referred to as the County and Neighborhood Health Services, inc., hereinafter referred
to as the provider.
THE PARTIES AGREE!

I. THE PROVIOER AGREES:
A To provide services in accordance with the conditions specified in Attachment |,

B. Reguirements of §287.058, Florida Statutes (FS)
To provide units of deliverables, including reports, findings, and drafls as spedified in Attachment 1, 1o be received and accepted by the contracl manager
pricr 1o payment. To comply with the criteria and final date by which such criteria must be met for completion of this contract as specified in Section i,

. Paragraph A. of this contract. To submit Lills for fees or other compensation for services or expenses in sufficient detail for a proper pre-audit and
post-audit thereof. To allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, of vther materials subject to the provisions of Chapler 118, FS, made or
received by the provider in conjunclion with this contract. It is expressly understood thal the provider's refusal to comply with this provision shall
constitute an immediate breach of contract. :

C. To the Following Govemning Law

1. State of Florida Law
This contract is executed and entered into in the State of Florida, and shall be construed, performed, and enforced in all respects in accordance
with the laws, rules, and regulations of the State of Fiorida. Each party shall perform its obligations herein in accordance with the terms and

. conditions of the contracL i

2. Federal Law

If this contract conlains federal funds, the provider shall comply with the provisions of 45 CFR, Parl 74, andlor 45 CFR, Part 92, and other

applicable regulations as specified in Attachment |.

b. I -this contract contains federal funds and is over §1 00,000, the provider shall comply with alt applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued
under §306 of the Clean Air Acl, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1857(h) et seq.), §508 of the Clean ¥Water Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1368 et 5eq.),
Executive Order 11738, and Enviropnmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15). The provider shall report any viclations of the above o
the department.

c. If this contract contains federal funding in excess of $100,000, the provider must, prior to conltract execution, complete the Ceriification Regarding
Lobbying form, Attachment NA. If a Disclosure of Lobbying Aclivities form, Standard Form LLL, is required, it may be obtained from the contract
manager. All disclosure forms as required by the Certification Regarding Lobbying form must be compieted and retumed 10 the contract manager.

d. Not to employ unauthorized aliens. The department shal consider employment of unauthorized aliens a viclaton of §§274A(e) of the Immigration

and Naturalization Adl. Such violation shall be cause for unilateral canceliation of this contract by the depariment.

The provider and any subtontraclors agree lo comply with Pro-Children Act of 1994, Public Law 103-277, which requires that smoking not be

permitted in any portion of any indoor facility used for the provision of federally funded services including health, day care, early childhooc

development, education or library services on a routine or regular basis, to chiidren up 1o age 18. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law
may resull in the imposition of civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an adminisirative compliance orde:
on the responsible entity.

f. -HIPAA: Where applicable, the provider will comply with the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Acl as well as all regulations promulgatec
thereunder (45CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164).

D. Audits, Records, and Records Retention

1. To establish and maintain books, records, and documents {including electronic storage media} in accordance with generally accepted accountiry
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all revenues and expenditures of funds provided by the department under thi:
conact. ‘

2. To relain alt client records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storag
media) pertinent to this contract for a period of six {6} years after termination of the contract, or f an audit has been initiated and audit findings hav
not been resolved al the end of six (6) years, the records shall be retained untll resolution of the audit findings or any fitigation which may be hase
on the terms of this contract

3. ‘Upon completion of termination of the contract and at the request of the department, the provider will cooperale with the department to facilitate th
duplication and transfer of any said records or documents during the required retention period as specified in Section |, paragraph D.2. above.

4. To assure that these records shall be subject al all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audil by Federal, slate, or other personnel du
authorized by the depariment. :

5. Persons duly authorized by the department and Eederal auditors, pursuant lo 45 CFR, Parl 92.36{i}10), shall have full access to and the right *

examing
any of provider's contract and relaled records and documents, regardless of the form in which kept, at all reasonable times for as long as recon

are retained. '
6. To provide a financial and compliance audit to the depariment as specified in Attachment _II and to ensure that all relsted party transaction

are disclosed to the auditor.
7. To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all approved subcontracts and assignments.

E. Monitoring by the Department '

To permit persons duly authorized by the department to inspect any records, papers, documents, facilities, goods, ard services of the provider, whi
are relevant 1o this contract, and interview any clients and employees of the provider to assure the depariment of satisfactory performance of the terr
and conditions of this contracl. Following such evaluation the department will deliver 1o the provider a written report of its findings and will include writt
recommendations with regard fo the provider's performance of the terms and conditions of this contract, The provider will comrect all noted deficienci
identified by the department within the specified period of time set forth in the recommendations. The provider's failure to correct noted deficiencies my
al the sole and exclusive discretion of the department, result in any one or any combination of the following: {1) the provider being deemed in breach
defautt of this contract; (2) the withholding of payments 1o the provider by the department; and (3) the termination of this contract for cause.

1 Provider Contract
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F. Indemnification )

1. The provider shall be liable for and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the department and all of its officers, agents, and employees from aHl
claims, suits, judgments, or damages, consequential or atherwise and including atlomeys’ fees and costs, afising out of any ad, aclions, neglect, or
omissions by the provider, its agents, or employees during the perfermance or operation of this contracl or any subsequent modifications thereof,
whether direct or indirect, and whether to any person or tangible or intangible property.

2. The providers inability to evaluate Hability or its evaluation of fiability shall not excuse the provider's duty to defend and indemnify within seven (7}
days after such notice by the department is given by cerlified mail. Only adjudication or judgment after highest appeal is exhausied specifically
finding the provider not liable shall excuse performance of this provision. The provider shalt pay all costs and fees related to this obligation and its
enforcement by the department. The department’s failure to notify the provider of & claim shall not release the provider of the above duty to defend.

G. Insurance
To provide adequate liability insurance coverage on a comprehensive basis and to hold such liability insurance at all imes during the existence of this contract
and any renewal(s) and extension(s) of it Upon execution of this contract, the provider accepts full responsibility for identifying and determining the type(s) and
exient of liability insurance necessary to provide reasonable finandial protections for the provider and the dlients 1o be served under this contracl. Upon the
execution of this contract, the provider shall fumish the department wiitten verification supporting both the determination and existence of such insuance
coverage. Such coverage may be provided by a self-insurance program established and operating under the laws of the State of Florida. The depariment
reserves the right lo require additional insurance as spedified In Atlachment | where appropriate,

H. Safeguarding Information

Not to use or disclose any information concerning a recipient of services under this contract for any purpose not in conformity with stale and federal law

or regulations excepl upon wiitten consent of the recipient, or his responsible parent or guardian when authorized by law.

1. Assignments and Subcontracts

1. To neither assign the responsibility of this contract lo another party nor subcontract for any of the work contemplated under this contract without
prior written approval of the depariment, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, Any sub-license, assignment, or transfer otherwise occurring
shall be nult and void.

2. The provider shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred with the projecl. if the depariment permits the provider to
subcontract all or part of the work contemplated under this contract, including entering into subcontracls with vendors for services and commodities,
it is understood by the provider that the department shall nol be liable to the subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the
subcontract and the provider shall be solely liable to the subcontractor for sl expenses and liabilities incured under the subcontracl. The provider,
at its expense, will defend the department against such claims,

3. Leon County shall al all imes be entitied to assign or transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this contract fo snather governmental agency in Leon
County Govemnmenl, upon giving prior written notice to the provider. In the event Leon County sipproves transfer of the provider's obligations, the provides
remains responsible for all work perfomed and all expenses incumed in connection with the contract In addition, this contrad! shall bind the successors
assigns, and legal representatives of the provider and of any legal entity that succeeds 1o the obligations of Leon County, Florida.

4.  Unless otherwise stated in the contract between the provider and subcontracior, payments made by the provider to the subcontractor must be within sever
{7) working days afler receipt of full or partial payments from the depariment in accordance with §§287.0585, FS. Failure 1o pay within seven (7} working days
will result in @ penalty charged against the provider and paid to the subcontracior in the amount of one-hall of one (1) percent of the amount due per day from the
expiration of the period allowed herein for payment.  Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed and shall not exceed fifteen (15) percert of tw
outstanding balance due.

J. Retum of Funds

To return 1o the department any overpayments due to uneamed funds or funds disallowed pursuant o the terms of this contract that were disbursed to thw

provider by the department. In the event that the provider or its independent auditor discovers that overpayment has been made, the provider shall repay sak

overpayment within 40 calendar days without prior notification from the deparment. In the event that the department first discovers an overpayment has beed
made, the department will notify the provider by letter of such a finding. Should repayment not be made in a tmely manner, the department will charge interest ©
one (1) percent per month compounded on the outstanding balance after 40 calendar days after the dale of notification or discovery.

K. Incident Reporting

Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Reporting

In compliance with Chapier 415, FS, an employee of the provider who knows or has reasonable cause to suspect that a child, aged person, or disabled adult is or ha

been abused, neglected, or exploited shall immediately repont such knowledge or suspicion 1o the Florida Abuse Hotline on the single statewide toll-free telephon

number (1-800-96ABUSE).

L. Civil Rights Requirements
Civil Rights Certification: The provider will comply with applicable provisions of the State of Florida Department of Health publication, "Methods ¢
Administration, Equal Opportunity in Service Delivery.” . .

M. Independent Capacity of the Contractor

In the performance of this contract, it is agreed between the parties that the provider is an independent contractor and that the provider is solely liable for th

performance of all tasks contemplated by this contracl, which are not the exclusive responsibility of the depariment.

2. The provider, its officers, agents, employees, subcontraclors, of assignees, in performance of this contract, shall act In the capacity of an independen
contractor and nat as an officer, employee, or agent of the Leon County, Florida nor shall the pravider represent to cthers that it has the authority to bind ¢
department unless spedifically authorized to do so. . .

3. Neithes the provider, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, nor assignees are entitted 1o county refirement or county leave benefits, or to any othy
compensation of county employment as & result of performing the duties and obligations of this contracl

4. The provider agrees 10 lake such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor of the provider will be deemed to be an independe
contractar and will not be considered or permitied to be an agent, servant, joint venturer, or partrer of Leon County, Florida,

5. Unless justified by the provider and agreed 1o by the department in Attachment 1, the department is not responsible for services of support (e.g., offix
space, office supplies, telephone service, secretanal, or derical supporl) to the provider, or its subcontractor or assignee.

6. Al deductions for social security, withholding taxes, income taxes, contributions to unemployment compensation funds, and all necessary insurance for t
provider, the provider's officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, of assignees shall be the responsibility of the provider.

N. Sponsorship

If the provider is a hon-govemmental organization which sponsors a program financed wholly or in part by county funds, including any funds obtained through

contract, it shall, in publicizing, advertising, or describing the sponsorship of the program, state: Sponsored by (provider's name) and Board of Cour.

Commissioners with County Logo. ! the sponsorship reference is in wiritten material, the wonds, Board of County Commissioners, Leon County and county 10t

shall appear in the same size letters of fype as the name of the organization. ' .

-l
.
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Q. Finat Invoice

To submit the final inveice for payment to the department no more than 45 days ahier the contract ends of is terminated. If the provider fails to do so, all right to
payment ic forfeited and the depariment will not honor any requests submitied afles the aforesaid time period. Any payment due under the terms of this contract
may be withheld until all reports due from the provider and necessary adjustments thereto have been approved by the department.

P. Use of Funds for Lobbying Prohibited

To comply with the provisions of §216.347, FS, which prohibit the expenditure of contract funds for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature, Judicial branch, or a state

agency.
Q. Patents, Copyrights, and Royzlties
I any discovery of invention arises or is developed in the course or as a result of work or services performed under this contract, of in anyway connected
herewith, the .
provider shall refer the discovery of invention fo the department to be referred to the Department of State 10 determine whether patent protection will be
in the name of Leon County, Florida. Any and all patent rights accruing under of in connection with the performance of this contract are hereby
reserved to Leon County, Florida.
In the event that any books, manuals, films, or other copyrightable malterials are produced, the provider shall notify the Department . Any and all copytights
accruing under of in conneclion with the performance under this contract are hereby reserved to Leon County, Florida.
The provider, without exception, shall indemnify and save harmless Leon County and its employees from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and
expenses for or on accourt of any copyrighted, patented, or unpatented invention, process, or article manufaciured by the provider. Leon County will
provide prompt written notification of claim of copyright or patent infringement. Further, if such daim i made or is pending, the provider may, at its option
and expense, procure for Leon County, the right to confinue use of, replace, or modify the ariicle to render it nondnfringing. If the provider uses any design,
device, or malerials covered by letters, patent, or copyright, It is mutually agreed and understood without exception that the bid prices shall indude all
royaities or cost arising from the use of such design, device, or malerials in any way involved in the work.
Construction or Renovation of Facilities Using County Funds
Any county funds provided for the purchase of or improvements 1o real property are contingent upon the provider granting lo the county a security
interest in the property at least to the amount of the county funds provided for al least (8) years from the date of purchase or the compietion of the
improvements of as further required by law. As a condition of a receipt of county funding for this purpose, the provider agrees that, if it disposes of
the property before the depariment's interest is vacated, the provider will refund the proportionate share of the county’s initial investment, as
adjusted by depreciation.
Information Security
The provider shall maintain confidentiality of all data, files, and records including client records related fo the services provided pursuant to this
agreement and shalt comply with state and federal laws, including, but not limited to, sections 384.29, 381.004, 392.65, and 456.057, Florida
Statutes. Procedures must be implemented by the provider to ensure the protection and confidentiality of afl confidential matters, These€
procedures shall be consistent with Leon County Information Security Policies, as amended, which is incorporated herein by reference and the
receipt of which is acknowledged by the provider, upon execution of this zgreement. The provider will adhere t0 any amendments lo the
department’s security requirements provided to it during the period of this agreement. The provider must also comply with any applicable
professional standards of practice with respect to client confidentiality.
II. The County Agrees: :
A Contract Amount
T pay for contracted services according to the conditions of Attachment | in an amount not to exceed $80.00 Per patient vigit not to exceed a total ©
$355,000.00 subject to the availability of furds. Leon County's performance and ebiigation to pay under this contract Is contingent upon an annual appropriation
by the Board of County Commissioners, The costs of services paid under any other contract or from any other source are nol eligible for reimbursement unde
this contract. .
'B. Contract Payment
Invoice payment requirements do not starl until a properly completed invoice is provided.
L. The Provider and the County Mutually Agree
A Effective and Ending Dates
. This contract shall begin on Ociober 1, 2006, and shall end on September 30, 2007.

B. Termination
1. Termination at Wil
This contract may be terminated by either party upon no less than thirty (30} calendar days nofice in writing to the other party, without cause, unless a lesser tm
is mutually agreed upon in wiiting by both parties. Said notice shall be delivered by cerified mall, retum seceipt requested, or in person with proof of defivery.
" @ Temination Because of Lack of Funds )

in the event furds to finance this contracl become unavailable, the depariment may terminate the contract upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice
writing to the provider. Said rotice shall be delivered by certified mal, return receipl requesied, or in person with proof of defivery. The department shall be tt
final authority as to the availability and adequacy of funds. In the event of termination of this contract, the provider will be compensated for any work satisfactor
completed prior to notification of termination,
3. Termination for Breach
This contract may be temminated for the provider's non-performance upon no kess than twenty-four (24) hours notice in wiiting to the provider. tf applicable,
department may employ the defaull provisions in Chapter 60A-1.006 (3), FAC. Waiver of breach of any provisions of this conlract shall not be deemed to be
waiver of any other breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this contract The provisions herein do not limit the departiment's right
remedies at law of in equity.
4. Temmination for Failure to Satisfaclorily Perform Prior Agreement
Failure 1o have performed any contractual obligations with the department in a manner satisfactory to the depariment will be a sufficient cause for termination. ™
be lerminated as a provider urler this provision, the provider must have: (1} previously failed to satisfaclorily perform in a contract with the county, been noftifi
by the county of the unsatisfactory pedormance, and falled to conedt the unsatisfactory performance 1o the satisfaction of the county; or (2) had a contre
terminated by the county for cause.
C. Renegotiation or Modification
Modifications of provisions of this conbact shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing and duly signed by both parties. The rate of payment &
doflar amount may be adjusted retroactively to refiect price level increases and changes in the rate of payment when these have been established through t
county budgeting process and subsequently identified in the department's operating budget.
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D. Official Payee and Representatives (Names, Addresses and Telephone Numbers)

1. The name (provider name as shown on page 1 of this contract) and mailing 3. The name, address, ard telephone number of the contract manager
address of the official payee to whom the payment shall be made is: for the County for this contract is:
Neighborbood Heatth Services, Ing.. Frederick L, Pearson Jr,, Human Services Anatyst
438 West Brevard Avenue, RM 11 Division of Healtth and Human Senvices
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 918 Railroad Avenue

Tallahassee, Florida 32310

2. The name of the contac! person and street address where financial 4 The name, address, and telephone number of the provider's

and administrative records are mairtained is: representative responsible for administration of the program under
Mrs. Inziea Smith-McGlodidon, Executive Direclor this ais:

Mrs. Infea Smith-McGlockton, Executive Direcion

Neighborhood Health Services, Inc. 438 W. Brevard Avenue

438 W, Brevord Averwe, Talishassee, Florida 32301 Telephone 224-2469,

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 : ‘

5. Upon change of representatives (names, addresses, telephone numbers) by either party, notice shall be provided in wiiting to the other party and said
notification attached 1o originals of this contract.

E. All Terms and Conditions Included

This contract and its attachments as referenced., Attachments (3 Hand Exhibis 1. AB C D E &F

contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. There are no provisions, lemms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and

this contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations, of agreements, either verhal or writien between the partes. if any term or provision of

the contract is found to be illegal or unentorceable, the remainder of the contradt shall remain in full force and effect and such term or provision shall be striicken.

1 have read the above contract and understand each section and paragraph.

Provider: A!E.t\ glqk) or hQi}d H <o f % Se; Viee s, Tne.

-

Signed by: ~

Neme: LihZlea St Med locfcton
Title: Q}Q@_ Actioe 9‘.&!\1&«*—-&‘\

Date: b I i } ob

Federal D € 5= BH) 26 2§ 70€C~ 1

LEON COUNTY, FLO

" ATTEST:
Bob Inzer, Clerk of the,Court
Leon County, Flog

County Attorney

4 Provider Contract
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County Case Management Contract with Capital Medical Society
Foundation

A
This Agreement dated this ’/ ~~_day of September, 2006, by and between LEON COUNTY,
a charter county and political subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the
“County” and Capital Medical Society Foundation, hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor.”

WHEREAS, the Board has identified the need to further the provision of primary healthcare
services to the uninsured citizens of our community; Services to include basic diagnostic procedures
and drug or other therapeutic modalities ordered or provided by the primary care practitioner in the
course of treating the patient, along with ambulatory care, preventive health services and continuing
case management of the healthcare needs of registered clients; and

WHEREAS, the CareNet group of providers, including Neighborhood Health Services, Bond
Community Health Center, the Capital Medical Society Foundation, the FAMU College of
Pharmacy, Tallahassce Memorial Healthcare, Tallahassee Community Hospital and Leon County
Health Department have provided primary and specialty healthcare services to the uninsured citizens
of Leon County in a coordinated fashion for a number of years; and

| WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a greater need for healthcare for the uninsured in
our community exists above the current level of services offered by the CareNet partners at their
current levels of funding and participation; and

WHEREAS, the Board has found it in the best interest of Leon County to dedicate funding
for the expansion of the existing CareNet program to service the community’s additional need for

healthcare services for the uninsured; and

WHEREAS, the CareNet group of providers have agreed to work cooperatively with the
Board to meet that additional community need for healthcare services for the uninsured;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1: Clients To Be Served

The contractor hereby agrees to serve the following residents of the county with the following
restrictions:

1. Eligibility for services under this contract shall be limited to those residents of Leon
County under the age of 65 with net incomes less than 100% of the most current federal
poverty levels established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget, who seek

primary medical care, have no health insurance, and are not currently covered under any
other state or federal assistance program. Residents with net incomes between 100 and
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200% federal poverty level shall arrange to pay for all or a portion of the specialty care
services they receive while simultaneously receiving short term case management by
Contractor.

No fees of any kind shall be charged for registered comprehensive primary care clients
who are below 100% of the most current federal poverty levels.

Clients who are not currently receiving Medicaid or Healthy Kids, or any other state or
federal program, and who appear to meet the income and categorical ehgibility
requirements of Medicaid or Healthy Kids, should be strongly encouraged to pursue
obtaining eligibility for those programs.

Clients who are enrolled in Medicaid, Medicare, Healthy Kids, or any other insurance
program will not be eligible for services under this contract.

The contractor will determine eligibility for enrollment into primary.care. Eligibility will
be determined at least annually. A client shall be allowed, however, to request
determination of eligibility after submitting verified confirmation of changes to histher
income.

The contractor will abide by HIPPA policies and procedures established for the Primary
Health Care Program as related to the processing of client’s medical information

Services to be offered per this contract by Contractor:

1.

Section 3:

The Contractor shall provide primary healthcare services to qualifying recipients
including, but not limited to, those services delineated in the attached contract between
the Leon County Health Department and the Contractor unless otherwise specified herein
(Attachment #2). These services shall be provided in the manner detailed in the attached
contract

Reports to be performed by Contractor:

1.

The Contractor must submit a monthly invoice (Exhibit A) to the County on or before the
15" day of the month. The invoice should be sent to the following address to the
attention of the “Uninsured Healthcare Program Administrator:” '

Leon County Health and Human Services Division
918 Railroad Ave. '
Tallahassee, FL. 32310
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The Contractor must submit the required attachments as the designated in the monthly
invoice. For the purposes of this contract “New” Patients means those receiving services
and charged to the Leon County Primary Health Care Program. “Existing” patients
means those receiving services and charged to the Leon County Health Department.
These attachments shall at a minimum contain the following information:

A) A comprehensive list of all clients registered during the month to include
the unique client identification number and program start date.

B) Number of total patients (seen by contractor entirely) and total patient
encounters per month.

C) Number of new and existing CareNet patients and number of new and
existing CareNet patient encounters per month.

The Contractor will provide a Client Satisfaction Survey to randomly sample a minimurm
of 20 primary care clients seen during each quarter of the contract period. This survey
shall be similar to the one delineated in the contract between the Leon County Health

Department and the contractor (Please See Attachment #3). Completed forms will be
forwarded to the county contract manager.

Annually, the County will submit a final report that provides a detailed summary of all
expenditures utilizing the funds from this contract. The annual report will also
comprehensively detail the amount of new patients as compared to overall patients served
by the contractor and the types of service performed in the reporting year. The report will
also compare the current period against measures from previous years.

Section 4: Audits, Records, and Records Retention:

The Contractor agrees:

1.

To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic storage
media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and practices,
which sufficiently and properly reflect all revenues and expenditures of funds provided
by the County under this contract.

To retain all client records, financial records, time sheets, supporting documents,
statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media)
pertinent to this contract for a period of five (5) years afier termination of the contract, or
if an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of five

(5) years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings or any
litigation which may be based on the terms of this contract.

Upon cbmp]etion or termination of the contract and at the request of the County, the
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Contractor will cooperate with the County to facilitate the duplication and transfer of any
said records or documients during the required retention period as specified in paragraph
1 above.

To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, Teview,
or audit by Federal, state, or other personnel duly authorized by the County subject to
HIPPA.

Persons duly authorized by the County and Federal auditors, pursuant to 45 CFR, Part
92.36(I)(10), shall have full access to and the right to examine any of provider's contract
and related records and documents, regardless of the form in which kept, at all reasonable
times for as long as the records are retained.

To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all approved
subcontracts and assignments.

Monitoring:

The Contractor agrees:

1.

Section 6:

To permit persons duly authorized by the County to inspect any records, papers,
documents, facilities, goods, and services of the provider which are relevant to this
contract, and interview any clients and employecs of the provider to assure the County of
satisfactory performance of the terms and conditions of this contract.

Following such evaluation, the County will deliver to the provider a written report of its
findings and will include written recommendations with regard to the provider's
performance of the terms and conditions of this contract. The Contractor wiil correct all
noted deficiencies identified by the County within the specified period of time set forthin
the recommendations. The Contractor's failure to correct noted deficiencies may, at the
sole and exclusive direction of the County, result in any one or any combination of the
following: (a) the provider being deemed in breach or default of this contract; (b) the
withholding of payments to the Contractor by the County; and (c) the termination of this
contract for cause.

Pavment:

1.

Payment shall be made by the County upon receipt of valid invoice by Contractor at a
monthly rate equal to no more than one twelfth (1/12) of the following total contractual
amount: $90,043.00. The contractual amount is based upon the following line items (for
twelve months): ‘
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Primary Care Services:

0.5 FTE Project Coordinator $23,840

1.0 FTE Case Manager $29,484

1.0 FTE Support Staff person $21,060
Operating Expenses (recurring costs) $9,232
Capital Outlay $6,427
Total: $90,043

2. The payment shall be made by the County within 30 days of receipt and approval by the
County of a monthly invoice (Exhibit A). The monthly invoice is to be completed and
submitted by the Contractor to the County.

- 3. No line itém (as identificd in paragraph 1 above) payment shall be made until such time
as the staff members identified in Section 6 of this contract is hired by the Contractor or
County authorized Subcontractor. Similarly, no payment shall be made if the required
monthly reports, as delineated in Section 3 of this contract, are not attached to the
monthly inveoice appropriately.

Section 7: Term:

The length of this contract shall be for a term of twelve months beginning on October 1, 2006 and
ending on September 30, 2007.

Section §8: Hold Harmless:

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County from all claims, damages,
liabilities, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because of, or due to the breach of this
agreement by Contractor, its delegates, agents or employees, or due to any act or occurrence of
omission or commission of the Contractor, including but not limited to costs and a reasonable
attorney’s fee. The County may, at its sole option, defend itself or allow the Contractor to provide
the defense. The Contractor acknowledges that ten dollars ($10.00) of the amount paid to the
Contractor is sufficient consideration for the Contractor’s indemnification of the County.

Section 9: Termination

- 1. The County may terminate this contract without cause, by giving the Contractor thirty
(30) days written notice of termination. Either party may terminate this contract for
cause by giving the other party hereto thirty (30) days written notice of termination. The
County shall not be required to give the Contractor such thirty (30) day written notice if,
in the opinion of the County, the Contractor is unable to ‘perform its obligations
hereunder, or if in the County’s opinion, the services being provided are not satisfactory.
In such case, the County may immediately terminate the Contract by mailing a notice of
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termination to the Contractor.

2. Termination with cause shall include but not be limited 1o the discovery of improper or
inappropriate accounting, expenditures, reporting or service delivery by the contractor or
due to the discovery of noncompliance with any item detailed within the sections of this

contract.

Section 10: Revisions

In any case where, in fulfilling the requirements of this contract or of any guarantee, embraced in or
required thereby it is necessary for the Contractor to deviate from the requirements of the contract,
. Contractor shall obtain the prior written consent of the County. The parties agree to renegotiate this
contract if revision of any applicable laws or regulations makes changes in this contract necessary.

Sectioh 11: Construction

The validity, construction, and effect of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida.

Section 12: Budget

The performance of Leon County of any of its obligations under the purchase order or agreement
shall be subject to and contingent upon the availability of funds lawfully expendable for the purposes
of the purchase order or agreement for the current and any future periods provided for within the bid
specifications. '

Section 13: Siatus

The Contractor at all times relevant to this Agreement shall be an independent contractor and in no
event shall the Contractor nor any employees or sub-contractors under it be considered to be
employees of Leon County. : ' :

Section 14: Assienments

This Contract shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the written consent of the
County nor shall the contractor assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the
previous written consent of the County.

Section 15: Public Entity Crimes Statement

Tn accordance with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, Contractor hereby certifies that to the best of
his knowledge and belief neither Contractor nor his affiliates has been convicted of a public entity
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crime. Contractor and his affiliates shall provide the County with completed public entity crime
statement form no later than January 15 of each year this agreement is in cffect. Violation of this
section by the Contractor shall be grounds for cancellation of this agreement by Leon County.

Section 16: Contractor’s Responsibility

It shall be the sole re5ponsibi1ity of the Contractor to comply with all applicable Federal, State,
County and City, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of the Contractor’s

obligations under this agreement.

WHERETO, the partjes have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last
party executives this Agreement.

Signed:

CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION

Karen Wendland
Executive Director

DATE: (| - (¢~ O\ .

WITNESS: '%M‘O‘EV‘- C WCA

WITNESS:

7l
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LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA

BY:QMU% Q&LW

Bill Proctor, Chyuman
Board of Cou Commissioners

ATTEST:
BOB INZER, GLERK OF COURT

County Attorney
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Ieon County Pharmaceutical Care Contract with Florida A&M
University College of Pharmacy

This Agreement dated this __ day of September, 2006. by and between LEON
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the
"County" and Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University acting for and on behalf of
the FAMU Board of Trustees a public corporation of the State of Florida, hereinafter
referred 1o as the "College" or "Contractor.” '

WHEREAS, the COLLEGE and County share a common nussion to provide the highest
quality of pharmaceutical services and care to the uninsured residents of Leon County, Florida, and;

WHEREAS, the COLLEGE and County agree that it would be in their mutual interest 10
expand the current level of pharmaceutical services and concentrate all pharmaceutical operations for
all uninsured Leon County residents at the 872 W. Orange Ave. Tallahassee, Florida and the 438 W.
Brevard Steet , Tallahassee, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the COLLEGE and the County have determined that a greater need for
concentrated pharmaceutical care for the uninsured in our community exists above the current
level of services offered at the several ‘scattered sites at the current levels of funding and
participation; and

WHEREAS, the County has found it in the best interest of Leon County to dedicate

funding for the expansion of concentrated pharmaceutical care and operations for
pharmaceutical services for the uninsured; and

WHEREAS, the College has agreed to work cooperatively with the County to meet that
additional commumity need for concentrated pharmaceutical services for the uninsured;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1: Plan of Operations

The objective of the Unified Pharmaceutical Plan is to operate several community
pharmacies to provide pharmaceutical services for Leon County’s uninsured. Under the
administration of the FAMU College of Pharmacy, the Unified Pharmaceutical Plan will
include:

1. The FAMU Health Depaﬂment Pharmacy located at the Bond Community Health
Center at 872 W. Orange Avenue.

The patients of the Bond Community Health Center will continue to receive
the same level of pharmaceutical services that they are currently receiving but
services will be expanded 1o serve all patients. Hours of operation will.be Monday
through Thursday 8:30am — 1:30pm and 2pm - Spm; Friday 8:30am —~ 1:30pm and

1
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2pm — Spm. Any hours of operation requested outside of these hours will be
provided at the health center’s expense. '

2. The FAMU Health Department Pharmacy located at the Neighborhood Health
Services Clinic at W. Brevard Street.

Patients of Neighborhood Health Services will continue to receive the same
Jevel of pharmaceutical services that they are currently receiving.- The College of
Pharmacy will assume the administrative and operational duties of the pharmacy.
Administrative services will include staffing, formulary management, etc. Hours of
operation will be Monday through Friday 9am — 1:30pm and 2pm ~ S5pm. Any
hours of operation requested outside of these hours will be provided at the health
center’s expense.

3. The FAMU Health Department Pharmacy located at an additional site.

The third pharmacy should be in a location convenient to uninsured patients
who have . received services at either the Tallahassee Memorial Healthcare or
Capital Regional Medical Center emergency rooms. Uninsured patients, upon
discharge from either of the local hospital emergency rooms will be able to access
low-cost medications. The supply of medications dispensed to these patients will
be sufficient to sustain patients until they have made an appointment to be seen by
a physician via a CareNet referral 1o either Bond Community Health Center or
Neighborhood Health Services. The third pharmacy should also have sufficient
space to house administrative staff and rooms for disease state management
classes. Inclusion of the third pharmacy site will be added as an addendum to the
contract.

All pharmacy locations will be electronically linked with secure technology to
access the RX30 program, a pharmacy database located on a central server, currently
housed at 872 West Orange Avenue., This existing equipment is used by the FAMU Health
Department Pharmacy located at the 872 West Orange Avenue location 10 operate their
cervices at that location. The network will be compliant with all HIPAA regulations.

These services will be monitored and managed by Leon County Health Department
IT staff, which will also provide help desk and troubleshooting services to the FAMU
Health Department Pharmacy sites for desktop and connectivity support.

The College of Pharmacy will manage the day-to-day operations of each pharmacy
location and relieve each clinic site of pharmacy management responsibilities and provide
professional consultation in the development of overall pharmacy management, clinical
services, and program evaluation. The College of Pharmacy will provide the expertise 10
ensure proper Florida lcensing for pharmacy practice, adherence to all Florida Statutes
governing the profession of pharmacy and development of clinical pharmacy programs.
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Section 2: Scope of Services:

The purpose of the expansion of services will be to provide unified pharmaceutical
services to all uninsured patients of Leon County. Services provided by the College of
Pharmacy will include: :

A. Coordinate and unify pharmacy services for .indigent patients at the Bond
Community Health Center. Neighborhood Health Services, and the two local
hospitals.

Development of policies and procedures for pharmaceutical services from each
primary care site. \ ‘

Development .of a community wide formulary for distribution to health care
providers of the uninsured.

Coordinated Patient Assistance Programs (PAP) for uninsured residents of Leon
County.

Enroll the County’s Unified Program into drug manufacturer bulk replacement
programs ‘

Filling/dispensing prescription and OTC medications.

Counseling services including Drug Utilization Review interventions and patient
drug monitoring. '

Provide patient education seminars for specific disease state management o better
contro} patient medical conditions.

Track medications dispensed for Leon County patients .

1. Generating reports requested by Leon County for facilitation and accountability of
pharmaceutical services in the county. :
K. Conduct outcomes research and utilization studies to assess therapeutic outcomes.

m O 0 W

T om

unmed
.

All revenues generated by the unified pharmaceutical program through the
provision of services listed above will be placed back into the unified program for the
purchase of medications, equipment, supplies, or any other expenditures deemed necessary
by the College of Pharmacy and approved in writing by Leon County.

Section 3: Reports to be performed by Contracior:

1. The Contractor nust submit a monthly invoice (Exhibit A) to the County on or before
the 15" day of the month. The invoice should be sent to the following address to the
attention of the "Uninsured Healthcare Program Administrator:"

Division of Health and Human Services
918 Railroad Avenue. '
Tallahassee, Florida 32310

2. The Contractor must submit required documentation to the monthly invoice. These
attachments shall at a minimum contain the following infonmation:

A) Number of prescriptions filled per month.
B) Number of Patient Assistance medications received and the retail

3




Attachment # i

Pager S+

-

value.

The Contractor must submit a Quarterly Progress Report that is to
inchude the total number of prescriptions filled, the number of
patient assistance medications received and the retail value of
the medications, and a summary of expenditures for medications
and salary expenses, respectively, as documented during the
respective quarter.

4, The Quarterly Progress Report is to be submitted with the monthly invoice for
the months of March, June and September. The quarterly report must be
attached to the respective monthly invoice in order for the county to proceed
with invoice processing and payment, unless otherwise specified by the Board.

5. Annually, the Contractor will submit a final report that provides a detailed
summary of all expenditures made utilizing the funds from this contract. This
annual report will also comprehensively detail the amount of new patients as
compared 10 overall patients served by the provider and the types of service
performed during the reporting year. The report will also compare the current
period against measures from previous years. '

Section 4: Audits. Records, and Records Retention:

The Contractor agrees:

1. To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic
storage media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all revenues and
expenditures of funds provided by the County under this contract.

2. "To retain all client records, financial records, time sheets, supporting documents,
statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storage
media) pertinent 10 this contract for a period of five (5) years afier termination of the
contract, or if an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at
the end of five (5) years, the records shall be retained unti} resolution of the audit
findings or any litigation which may be based on the terms of this contract.

3. Upon completion or termination of the contract and at the request of the County, the
Contractor will cooperate- with the County to facilitate the duplication and transfer of

any said records or documents during the required retention period as specified in
paragraph 1 above.

4. To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection,
review, or audit by Federal, state, or other personnel duly authorized by the County.

5. Persons duly authorized by the County and Federal auditors, pursuant 1o 45 CFR, Part
92.36(I)(10), shall have full access to and the right to examine any of provider's

4
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contract and related records and documents, regardless of the form in which
kept, at all reasonable times for as long as records are retained.

6.  To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all approved
subcontracts and assignments.

Section 5: Monitoring:

The Contractor agrees:

1. To permit persons duly authorized by the County to inspect any records, papers,
documents, facilities, goods, and services of the provider which are relevant to
this contract. and interview any clients and employees of the provider to assure the
County of satisfactory performance of the terms and conditions of this contract.

2 Following such evaluation, the County will deliver to the provider a written report of its
findings and will include written recommendations with regard to the provider's
performance of the terms and conditions of this contract. The Contractor will correct
all noted deficiencies identified by the County within the specified period of time set
forth in the recommendations. The Contractor's failure 10 correct noted deficiencies
may, at the sole and exclusive direction of the County, result in any one or any
combination of the following; (a) the provider being deemed in breach or default of this
contract; (b) the withholding of payments to the Contractor by the County; and (c) the
termination of this.contract for cause.

" Section 6: Payment:

1. Payment shall be made by the County upon receipt of valid invoice by Contractor at a
monthly rate equal to no more than one twelfth (1/12) of the following total
contractual amount: $355,000.00. The contractual amount is based upon the
following line items (for twelve months):

Pharmaceutical Care Services:
872 W. Orange Avenue Site

1.0 FTE RX Manager
$91,440 (salary + fringe)

1.0 FTE Pharmacy Technician
$43,018 (salary + fringe)

MedData Services $ 3,000

RX-30 Software § 2,280
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438 W. Brevard Street Site
1.0 FTE RX Manager
$91.,440 (salary + fringe)

1.0 FTE Phammacy Technician
$43,018 (salary + fiinge)

MedData Services$ 3,000

RX-30 Software$ 2,280

Both Sites 1.5 FTE PAP Coordinator $51,375 (salary + fringe}
Equipment and Supplies 324,149
Total: . - " $355,000

2. The payment shall be made by the County within 30 days of receipt and approval by the
County of a monthly invoice. The monthly invoice is to be completed and submitted
by the Contractor to the County.

3. No line item (as identified in paragraph 1 above) payment shall be made until such time
as the staff members identified in Section 6 of this contract are hired by the
Contractor or County authorized Subcontractor. Similarly, no payment shall be
made if the required monthly reports, as delineated in Section 3 of this contract, are
not attached to the monthly invoice appropriately.

Section 7: Time:

The length of this contract shall be for a term of twelve months beginning on October 1, 2006
and ending on September 30, 2007 with renewability.

Section 8: Hold Harmless:

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County from all claims, damages,
liabilities, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of, because of; or due to the breach of this
agreement by Contractor, its delegates, agents or employees, or due to any act or occurrence of
omission or commission of the Contractor, including but not limited to costs and a reasonable
attomney's fee, in a manner consistent with section 768.28, Florida Statues.. The County may, atits
sole option, defend itself or allow the Contractor to provide the defense.




Attachment# Z

Page__] ot _JO

Section 10: Termination

1. The County may terminate this contract without cause, by giving the Contractor sixty (60)
days written notice of termination. Either party may terminate this contract for
cause by giving the other party hereto sixty (60) days written notice of termination. The
County shall not be required to give the Contractor such sixty (60) day written
notice if, in the opinion of the County, the Contractor is unable to perform its
obligations hereunder, or if in the County's opinion, the services being provided are
not satisfactory. In such case, the County may immediately terminate the Contract by
mailing a notice of termination to the Contractor.

1o

Termination with cause shall include but not be limited to the discovery of improper
or inappropriate accounting, expenditures, reporting or service delivery by the
provider or due to the discovery of noncompliance wnh any item detailed within the
sections of this contract.

Section 11: Revisions

In any case where, in fulfilling the requirements of this contract or of any guarantee,
‘embraced in or required thereby it is necessary for the Contractor to deviate from the
requirements of the contract, Contractor shall obtain the prior written consent of the County.
The parties agree to renegotiate this contract if revision of any applicable laws or regulations
makes changes in this contract necessary.

Section 12: Constiuction

~ The validity, construction, and effect of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Flonda

Section 13:  Budget

The performance of Leon County of any of its obligations under the purchase order or
agreement shall be subject to and contingent upon the availability of funds lawfully expendable for
the purposes of the purchase order or agreement for the current and any future periods provided for
within the renewal of the contract.

Section 14: Status

The Contractor at all times relevant to this Agreement shall be an independent contractor
and in no event shall the Contractor nor any employees or sub-contractors under it be
considered to be employees of Leon County.

Section 15: Assienments

This Contract shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the written
consent of the County nor shall the contractor assign any monies due or to become due to him
hereunder without the previous written consent of the County.
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Section 16: Public Entity Crimes Statement

In accordance with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, Contractor hereby certifies that to
the best of his knowledge and belief neither Contractor nor its affiliates has been convicted of a
public emtity crime. Contractor and its affiliates shall provide the County with a completed public
entity crime statement form no later than January 15 of each year this agreement is in effect.
Violation of this section by the Contractor shall be grounds for cancellation of this agreement by
Leon County.

Section 17: Contractor's Responsibility

It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to comply with all applicable
Federal, State. County and City, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of
the Contractor's obligations under this agreement.

WHERFETO, the parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last party
executives this Agreement.
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FLORIDA AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL UNIVERSITY

A bra Quote /[ /5707

Deborah Austin, B.D. Dlate
Pro ick-President Academic Affairs /

[ 74/ J /{7 /pf)
Robert L. Thomag, Pharm.D. - Date

Interim Dean, College of Pharmacy

ﬁi Pharmaceutical Sciences ga

CASTELL V. BRYANT/ 7/ 7
Interim President

Approved as to form, but Legality

subject to execution by all parties.

o//11/07

Date '

Associate General Counsel
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LEON COUNTY FLORIDA

BY:
C. E DePuy, Jr., Chainnan Roayd of County Commissioners

ATTEST:
BOB INZER. CLERK OF COURT
LEON CO , FLORIDA

By: gzy
’ /s

Herbert W.A. Thiele, Esq. County Attomey

10
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RESOLUTION NO. R01-50

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF LEON COUNTY
CREATING A PRIMARY HEALTH CARE IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY BOARD
WHEREAS, the Board voted unanimously to provide primary health care services to the uninsured
residents of Leon County; and '

WHEREAS, the Board approved Ordinance No. 01-13 on June 12, 2001 creating a Primary Health Care
Municipal Service Taxing Unit t0 help fund a primary health care program for the uninsured; and

WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorizes the Board to levy and collect additional ad valorem taxes to
provide primary health care services to the uninsured, low income persons under the age of 65 living

within Leon County; and

. WHEREAS, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget for the Primary Health Care Municipal Service
Taxing Unit for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2001 and each year thereafier; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Leon County Board of County Commissioners shall
create a Primary Health Care Implementation Advisory Board, which will consist of fourteen members

who shall be appointed by the Board to serve 3-year terms, and who will serve at the pleasure of the
Board, and one Board of County Commissioner, for a total of fifteen.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Board of County Commissioners of Leon County, Florida this 11"
Day of December 2001,
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Commissioners

BILL PROCTOR
District 1

JANE G. SAULS
District 2

JOHN DAILEY
District 3

BRYAN DESLOGE
District 4

BOB RACKLEFF
District 5

CLIFF THAELL
At-Large

ED DePUY
At-Large

PARWEZ ALAM
County Administrator

HERBERT W.A, THIELE
County Attorney

Board of County Commissioners
301 South Monroe Sireet, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 :

(850) 606-5302 www.leoncountyfl.gov

January 12, 2007

Florida A&M University , College of Pharmacy
Andrea Brown-Slater, Director

872 W.Orange Ave

Tallahassee, FL 32310

Dear Mrs. Brown-Slater:

During the January 9, 2007 board meeting, the Leon County Board of County
Commissioners requested that your organization, among others, give a presentation of
the services you provide to the community. A Healthcare Workshop has been
scheduled for March 13, 2007 from 12:00 p.m. until 3:00 p.m. in the County
Courthouse Chambers. Tt is requested that information be provided in preparation for
the workshop. Please submit the following to Andrea Simpson, Director of Health

and Human Services by February 23, 2007:

Mission of Organization

List of Programs and Services Provided

List of Population Served

Number of Leon County Residents Served

Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of

expenses by services/programs

List of staff positions associated with services/ programs

7. Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit
process procedures.

8. List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare

Funding and include statistics.

bl ol o o

o

~ Should you r.equire additional information or if you nced any assistance, please
contact Andrea Simpson, Director of Health and Human Services at 850-606-1200.

Sincerely,

Parwez Alam
County Administrator

An eaual ovvortunity emplover
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Comimissioners

BILL PROCTOR
District 1

JANE G. SAULS
District 2

jOHN DAILEY
District 3

BRYAN DESLOGE
District 4

BOB RACKLEFF
District 5

CLIFF THAELL
At-Large

ED DePUY
At-Large

PARWEZ ALAM
County Administrator

HERBERT W.A. THIELE
County Attorney
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Board of County Commissioners
301 South Monroc Sireet, Tallahassee, Florida 32801 ‘

{850) 608-5302 www.leoncountyfl.gov

January 12, 2007

Bond Community Health Center
T.R. Richards, Executive Director
872 W. Orange Avenue
Tallahassee, FL 32310

Dear Mr. Richards:

During the January 9, 2007 board meeting, the Leon County Board of County
Commissioners requested that your organization, among others, give a presentation of
the services you provide to the community. A Healthcare Workshop ‘has been
scheduled for March 13, 2007 from 12:00 p.m. until 3:00 p.m. in the County
Courthouse Chambers. It is requested that information be provided in preparation for
the workshop. Please submit the following to Andrea Simpson, Director of Health

and Human Services by February 23, 2007:

Mission of Organization

List of Programs and Services Provided

List of Population Served

Number of Leon County Residents Served:

Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of

expenses by services/programs

List of staff positions associated with services/ programs

Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit
_ process procedures. ‘
8. List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare
Funding and include statistics.

N

N o

Should you require additional information or if you need any assistance, please
contact Andrea Simpson, Director of Health and Human Services at 850-606-1900.

Sincerely, :

CZ «w—g—-ﬂaﬂﬁu
Parwez Alam
County Administrator

An ecual ocoovortunity emplover




Commissioners

BILL PROCTOR
District 1

JANE G. SAULS
District 2
JOHN DAILEY
District 3
BRYAN DESLOGE
Disirict 4

RODB RACKLEFF
District 5
CLIFF THAELL
At-Large

ED DePUY
At-Large

PARWEZ ALAM.
County Administrator

MERBERT W.A. THIELE
County Atlorney
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Board of County Commissioners
301 South Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32501
(850) 606-5302 www.leoncountyfl.gov

January 12, 2007

Neighborhood Health Services

Inzlea Smith-McGlockin, Executive Director
438 W, Brevard St.

Tallahassee, FL 32301

Dear NIrs Smith-McGlockin:

During the January 9, 2007 board mecting, the Leon County Board of County
Comumissioners requested that your organization, among others, give a presentation of
the services you provide to the community. A Healthcare Workshop has been
scheduled for March 13, 2007 from 12:00 p.m. until 3:00 p.m. in the County
Courthouse Chambers. It is requested that information be provided in preparation for
the workshop. Please submit the following to Andrea Simpson, Director of Health

and Human Services by February 23, 2007:

Mission of Organization ,

List of Programs and Services Provided

List of Population Served

Number of Leon County Residents Served

Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of
expenses by services/programs

List of staff positions associated with services/ programs

Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit
process procedures. ' :
List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare
Funding and include statistics.

Should you require additional information or if you neced any assistance, please
contact Andrea Simpson, Director of Health and Human Services at 850-606-1900.

Sincerely,

Parwez Alam
County Administrator

An eausl ovvortunity emolover




Comumissioners

BILL PROCTOR
District 1

JANE G. SAULS
District 2

JOHN DAILEY
District 3

BRYAN DESLOGE
District 4

BOB RACKLEFF
District 5

CLIFF THAELL
At-Large

ED DePUY
At-Large

FARWEZ ALAM
County Administrator

HERBERT W.A. THIELE
County Attorney
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Board of County Commissioners

301 South Monroc Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301
(850) 606-5302 www.leoncountyil.gov

January 12, 2007

Capital Medical Society

Karen Wendland, Executive Director
1204 Miccosukee Rd

Tallahassee, FL 32308

Dear Mrs. Wendland:

During the January 9, 2007 board meeting, the Lecon County Board of County
Commissioners requested that your organization, among others, give a presentation of
the services you provide to the community. A Healthcare Workshop has been
scheduled for March 13, 2007 from 12:00 p.m. until 3:00 p.m. in the County
Courthouse Chambers. It is requested that information be provided in preparation for
the workshop. Please submit the following to Andrea Simpson, Director of Health

and Human Services by February 23, 2007:

Mission of Organization

List of Programs and Services Provided

List of Population Served

Number of Leon County Residents Served

Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of
expenses by services/programs

List of staff positions associated with services/ programs

Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit
process procedures.

List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare
Funding and include statistics. :

Should you require additional information or if you need any assistance, please
contact Andrea Simpson, Director of Health and Human Services at 850-606-1900.

Sincerely,

Parwez Alam
County Administrator

An eaual ovportunity emvlover




Attachmaint $ ?

Pape=1

_ 18Buo1 196uong BAIN 9dodd BuidieH,
_Ayunwiwod ay} 104 ‘Ajunwiwiod 3u} Ul

U] “JjUs) YljeaH AHunwwio) puog
. 01 SWODIBN




Attachment #

iy
T

T
22

A
St S A Ul

W

| -gs[jadxa pue S||I4S
jo abuel peoiq e oABl pue paAIss Sjuslfd
ay] JO aAljejUasaidal g osje jsn =1
-Ryioey 8y} Jo s19sn aq jsnul SiaquisLl

10 9,].G 919ym sjuapIise. Ajunwiwod

10 pesudwod st diysioqusiy ‘uoneziueblo
. ay J0 sainpaooid pue saioljod

sy seysijgelse pue Ayjgisuodsal Aeronply
sey 1ey} s1030a.iq o pieog AJejunjoA
1aqwswi {7 e Aq pausanob st QHOg -

9OUBUISAOD)




<

Attachment #
Vage_ 4

SOOIAISS BUj} JO BWOS puedxs 0} S,08 8y} Ul

fauow paas papiroid assseye|el JO Ao

oy| "peleuop alom SadIAISS foewleyd
pue |eoipaul |[e ‘sjeah Aes aul U .

‘eale siy) J0 Susziio

ay} Joy ay] 1o Ayenb sy} eroidw 0} S,0L61

ay) Ul Alunwiwod puog Y} Ul SUSZRIO

PaUISOUOD JO Loy sjooisseld e Jo 1onpoid

ay) SI ou| ‘18lue yjesH Ajunwwod puog -

AJO1ISIH




Attachment #__F

‘aJen YyesH Aewd j0 neaing 8y} JO
suoneloadxe aouewopad sy Ag pauIan0b
| pue pajejolp ale Jejusd Sy 0 saJnpedold
| Bunelado plepuels pue SOOINIBS ||V
| "V
$90IM9S U)esH 2lldnd 8u} 40 80tk Uol}09s
Jopun (QHD4) J8e) uiesH pauliend
__ Klesopad e se sjesado 0 (YSHH)
| uoNeJISIuIWLPY SeOIAI9S pue S8dIN0SsY
yjlesH ‘ele) yjesH Arewnd jo neaing SN
sy} woyj Buipuny peaieoal puog ‘#6861 Ul




fed o1 Aupige J1ayy Jo ssejp.iebal
‘sdnoJB 21LLOU0280100S JOMO| BY}

10} UI82U00 Jejnolued ypm sedlAIeSs Ul esy
Awey ‘anisusyaidwod ‘Ajenb 150401y
ay) 0} sseooe Buipiroid Ag s8iUNOD
‘Buipunoins pue uos Jo sjuspisal 8y} Jo
Butaq [[om [eaiBojoyohsd pue [e1oosoyoAsd

‘enyuids ‘[eaisAyd syp aroidwi o

1USLLIS)EIS UOISSIN




Aep\ papun

1UN0Y ) U097
oosseye|e] jo AlD
uaswyeda yiesH |1ed07
0OdQ) YyesH jo juswiedaq 8je)
HIN) UlleaH jo ajnjijsuj |euohie

_ (VS¥H) uonessiuip
S9OIAI9S PUB S801N0SaY U)|es

$821n0g bulpun4




L Yl |

E ) A L WL 1

Atachment 3

=

aoJawo) Jo JAqueyd

(SHdN) SeoIMIag UBWNH 10} sJauled PajIuN

(VAOW) UONeIoossy juswabeuey dnoig) [EQIPOIN

(YOHD) @ouely s1ajuad yiesH Aunwuiod

(OHOV4) s1ejua) yjeaH AJunwiwog JO UOHeId0SSY EPLIO|

AOIO,QZV siajuad yjjesH Aunwiwo) Jo uolelaossy |eUOneN

suoneziuebio Joquisy pled




Atracihinei g

8

pl ‘el ‘2L ‘20°LL ‘10711 200l ‘L0°0} 9

‘G ‘p ‘|, S}0BI| SNSuUs) 8Je sedly SIAIBS
fiewd JHOg ‘luswulanog [elspe4 sy}

01 BUIPJODoY "8IS YINOS 8y} Lo siseydwa yiim
“gasseye||e] jo AND 8y} sepnjoul eale 90IN9S
frewud JnQ 'sanunoo Buipunolins pue uosT
soAlas Jajuan) YlesH Ajlunwwo) puog

uonejndod 1061e |




P——

:—-Gi—ﬁ

Praes
e

Attacrineim # 3

fuiuaalodg
Aaqibigpuawapiul
uoneuodsuel)
dnouig poddng AlH
yoeasjnQ Ajunwiwio)
juswiofeuely ase)
uoljednp3 yjesaHy

~ S9JIAISG |e100S
suoneziunuwyj
swex3 |edisAyd

yoleasay J19oued

KB0j02auh9[soLd)sqO

o1ul[D sejeqeEld

aien Arewd SAIV/AIH
Bunsea]/buljasunod AlH
s991A19G AIBJIMPIN
auI21PaJA JUBISB|OPY
ouIdIPaN JlIBLIBYD)
auIdIpa\ dOM)elpad

QUIDIPA [Budlu]

auloIpal ad1noeld Ajwey

DAPINOIH SO2IAIBS



stachment £

o

oace 1O & _21

P epsdF ,
‘wdpo:8 0} Wepo:8 —
'u4 “pam “senl
“uopy ‘wdpQ:g 0} weQo:8 —
S92IA19S Y)edH

'GAY IONVHO ‘M 28 -

ZZ8 puog ...on m.._ 014 puog ‘

@ gl |2 @ 4 & b wdz 0} wepQ:6 Aepinjes —
N s B |2 Aepud 3
ap m&wm_._eo sl_J5_lal 'siny) wdoQ:S 0} Weoo:8 -~
e[ ows AN SN P “UOW .ano“%w@EM%%w _
sl X S80IM9S
2 yyeeH pue uonesjsiuiwpy

“3IAV 3ONVHO 'MOLL -

uoneltadQ JO SINOH @ S|B)S



13

anachment & L_.T

panBaeIun

ounje]/oluedsiH

SN
SAEN UeMse|y/UelpU]
ueslowyy

%EL

%l
JOVINIDHdd

uedlsuly Cmo_._ch\v_om_m

uelsy
ALIDINH13/30Vd

PaAJeg suolje|ndod




Il

dtachment F_ R

Page

%Gl %ol o 9)eAlld

"o 0%g 21e01paN

%9€ %ST PIEOIPSN

%0t ‘ %9 %V. U@.,_ SWC.._C D

s.9HD4 TYNOLLYN| S.OHD4 31VlS| aNo€g

snjejg seoueinsu| Aed paiul




a4

Attachment & 3

Dacy

c69'cz| 622'22| €¥'8)L| 2L 9L | yL6'Cl | SIBpUNooU

ozv'6| 9se'sl 169'Z| €629 0L0'G slos

900Z| S00Z| ¥00Z| €00Z| 2002
saley UIMOID) JBdA G




Attachwnent <

%9G" .

%666

sa)agelq

%618

%SY'6

%8 VT

uotsuanadAH

%602

%.6°})

%40°¢

BWIY)SY

S, OHD4 TVYNOLLYN

S,OHD4 ILVIS

aNO4d

sisoubelq Aq sJejunodug jo uouodold




Attachmaent # fg

o1 LGl €Tl poddng jual
9L T6') poddng [edIPs
0ce'z| 6ez'cl €86°2| AnAnonpold 19AS-PIN
qze'c|l 66Z'¥| 16E'Y| AHAIONPOId uerisAyd
| AjAlONPOId
Zle'y| 689'%| 998t wea| |edIps\
S, OHD4 | S.OHD4 |
TYNOILYN| 3LVLIS| ANO4

soney poddng g AlAIONPOId




P

nant @ ?

At

£LAN

palnsuiun ale %g6 —
y3 Jo Juanedul HIAL wouj paiidel 00} -
Juow/aJe9 Jsjus sjuaned mau 00Z

llep uaes ale sjualed ul-yjem Q¢

Alep

syuaned oz Joj sated ueisAyd 31 4 yoe3
~ Ayuow papusye ale syaned 0002

sabelany AlAlonpoid




Altashmant ?
CE |

Pl - |
IO

..ﬁ».\ O
&

(e120][9\ ‘218D U}ESH PaNUN ‘BISIA
‘aseJyjesH) suoneziueblQ sied pabeuep

aasseye|e. 10 A0

juswuedaq yiieeH |ed07]

yyeaH jo juswyeds( ejels

(4 dO) SMaIney soueuLIONSd leuonesadQ

's)ISIA 8IS onsouBelq soueldwo) (1vOd)
S]00 | Juswssassy aie) Alewud (¥30d)

SMOINSY SSOUSANO8YT 8IeD Aewld- YSHH
1PNy €€ -y 196png pue juswabieue JO 80O

s)pny soueljdwo) [enuuy




| *L00Z ‘¢ PUE
¢z Aenuepr pemainal 1se| -PSPNE] sem welbold yO/I100
lewssyur—sBuiputl [eolul|d onewweibold 10 aAle|sibeT
ON—MB3IABY 8IS [B18pa4 SAIV/AIH SHUM uely/|ll SML
90, 1des pamalAsl Jse| :90uel|dwod Ul 0/,06—M8INS!
D10D91 [EOIPSW 8SESSIp O1U0IYO—aleD UESH EISIA

90, ABIN pamainal ise| ‘aoueldwod %06—NPNY
uonez!|ln PUe SoUEWIONSd SIE||SM (eseqy}esH)

90, [1dy—pamainal jse| :aouel|dwod Ul %86—MBIASI
p109a1 [EOIPAUI BSESSIP o|u0Jyo—ale) YijeaH pauun

. . 90, AeN—pamalrel

1SB| ‘94,08 JO |B09) 8)e)S 8y} Spaaoxe Ajud)sISuocd
—-uaJp|Iy) 1o} supoepA—uoneziunwwi jo neaing—HOd

1PNy 8oueldwo) [enuuy




I VL) = O §

anachment B

Tl

‘pne |etoueuy aAnsed
e paAIadal Ajgjesedas om»_.m 18]ua9 8u) pies sy , sbulyy yesd op 0} Bupjoo

21 9\ ‘S1elS aI)jua 8y} Ing ‘AJUNLWIWOD BY] JOj AJUO Jou JaJuaD Yijesy |Spoul
ay) Buiag ol puog Buipying o} Aem Jno uo aJam ‘saka s,Aunnios jo 1o Ajuo
10U 31,90\, '€00Z AlE3 Ul suonesado s ajusd sy} JA0 400} OYM 'SPIeydly
pies ,‘aul| ul yoeq puog bulq 0} ajge ussq aA3M HJomwes] Jus||S0Xe WM,
| | 18210

SAIND9XD JIYo S,puog ‘SpJeydty “M'r pies ‘suladuod Jo Senss| SAl Ajuo pue
sabed OM] 0} UMOD Sem }SH 8y} ‘Jeak siy] "S9diAIeg uewny pue yjjeaH Jo
yuswpedaq "S’N 8y} Jo a1 Alewild J0 neaing sy} Wodj uladuod JO sanss!
10 181) 8b6ed-0Z B UM malAal Jey) woly pabisws Jajuad puog '200¢ U

| | 'spadxa Ayjioej-yjjeay

Aunwwod Ag Jaquia)dag 1se| Jipne [e1apa) Aep-aaly) e $10j0d Bulk))

Uum passed §i jey) Yaom ISE| IN0 punoj Jajuan yjjeaH Aiunwwo?) puog

€002 ‘.2 1equisdag-)esoows(g sesseyele |
Nv3&Ng 1011dY0 LYHOOW3Id YHIH 8uel(g

Jipne ul |[|om swiouad 19juad puog

4dO/IDd—euQ big 8y




3

sage RO of Y7

Gitachment #

770'ZL | slojunodou3 painsuiun

608'Y slas( painsuiun
Gz0'8l sjaunoou]
oKL s19S

PAAISS SJuapIsay AJunoD uoaT




R |

| W

-

értachment # q

650°181°1$ = G29'G8CS - #89'09%'1$ S! IlBJHOUS
'09.°'196$ = 08% X S4SjUNOOUS
270z}, (€10} pInom Buipuny 08$ 1e painsulun [je papuny Aunod au} |

'$89‘90Y* 1§ = 221 $ X SIS|UNOOUS
220 .:osm_:aoa painsuiun s AJUnNoo 8y} o} 89iAI8S apiacLd 0}

Allenuue $89'99y' 1§ Jajuad 8y} 100 ) 13)unoous Jad 1509 s,puog Iy

'60.192'L$ = 66'¥01$ X SiB|UNOoUS
72021 :|1eyop pinom Buipuny a1y eseg piedsipal QHD IV

'900¢2/500¢ U
sjuaned AJunod uoaT WOy SISJUNOOUS PaInsulun Zzo‘zl Pey puog

S18JUN0oUB 0G'E =08$/529'682$ J0 Buipun} Ajuno)
‘paInsulun ay) 1oy Jajunoous Jad 08¢ shed Ajunod

“Jejunoous Jad 'y LS S! 918y aseg predipaiy QHDL 8uL
'2Z1$ SI 423unosus 1ad 1500 S, QHDY

99IAI9S 10] 99
/002/90 Joenuo) AjJunod




=z

Sphmen # ?
re_ )

-

(14 4) sjeusyey
(L4 1) Awnoag/eoueusiuey
(14 1) Jomepueiu) yoseasay
(314 1) Bupig

(1d 1) spi00aY |BOIPAN

{14 ¥) spiocay [eVAPsRY

{(1Ld }) peOqUOIMS

(14 2) Isuewads axey|
Ud8) vy
(L47) ge
(d 1) N
(L4 1) Nd1

(14 §) Juejunooy ,
(Ld 1) oimpIn : 1
(L4 1) wesissy vepisiyd || C—— P (L4 }) JoBeusyy 858D 111 (14 2) siswepads sxejul

(Ld }) dNYY T (4 1) N ( 13 1) SPic0RY 1eIIPa

(14 1) dN"Y (L4 1) VNN

. (ueoep 1d L) uenyiepad HVA
JUE]S|SSY BAINDEX M

{14 1) YH/Wels|ssy aApN0ex3 {1d cemoun_ﬁ._ S (1d 1} NAS/BO g 1) NdT

{1d 1) NOQ ddhndl (14 1) YPERHNQHOIBUIPIO0D (4 1) ueprsiyg

(14 1) Agug ejeg (1) OND
(L4 1) uoneyodsuel) Ud ) o4 T e

(14 1) yoreRNQ/I0)EINPI AIH 4 1) o0d :
(1 1) sebeuep ssed AIH U41)03o

AVYO0Ud VD
AUVINIYL
ALNNOJ NO3T

WYY90ud

. NYd90dd
H1TV3IH SINIWOM

HOQ

SHY¥O0¥d ¥3HLO

SWVYO0Y¥d HLIM 31VID0SSY SNOILLISOd




e
©

'07) U0a

S0C0LLL  I8LERC £80°01E 8LLYS oSy 116 ¢

081'}4¢ 064 '46E

691'CIE TrAY uv'e 599'98¢

E'SL0'} W80

- 0L£'528 04€'5%8

. | 608'29Z 608'792

- 182'682 182'87
0 Keing SUowiop,  pepueny 300z

'09U037  HOQ EpUO}

anuaAs! pue Joddns g0}

aLLOoUl JBUO
PIEdIpaN
‘BNUBASY JBUI0

BLOOU] JUBIS) JAYI0
(0 woy Buwgorew 50g'p0) sapriau)
Weap jo juawyedaq epuojd
(pjesy S,ustuop Auno) uos
alen feuiud Auno) uos
‘ '3LI09U| JUBlS)
BNUBAIY

9002 ‘0¢ aunf papus Jesp
weibosd Aq sanialoy

"9 '1aus) YijesH Runuiwo? puog




Srmehment #.j_

Sar

£9v'8vl £oY'8Y! awodut 18N
99.'816') 182682 £0'gle 18L1¥S 816°590' sasuadxs ej0)
52957 529's uofereitaq
£09'9 2099 sasuadxs JoyI0
(Bs5's2) 685's2 wawdinbo pezietoads
9bL'ss 012'82 076'c8 poddns Jajndwod
S8%'0F 009' $90'9Y aoueus)uieut pue sieday
00L'L} £66'c £69'12 5500 bunjeyiep
ov9's} 768’9 866'G2 SUORBOILUNLILIOD
8hp's) A S99} |BUOISS3)0Id
066'} Z9E'9 26¢'92 aoueInsy|
¥80'Ly 00L'L} ¥8.'%9 §1500 oedg
AV 8519l Gov'28 sasuadxa eay0
9eTTY 006" oEL'sh {anel|
2)'9E 02Z'te 4£'09 10Q€] J0BUOD
£v5'82 . £v5'82 $J500 [BOIPOLY JBYI0
PoL'LL 18202} [A4 A" £68°102 593} 0]
9T L0} GhL'L2 606'8 2v8'0ze sBup pue sayiddns |ealpepy
595'p9} y98'p2 600'%2 1SH'yS 698'£92 sjyauaq abuuy
y26'97¢'} 9g1's} 008'8€2 688'972 GpL'268') [Buuosiag -
‘sesuady
JEITT) Kewid 5,00WOM EEE] 9007
'00 109 '09 U0 HOQ epuold |

9002 ‘0€ Sunf papud Jeas
wesboid Aq seniagoy
"ou| 19U ueaH Awunuio) puog




SSy'LI6C

§59'09%'€

Sv0'04L

¥es1El'

064'18¢
658'88¢

6ES 0rL
686°06€

O0bY'ip)T

JEL6IET

¥p6'20'}
04€'628
608'292
187'¢82

9002

152'682'4
006'862

08¥'0v.

5002

anuaAa; pue poddns jejol
SNUBA3I [E10
1Byo
Pledlpay
‘9NUBABY JYI0
Hoddns je101
YO
Yesy j0 juswiedaq epuoj4
L}iesH s,usLop Alunon) uoaT
aJen) Areuind Aunos) uoa
‘aLooU| Juels
;aNUaNGY

8002 Pue GOOZ 0¢ aunf papu3 siesp
JUSWRNE}S BLedU| pajipny
U 1OW9Y) UjeaH Auntutuo) puog




s

Attachmsnt # ?

&
(€ov SV 1) 060282 . | ewooul JeN
816'590°C G981 € sasuadxe |20
§29'GZ 629'sZ uoneroasdaq -
109'9 L29'Y (sysem |eoipajy) sesuadxa SO
- ops'es , asuadxe jq9p peq
gz6'en £v6'08 poddns ssindwo)
- oL’ - asuadxa }sai9u)
$80'ov 18Y'8) agueusjuiewl pue siieday
£69°'L2 810'6 51500 Bunayiep
866'GC 0.8'vC SUONEDIUNLILIOYD
8PY'SI 1S6'€L S99} [BUOISSB)0.d
z6ee'9g £85'ze ‘ - 8oueinsy
¥8.L'v9 8y0'2L s}s00 9oedg
cov'L8 66’10l sasuadxs 9910
ocL'sp Siv'0L LojeINpa PUe [9ABS]
¥e'09 ¥9Z'8st , loqe| 19eU0D
eys'8z . 18L'¢ ‘ 1509 (B2IPaW B0
£68°102 8Se'LLe $99} ge|
Zre'oze £61'SeE sBrup pue sayddns [esipap
698'292 - /86'28Z siyeuaq abu4
SvL'ees') 811'62S't | jauuosiad
:sesuadx3y
9002 ¢00¢
900Z PuUe GOOZ 'QE dunp pSpu3 sieaj
JUSWIYE)S SLI0DU| pANpNY
"ouj ‘Jejuan yitesH Aunwiwo) puog




Attacimen' ¥

=

—Pa

'000'Ge$ Jo

sso0x8 Ul Juswdinbs pazijeoads Jo mwm;o.sa au} 10} papinold
'sbBn.ip pue ss||ddns |edjpsw ul 000‘0G$ J9A0 1O} PSPIACIA
's99) A10)e10QE| Ul BGY'96$ 10} POPIACI

‘PIBDIPSIA] WO BNUBASL [euolippe Ul 989°'G/$ palelsuss)
‘Buipun} [esaps} pue 8iels ul G90'LLY$

|euoljippe ue 10} pamojje 1ey} spuny Buiyojew papinoid

‘yeys yoddns pue [eoaipaip Jo Buliy ayj o) papIACId

'SJuepisal Ajlunon) UosT

painsuiun gOg‘Yy 0} S2IAISS aledyjjesH Alewilid PapIACId

Buipun4
bc:oo ybno.uy) sjuswysidwoooy







tchment 2 A

T VA M R Y

/=Y
LEgE Neighborhood
Health Services, Inc. 3

438 West Brevard Street, Tallahassee, FL 32301

NHS’ Response to Information requested by Leon County Commissioners:

Neighborhood Health Services (NHS) is committed to improving the well being of the
community by providing the highest quality medical services to anyone who meets the federal
poverty gu:dchnes We fully realize that our program literally has made a life or death -
difference in the lives of some of our commumty s citizens. There are many who view us as
their only means of medical service provision and look to us for primary care as well as referrals
for other services not provided by NHS. In order to meet these growing demands, we are
aggressively seeking to expand our services to the community. By expanding those services,
those uninsured or underinsured members of our community can receive as wide a variety of
services through NHS as someone with insurance can from their primary care provider. As a
result, public support provided by county funding is crucial in subsidizing the cost of providing
affordable medical and mental-health services to the Leon County community.

In order to bridge the gap that currently exists between income and expenses, NHS is seeking
county funding.

This support will enable us to provide services to a predictable 2,000 unduplicated medical
encounters for Leon patients in 2007/08. This level of service will have a huge impact on the
“health of families being served and their ability to become wage earners in the community.

Request One: Mission Statement —

NHS Mission:
The mission of Neighborhood Health Services is to serve those in need by providing and

© facilitating access to care and by enhancing the health of individuals through education,
prevention, and outreach. NHS is committed to serving clients with respect and compassion.

Request Two: List of Programs and services provided —

Neighborhood Health Service provides an array of health care services provided by Medical
Professionals to uninsured low-income and no-income members of the community who would
not or could not otherwise access them. The medical clinic services, which are provided by
appointment and on a walk-in basis, include:

Primary Care

Urgent care

Checkup & Physmals

Diabetes & Hypertension Management
Breast & Cervical Cancer Screening
Lab services
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= Social services
NHS in House Specialty Clinics

Most services are provided at the NHS clinic facility, but a few are more effectively delivered in
providers’ offices (e.g. dentists, optometrists) after initial screening is done at NHS.

Orthopedic

Optometry

Dermatology

Endocrinology

Nutrition

GYN

Mental Health

Dental Screening

Health and fitness classes

Qutreach to and transportation from un-served and underserved areas

 Request Three: List of Population Serviced —

Population Serviced by counties:

Leon County 1853
Gadsden County 152
Jefferson County 24
Wakulla County 47
Franklin County 3
Homeless /Others 20
Total 2,109
Population Serviced By Gender:
Female 1312
Male ,‘ 797
Total 2,109

Request Four: Number of Leon County Residents Serviced

In FY 2005/2006, NHS provided healthcare services to 1,853 unduplicated healthcare visits to
Leon County residents. The average Leon County patient visited NHS 2.42 times a year for
healthcare services. As a result 4,492 resident visits were paid for by Leon County funding.

Request Five: Analysis of Funding Sources for Each Program and a Breakdown of expense by
services/programs —
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Medical Clinic Funding-Sources 05/06:

Iléeon County - Board of County $424.234
ommissioners
DOH $142,500
ommunity Human Service $118,400
Partnership (CHSP)
Sliding fees/Prescriptions/Other $ 57,438
fees
ontribution/fundraising $ 7,847
[Fund balance changes $ 30,531
| Total $780,950

Medical Clinic Funding-Expenses 05/06

ICornpensation and Benefits $622,629
F)ccupa.ncy/Util./Phoncs $ 33,537
fOfﬁce Supplies/Postage/Med. $ 42,687
Supplies

[Professional Fees $ 15,893
fnsurances $ 56,773
Equip. rental/ Maintenance $ 7,832
Staff development/meeting, etc. $ 1,599
Total $ 780,950

Request Six: List of staff positions associated with services/programs —

Bg¢

NHS has a total of seventeen employee positions. Fourteen positions are filled and three
positions are vacant and being advertised. There are total of ten full time positions and seven part

time positions.

Neighborhood Health Services offers an array of health care services that is provided by 2 paid
Medical Professionals a MD and an ARNP. Volunteer health professionals recruited from the

community also donate time.

=  Medical Staff of:

- 1 M.D. (Internist)

- 1ARNP

— 2LPNs
- 1CNA
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Phlebotomist (Part-time)

s Service related staff
3  Intake Specialists
Intake Specialist (Part time)
1  Medical Record Specialist
- Social Worker (Part time)
Data entry (Part time)

*  Admin. staff
1 Executive Director
1 Office Manager
Executive assistant (Part time)
Financial officer (Part time)

Request Seven: Financial and audit reports for FY2005 and FY2006 and include audit process
procedures. See attached

Request Eight:
List of accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare Funding and include statistics

NHS accomplishments through Leon County Primary Healthcare Funding are as follows:

NHS provided service to 1,853 unduplicated patients. In the process of providing our services we
were able to make an impact on the suffering of chronic diseases in Leon County as listed below.
The numbers listed below represent duplicated services:

Provided service for 895 Diabetes visits

Provided service for 412 Obesity visits

Provided service for 1679 HTN

Other accomplishment not tracked automatlcally by funding sources
1450 Lab visits
229 Specialty care visits
215 Dental visits
- 158 optometry visits
432 Social services visits
349 Case Mgt visits

InFY 2005/2006,_NHS’ clinic provided healthcare to a total of 2,109 patient visits to 7190
duplicated patients.
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NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
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JAMES MOORE & CO.,P.L.

CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCC_)UNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors,
Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.
as of September 30, 2005, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Neighborhood Health Services,
Inc.’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Neighborhood Health Services, Inc. as of September 30, 2005, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 9,
2005, on our consideration of Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
- internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be

considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Tallahassee, Florida
November 9, 2005
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NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
' SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
- ASSETS
Current assets _

" Cash and cash equivalents $ 102,713
Grants and contracts receivable : : 141,888
Unconditional promise to give 118,400 -
Inventory 573,272
Prepaid expenses ' -20,931

Total current assets ‘ 957,204
Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated :
depreciation of $34,686 © 20,518
Total Assets _ § 977,722
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities ‘ :
Accounts payable and accrued expenses e 3 16,450
Net assets
Temporarily restricted ‘ 118,400
Unrestricted . 842 872
Total net assets ‘ ' 961,272
Total Liabilities and Net Assets ' $§ 977,722

The accompanying notes to financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.

-2-
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NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 340, 2005

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Support and revenues :
Charges for services 80,757 - 80,757
Grants and contracts ' - 712,560 - 712,560
Contributions ' 6,400 118,400 124,800
In-kind 2,855,217 - 2,855,217
Net assets released from restrictions 126,782 (126,782) -
Total support and revenues _ 3,781,716 {8,382) 3,773,334

Expenses
Program services , 3,507,550 3,507,550

Administrative services 110,172 110,172

Total expenses 3,617,722 - 3,617,722

. Increase (decrease) in net assets 163,994 {8,382) 155,612

Net assets, beginning of year 678,878 126,782 805,660

Net assets, end of year 342 872 $§ 118,400 $ 961272

The accompanying notes to financial statements
arc an integral part of this statement.

-3.
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- Personnel

Travel

Communication and utilities
Printing and supplies
Matenals

Repairs and maintenance
Professional fees
Advertising

Insurance
Depreciation
Other
Total expenses

. Page_ L) of |lp
NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC,
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
. Program Administrative
Services Services Total
£ 607,324 90,750 698,074
1,951 292 2,243
9,647 1,442 11,089
15,597 2,331 17,928
63,536 - 63,536
8,467 1,265 9,732
10,035 1,499 11,534
2,629 393 3,022
26,326 2,289 28,615
2,695,711 - 2,695,711
. 51,963 7,765 59,728
6,901 1,031 7,932
7,463 . 1,115 8,578
$ 3,507,550 110,172 3,617,722

The accompanying notes to financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.

-4-




NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from grantors and others 875,553
Cash paid to employees and vendors (928,146)
Net cash used in operating activities o (52,593)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of equipment (7,931)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ' (60,524)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ‘ 163,237

Cash and cash cquivalents, end of year ) s 102,713

Reconciliation of increase in net assets to net cash used

in operating activities ~ _

Increase in net assets © 155,612

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net

cash used in operating activities: ,

Non cash donations of inventory (159,505
Depreciation 7,932

Increase in prepaid expcnses (9,802)

" Increase in grants and contracts receivable {42,565)

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses - (4,265,;
Total adjustments ‘ (208,20

Net cash used in operating activities L 3 ' (52,593)

Suplemental schedule of non-cash investing activites:
During the year ending September 30, 2005, the Organization rccelved a donation of
inventory with a value of $159,505.

The accompanying notes to financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.

-5-




NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
‘ SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

(]) S [S- -ﬁ I ! It E ln 3 -

"l"he following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies and practices of Neighborhood
Health Services, Inc. (the “Organization™) which affect” significant clements of the accompanying
financial statements:

(a) Nature of Organization—Neighborhood Health Services, Inc. (the “Organization™), a
nonprofit organization, provides health care services to uninsured Jow-income and no-income
individuals through a reduced fee medical clinic offering primary care, dental, eye care, mental
health, and hypertension programs. The Organization also offers health education, medical social
services, and an in-house pharmacy.

(b) -Furniture and Equipment—Fumiture and equipment with a value greater than $500 and an
estimated useful life of at least one year are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair market value
when contributed. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, ranging from five to seven years.

(¢) Incomé Taxes—The Organization is generally exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made in
the accompanying financial statements. : '

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents—TFor the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and amounts in demand deposits held with banks.

(¢) Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported arnounts and disclosures, Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

‘ (f) Basis of Accounting—The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, and accordingly, reflect significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

{(g) Basis of Presentation—Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, 1emporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets.

(h) Contributions—All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or
restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support that increases these net asset classes. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the
same time period in which the contribution is received, the entity reports the support as
unrestricted.
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NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Contimied)

(i) Contributed Facilities, Services and Other Support—Contributed services requiring
specialized skills are reported as support and expenses at their estimated fair value in the period in
which they are donated. Such non-cash contributions are recorded as in-kind revenue and in-kind
expense in the Statement of Activities and the Statement of Functional Expenses. In addition,
donated services with a value of approximately $29,458 were not recognized in the financial
statements because they did not meet the criteria for revenue recognition under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116.

The Organization also receives donated pharmaceutical products and medical supplies. The donated
pharmaceutical products are teported as in-kind revenue and inventory at their estimated fair
market value in the period in which they are donated. The medical supplies are reported as in-kind
revenue and in-kind expense at their estimated fair market value in the period in which they are
donated.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at fair value at the date of donation. In the absence
of donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets must be used, the entity
has adopted a policy of implying a time restriction on contributions of such assets that expires over
the assets’ useful lives; consequently, all contributions of property and equipment, and of the assets
contributed 10 acquire property and equipment, are recorded as restricted support or contributions
with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets must be used are
recorded as restricted support; otherwise, the contributions are recorded as unrestricted support.

() Functional Allocation of Expenses—The costs of providing the various programs and other
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited,

(k) Advertising Costs—Advertising costs are charged to operations in the period incurred.

() Inventory—Inventory consist primarily of pﬁarmaccutica] products held for resale and is
staied at Jower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

(m) Accounts Receivable—Accounts recejvable are stated at the amount management expects to

" collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Based on management’s assessment of the credit
history with customers having outstanding balances and cwrent relationships with them, it has
concluded that realization Josses on balances outstanding at year-end will be immaterial.

@ C . { Credit Risks
The more significant concentrations of credit risk are as follows:

() Demand and Time Deposits—The Organization maintains cash deposits with one financial
institation. The Organization has no policy requiring collateral to support its cash deposits,
although accounts at the bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$100,000. As of September 30, 2005, the Organization’s total uninsured cash balance was $42,389.

-7-
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NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

@ Co . { Credit Risk: '

(b) Grants and Contracts Receivable—The Organization’s reccivables are for amounts due
under grants and contracts with the State of Florida and local government -agencies. The
Organization has no policy requiring collateral or other security to support its receivables.

3) Pension Plan:

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution pension plan. Contributions to the plan for 2005
totaled $11,403.

(4) Significant Funding Sonrces:

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its funding from the State of Florida Department of -
Health and Leon County, Florida. A significant reduction in the level of this funding could have an
adverse effect on the Organization’s programs and activities.

(5) Contingency:

The Organization is a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a past employee for alleged employment
discrimination. The Organization denies the material allegations of the complaint. No estimate of the
possible loss if any can be made at this time.




JAMES MOORE & CO., P.L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors,
Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.:

We have audited the financial statements of Neighborhood Health Services, Inc. as.of and for the year
ended September 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated November 9, 2005. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting in order to detérmmine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not 1o provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not-
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be matenial weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reporiable condition in which the design or operation of one or-more of the intemal control

" components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned

~ functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Neighborhood Health Services, Inc.’s financial

‘statemnents are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of Jaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reporied under Government Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, and . -
others within the organization and is not intended 1o be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
%MM rtone £ C

Tallahassee, Florida
November 9, 2005
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Leon County Commission Healthcare Workshop
We Care Network

Mission

The mission of the Capital Medical Society Foundation is to support the
charitable efforts of physicians and others, increase access to healthcare,
promote education and serve the community’s health needs through innovative
projects that are exemplary, affordable and dignified.

It is the mission of the Capital Medical Society Foundation's We Care Network to
provide timely access to appropriate specialty medical care for the low income,
medically underserved persons in our community. The intent of this effort is to
improve outcomes and the quality of life for persons who otherwise may not get
the medical care they require.

Program We Care Network
Services

1. Specialty Medical Care

In 1892, the physicians of the Capital Medical Society (CMS) initiated the
We Care Network in an effort to provide a planned, organized approach to
managing the specialty medical care needs of low income, uninsured
patients. To date, these physicians, hospitals and other providers have
donated more than $32,551,280 million in free care to patients at 100% of
the Federal Poverty Guideline or below who cannot qualify for alternative
programs that might pay for the care they need.

In partnership with Tallahassee Memorial Hospital, Capital Regional
Medical Center and numerous ancillary medical providers, 315 iocal
physicians currently volunteer their time and expertise to patients who
qualify for the We Care Network. During the past year, this Network of
volunteer physicians and their partners provided $3,700,855 in free care to
qualified patients.

In order to provide specialty medical care, staff at the We Care Network:

» Recruit volunteer physicians and medical providers to donate
specialty medical care to low-income, uninsured patients from
Leon, Gadsden, Jefferson and Wakulla Counties.

* Provide case management to coordinate the delivery of donated
specialty medical care to qualified patients.

»  Provide short-term case management to assist patients to qualify
for alternative programs and obtain medical service
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2. Project Dental Care

In December 2003, the physicians of the We Care Network pattnered
with the Tallahassee Dental Association to create Project Dental Care.
This program was established to organize and deliver donated dental
services to patients whose health is adversely affected by dental

conditions.

In order to provide donated dental care to qualified patients, staff at the
We Care Network: _ ‘
» Recruit volunteer dentists to donate dental care to qualified
patients.
Provide case management to coordinate the delivery of donated
dental care to qualified patients in the offices of volunteer dentists
Coordinate Dental Clinic Day six times each year to deliver donated
extractions and fillings to an additional 120 dental patients at the

Leon County Dental Facility.

‘3. Patient Assistance Fund

In 2003, the We Care Network created the Patient Assistance Fund.
This fund was established to help purchase medications, bus passes
and transportation for We Care patients who have no alternatives.

In order to purchase medications and provide transportation, staff at the
We Care Network:
= Provide case management to assist more than 350 patients to

apply for Pharmaceutical Patient Assistance Programs each year.
Case managers utilize grant funding to purchase prescriptions for
approximately 200 patients each year.
Case managers provide up to 100 bus passes that assist qualified
patients with transportation to and from medical appointments.
Case managers utilize grant funding to pay for transportation to and
from medical appointments for patients who live outside bus routes.

Population Served

This program serves the medically underserved, low income, uninsured residents
of Leon, Gadsden, Jefferson and Wakulla Counties. The Florida Health
Insurance Study, released in 2005 by the Agency for Health Care Administration
provides the most specific and up to date information on our target population.
This study indicates the number of uninsured in Leon County is among the
lowest in our state (7.7%) However, this still means that 18,023 Leon County
residents are uninsured. The study also indicates that Gadsden County has the
highest uninsured rate in the state 36.2% (14,791 residents). Jefferson County
has 2,401(20.7%) uninsured, and Wakulla County has 4,556 (19.9%) uninsured




residents. These four counties, served by the We Care Network, are home to
39,771 uninsured residents.

Leon County Residents Served
During fiscal year2005/06, the We Care Network provided case management to

854 Leon County residents.

2006-07 Program Funding and Expenses

INCOME
T8 Community Human Services Parinerahi
2. Leon County Health Department
nited:\ Be

3 .eoﬁ Count CaféN

S o L

. $90,000.00

e

A £z ad

I

. "Miscellan  $8,868.80
Thd. Dol SHE00

$212,543.58

$8,023.0

.00

ansportation _ ~ " $850.00

Tl

$14,996




Staff Positions
Robin McDougali, LCSW Program Cocrdinator
Sandi Lodge : Case Manager

Laquita Williams Case Manager
LeTasha Screen Dental Case Manager

Accomplishments

1,129 Total new patients referred to the We Care Network

540 Referrals made by CareNet Pariners

250 CareNet patients determined to be eligible for the We Care Network
and provided with $1,651,705.00 in donated specialty medical care.

120 CareNet patients provided with short-term case management
Purchased $5,608 in medications for 181 CareNet patients

Assisted CareNet patients in applying for 348 Pharmaceutical Patient
Assistance Programs to obtain drugs at an estimated value of
$123,265.00




Capital Medical Society Foundation
Policies and Procedures

Name of Policy: Audit Process Procedures

Approved (signature):

Date: March 5, 2002

Date for review: January 2007 : e (Wend, (@\\

Purpose of the Policy: To be in compliance with accepted accounting procedures within
the office of the Capital Medical Society Foundation. To provide for an audit review
process between our accounting firm and the CMS Foundation governing body, the
CMS Foundation Board of Directors. And to be in compliance with State and Federal
requirements.

Procedure:

1. The accountant in the CMS Foundation office electronically downloads all the
CMS Foundation financials (on QuickBooks) to our CPA firm, Carroll and Co., via
the “RAS Transfer Tool” program. This is done periodically through the year and
is done at the end of our Fiscal Year (7/1 through 6/30).

2. All June bank statements (reconciled), copies of the State Unemployment forms
and Quarterly payroll 941 Returns are sent to the CPA firm for annual review.

3. Working together with our CPA firm, the accounting office at the CMS Foundation
goes over our inventory and deletes or adds any items, which were bought or
retired.

4. The CPA firm compiles the Form 990 as we are a 501(c) (3) company.

5. The CPA supplies us with a Working Trial Balance Report as of June 30™ eachr
year. They also provide us with a Five-Year Combined Statement Trend Report
that compares our Balance Sheet and Expense Reports.

6. Each year, the CMS Foundation applies for our State of Florida Corporation
License and our Solicitation of Contribution License through the Florida
Department of Agriculture. Every five years, we apply for the Sales Tax Exempt
(DR-14) license. |

7. The CMS Foundation compiles an operating budget each year and the CMS
Foundation Board of Directors votes to approve this budget. The Board meets
quarterly. The CMS Foundation also has a Finance Commitiee that meets twice
a year to review all investments and makes investment decisions based on our
investment Policy. Our CPA firm meets annually with the Board to review the
890 Form and the Five-Ysar Trent Report.
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| Form 990 _ Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
: Under section 501(c}, §27, or 4847(z)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
Depariment of the Treasuty ° o benefit trust or private foundsation .
internal Revenue Service P The orgznizefion mey have 16 use 2 copy o!r:g:s return o sat‘sfy ltate reporling reguirements.
A Forthe 2005 calendar year, or tax year beainning _7/01/05  andending 6/30/06
B Checkif spplicable: | P1¥252 | ©  Name of orgenization D Employer identification no.
] ddresschange | ey o0 _ 59-2104510
:l Name change print or CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 7 E Telephone number
j Initial returs t;z:- Number and street (or P.O. box if maeil is not delivered 1o sireet address) Rocm/suite B50-877-2018
’ comrc| 1204 MICCOSUKEE ROAD F_ Accounting method:|_| Cash
] Final retum Instruc- City or town, state or coundry, and ZIP + 4 ] Accrusl h Other (specify)
___l Amended return tions. TALLAHASSEE FL 32308 Ji
:] Application pending » Section 501(c){3) organizations and 4947(a}{1) nonexempt charitable H and | are not applicsble 1o section 527 oiganizations.
trusts must attach a completed Schedule A {Form 980 or 990-E2). H{g) Is this  group return for affiistes? D Yes @ No
3 Website: » N/A H(b) 1 *Yes" enter number of effliates P .
I Organization type H{c) Are an affiliates included? Yes No
(check only.one} . » E(_I 501{c) { 3 ) < (insert no.) ﬂ 4947(a}(1) or f—l 527 © {H"No,” ettach a lis. See instr.)
{ Checkhere W D if the organization's pross receipts are normally not more than $25,000. The H(d) !5 this & separate return filed by an '
crganization need not file & return with the IRS; but If the organization chooses 1o file & return, be organizatien covered by & group ruling? |_| Yes H No
sure to file @ complete return. Scme states regquire & complete retum. I Group Exemption Number >
: ‘ . M Check P [ ] ifthe organization is not required
Gross receipts: Add lines 6b, 8b, 8b, and 10bto line 12 P 329,15¢% to attach Sch. B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).
. Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See the instructions.
1 Coniributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received: i
a Direct public support | ................................................... 13 129,170t
b Indirect publicsupport | ib ' gc.ug;-
¢ Govemmentcontributions (grants) . l1c 127,861}
d Total (add lines 1a through 1c) (cash  $ 257,031 noncash § 257,031
2  Program service revenue including goverhmenl fees and contracts (from Part VII, line 93)
3 Membership dues and 8SeSSMENIS ... .. i s ' -
4 Inlerest on savings and temporary cash investments 9,379
5 Dividends and interest from SECURBEE . L .. .. ..\t trere e e s e s e aennns
88 Grossrents e 6e
b Léss:fentalexpenses . . | See Statement 1 6b
¢ Netrental income or (loss) (sublract line 6b from line 6a) ... i 16,191
° 7 Otherinvestment income (desctibe I Y
= 8a Gross amount from sales of assets other (A} Securities
g thaninventoy ... ‘ 2
k Less: cost or ather basis and sales expenses | 8h
¢ Gain or (loss) {attach schedwie) | Bc
d Net gain or {loss) (combine line 8¢, columns (Ayand (B)) . . ... ... ... ... .
9  Special events and activities {(attéch schedule). if any amount is from gaming, check here > D
a Gross revenue (not including § ' of
" contributions reported online 18) ... %a
b Lless: direct expenées other than fundraising expenses ., 9b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from special events {subtract line b from line 9a) ., ... et 24,033
10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and aliowances . 10a '
b Less:costofgoodssold .. .. ... SNSRI 100
¢ Gross profit or (luss) from sales of inventory (atiach schedule) (subtract fine 10b from iine 10a) .. ...,

11 Other revenue (from Part VIl fine 103) ... ... U OU ST TSSO RSSO PP SRR ORURR PSR 33

12  Total revenue (add lines 1d, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6¢, 7, 8d. 9¢, 10¢c, and 11) 306,667

13 Program services (ffom fine 44, Solumn (B)) | ... ........iieiiiiiii 226,179
% | 14 Mensgement and general (from fine 44, column (C)). . __............ SO UT TS SRR U TR 16,420
§ | 6 Fundraising (from line 44, column (D)) || ..o
| 16 Payments to affiliates (atftach schedulel | _.._.................cccceiiii '

17  Total expenses (add lines 16 and 44, column(A)} o L _ 242,589
£ | & Excess or (deficit) for the year {subiract line 17 fromiiine 12) 6£,068
? 18  Nel assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 73, column{AYY 430,818
g | 20 Otherchanges in nef assets or fund balances (attachexplanation) . ... . . . ... ... .. ...
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. ' IRS e-file Signature Authorization
Form 8879-E0 for an Exempt Organization OMB No, 1545-1878
' For calender year 2005, or fiecel year beginning 7 / 031 , 2005, and ending 6 / 30 . 20 06
¥ Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2 0 O 5
Depariment of the Treasury -
internal Revenue Service : P See instructions,
Return 1D (20-digit number) }
Name of exempt erganization ‘| Employer identification number
CAPITAL MEDICAL SOQCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510

Name and title of officer KAREN WENDLAND

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
: Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)
Check the box for the retum for which you are using this Form 8879-EC and enter the applicable amount from the return if
any. If you check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a or 5a below and the amount on that line for the return for which you are
filing this form was blank, then leave line.1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank {do not enter -0-). But, if you
eniered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more than 1 line in Part 1.

1a Form 990 check here P Total revenue, if any (Form 990, line 42y e 1b 306,667
Za Form 990-EZ check here P b Total revenue, if any (Form 890-EZ,line 8y . . . . 2b
3a‘ Form 1120-POL check here b Totaltax (Form 1120-POL, line 22y . . . . . . . . . . 3b
4a Form $90-PF check here de b Tax Based on Investment Income (Form 990-PF, Part V1, line 5) ... 4b
53 Form 8368 check here P b Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3c) &b

Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the organization’s
2005 electronic teturn’and accompanying schedules and statements and 1o the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true,
correct, and complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the organization's
electronic return. | consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the
arganization's return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the
rransmission, (b) an indication of any refund offset, {c) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (d) the date
of any refund. if applicable, | auvthorize the 1.5, Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal
‘direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organizalion'’s
“ederal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must
zontact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-B88-353-4537 no later than 2 business deys prior to the payment (setliement) date.
also authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential
nformation necessary to answer inquiries and resofve issues related 1o the payment. | have selecled a personal identification number
PIN) as my signature Tor the organization's electronic return and, if applicable, the organization's consent to electronic funds

vithdrawal.,
Jtficers PIN: check one box only
x | authorize carr°11 and C'ompany, CPAs to enter my PIN 17777} 5 my signature

. "EROQ firm name do not enter al) zeros
on the organization's tax year 2005 electronically filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return
is being filed with a stale agency(s) regulating charities as pari of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the
aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen.

D As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signsture on the organization's tax year 2005 electronically
" filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a stale agency(s) regulating
charitaries as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | witl enter my P1 the return’s disclosure tonsen! screen.

Hicers signature P | -«w\ l\ d

“Certification and Authentication

bee b _10/26/06

‘RO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit EFIN followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. | 59202577777
: do not enter all zeros

cerlify that the above numeric entry is my FPIN, which is my signature on the 2005 electronically filed retumn for the crganization

dicated above. | confirm that | am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub, 4206, Information for

wthorized IRS e-file Providers of Exempt Qrganization Filings,

RC's signature P /7 /ﬁv Q/‘j? 2 Date ¥ // 2" 7 w5

/

L ERQ Must Rstain This Form - See instructions
Do Not Submit This Form To the IRS Unless Requested Ta Do So

or Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form, fForm 8878-ED r2008
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ng,g%%%ﬁ%%%%fs earITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 55-2104510
. Statement of Al organizations must complete column (A). Celumns (B), (C), and (D) are required for seciion 501{c)(3) and (4)
Functional Expenszes orgahizations end section 4847(2)(1) nonexempt cheritzble trusts but opticnz! for others. (See the instructions.)
Do not include amounts reporied on line {8} Frogram {C} Menagement
6b, 8b, 8b_10b, or 16 of Part I. (A) Totsl services snd genersl
Grants and allocations (eftach schedule)
{cash § cash s
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here [ 4
Specific assistance tc: individuals (aftach

109,253

Pension plan contributions

Other employee benefits 7,581

8,300

_Accounting fees
“Legal fees
Supplies

.4 Totsl functional expenses. Add lines 22
through 43, {Crganizations completing
.columns (B)-(D), carry these totais to lines

13-15) 44. 242,599 226,179 0

Ioint Costs. Check P D if you are following SOF 98-2. - )
\re any joint costs from a cembined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation reported in (B) Program services? > D Yes @ No
; (ifj the amount aliocated to Program services §

! *yes,” enter (I} the agoregate amount of these joint costs §

{if) the smount aliocated 1o Mensgement and general $ . and (iv) the amount allocated 1o Fundraising $

Form 990 (2008)
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Form 990 (2005) CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510
SHE  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.) .

Form 990 is eveilebie for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primary or tole source of information zbout &
particutar crganizstion. How the public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented
on its return. Therefare, please make sure the return is complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part |1, the organizalion's'
programs and accomplishments. :

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose?
» Provide health education and assistance

......................................................................................................................

All organizations must describe their exemnpt purpose achievernents in a clear and concise manner. State the number
of clients served, publications issued, etc. Discuss achlevements that are not measurable. (Section 501(c)(3} and (4)
organizations and 4947(a}{1) nonexempt tharitable trusts must slso enter the amount of grants and allocations 1o others.)

Program Service
Expenses
{Required for 501(c)(3) &
(4) orgs., & 4947(a)(1)
{rusts; but optional for
others.}

190,319

gG-r.a;'\.té and .a-liocalions $ ' ) .I.f thls amounlmcludes .foreign grants, check here D
b Provides scholarships funds to qualified medical ST :

23,000

12,860

{Grants and allocations  § ) ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here » D

e Other program services (attach schedule) _
{Grants and allocations__ $ ) If this amount includes foreian grants, check here P D

f Total of Program Service Expenses {should equal line 44, column (B), Program services)

226,179

Form 990 (2005)
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‘orm 950 (2005) CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-210451C reae &
Thaaw.  Balance Sheets (See the instructions.)
Note: WWhere required, atiached schedules and smounte within the description {A) (8
column should be for end-of-year zmounts only. Eeginning of year End of year
4S5  Cash-non-interestbearing ... 5,106 183
46 Sevings and temporary cashinvestments 330,077 371,055
47a Accounts receivable .............................
b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 9,859]|47c 24,454
S v
b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 48¢c
49 Grantsreceivable . ... U SR 49
50 Receivables from ofiicers, direclors, trustees, and key employees
(atiach schedule) . ... ... UV
5ia Other notes and loans receivable (aftach '
schedule) e 51a
2 b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts . &1b
B | 52 Inventories forsale o USE ..l
~ | 53 Prepaid expenses and deferred Charges . ... ............aeeeeinipeeess 680| 53 397
84 Investments-securiies ... b [ cost 1] Fmv
68 Investments-land, buildings, and
equipment:basis o 55a
" b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach
SChedUIB) | e 55b
56 Invesimentis-other (attach schedule) . ..., e o,
§7a Land, buildings, and equipment: basis .. .. 578 299,308
b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach ; 2
schedule) See Statement 4  [s7b 187,066 102,778|s7¢ 102,242
§8  Otherassels (describe »  See Statement 5 .. ) 58 680
59 Totel assets (must equal line 74). Add lines 45 through 58. .. ...oeee e v e 448,500] 58 499,011
60 Accounts payable and sccrued expenses ... o 382) &0 4,125
61 Grontspayable ... ... USROS
€2 Deferredrevenue ... ... See Statement 6 17,300
o 63 Loans from officers, directors, lrustees, and key employees @tech T
=S SChedUlB) | . i, s
§ §42 Tax-exempt bond liabilities (attach schedule) ... 64a
- b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule) ... .............. 54b
65 Other lsbiiies (Gescribe ® ... ... 68
66  Total! lizbilities. Add lines 60through 65 .. ... ... .. ... ceoponernieopeneeen. 17,682 4,12¢
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here P l__| and complete lines
67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74.
] 67 Unrestricled | et
2 | 68 Temporstiyresiricted | ...
;.'.; €9 PermenenMyrestricted ... L
z Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here P and
I complete lines 70 through 74.
5-| 70 Capital stock trust principal, orcurrent funds ..
% 74 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipmentfund
é’ 72~ 'Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 430,818 494,88
g 73 Total net assets or fund balances (add lines 67 through €9 or lines
70 through 72; 2
column (A) must equal line 19; column (B) must equal line 21) 430,818| 73 494,88
74  Total liahifities and net 2ssetsfund balances. Add lines 66 and 73 448, 500| 74 499,01

Form §90 (201
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Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Finznecial Statements With Revenue per Raeturn (See ihe
instructions.)

a Totai revenue, gains, an_d other support per audited financial statements B 8 ]
b Amounts included on line a but not on Part |, line 12;
Net unrealized gaing on investments
Donated services and use of facilities
Recoveries of pricr year granis
Other (specify):

S 7 U

d Amounts included on Parl [, line 12, but not on line a:
1 Investment expenses not included on Parl |, line 6b
Other (specify):

enue (Part |, line 12). Addlines candd . ... .. ... ... . ... ..iii.iiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiiizieean..
PErfIViBE  Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses pe
a Total expenses and losses per avdited financial statements
b Amounts included on line a but not Part |, line 17:

Donated sewices and use Of fﬂcilhles .............................................
Prior year adjustments reported on Part I,-ling 20
Losses reporied on Pait 1, line 20,
Other (specify):

N

d.  Amounts included on Part 1, line 17, buf not on line a:
1 Investment expenses not included on Part!, ine6b

2 Oher (SDeCIy )

e  Total expenses (Parll line 17). Add linescandd . ..., ............ e ekttt e e e et e

Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (List each person who was an officer, director, trustee,
or key employee at any time during the year even if they were not compensated.) (See the instructions.)

[ i D} Contrb. to
4 N smiiees e | Boigi | St | G

Kenneth R, Wasson . ... Treasurer

1401 Centerville TALLAHASSE FL 3230§ 3 0 0 0
Barbara Williams - . ] Secretary Tr

5191 Milier Land TALLAHASSE FL 32314 2 ‘ 0 0 0
Al MCCUlley . . ... ..o Vice Preside \

730 Live 0Oak Pla TALLAHASSE FL. 32312 3 0 0 0
Larry Harper ... ] Director , ‘

1525 Chadwick Wa TALLAHASSE FL 32312 2 0 0 0
John Mahoney . ... ... .. ... ... President
2920 Ivanhoe Roa TALLAHASSE FL 32304 3 0 0 0

; ; i

Form 990 {2005)
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Current Officers, Birectors, Trusices, and Key Employees {continued)

b

meetlngs Co
Are any officers, directors, trusiees, or key employees listed in Form 998, Pari V-A, or highest compensaied

employees listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part II-A or HI-B, related to each other through family or business
relaticnships? If "Yes,” eltach a statement that identifies the individuals and explains the relationship(s)

Do any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contraclors listed in Schedule A, Part iI-A or [I-B, receive compensalion from any other orgamzahons whether
tax exempt or laxable, thal are relaled to this organization through common supervision of common control?
Note. Related organizations include section £08(a)(3) supporting organizations.

if "Yes," attach 2 statement that identifies the individuals, explains the relationship between this
organization and the other oiganiza!ion(s), and describes the compensation arrangements,
including amounis paid te each individual by each related organization.

Does lhe oraanization have a written conflict of inlerest policy?

d

Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Recelved Compensation or Other Benefits
(I any former officer, director, trustee, or key employee received compensation or other benefits (described below) during
the year, list that persen below and enter the amounl of compensation or other benefits in the appropriate column. See the

instructions.)

D} Contrib. to em

loyee

{A) Name snd address {B) Loans and Advances {C) Compensafion | benefil plans & deferred

compensation plans

{E} Expense
account and other
sllowances

Other Information {See the instructions.)

Did the organization engage in any aclivity not previously reported to the {RS? If "Yes," attach & detailed

description of each activity :
Were any changes made in the organizing or governmg documenls but riot reporied to the IRS?

i "Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes.

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1',000 oF more during the year covered by this return?
If "Yes," has it filed & tax return on Form 890-T for this year?

Was there & liquidation, dissclution, termination, or substantial contraction during the year? Ii "Yes," attach

a statement :

is the organization releied (other than by sssocietion with & stelewide or netionwide organization) through -

common membership, governing bodies, trustees, officers, etc., to any other exempt or nonexempt organization?

if "Yes,” enter the name of the organizetion B CAPITAL NEDICAL SOCIETY

Mid tha arsanizatinn fila Farm 1920001 for thic vaar?
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-orm 990 (2005) CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510
/¥ Other information (continued) .
Did the organizstion receive donated services of the use of materials, equipment, or facllities &t no charge
or at subsiantially less than fair rental vaiue?
If "Yes,” you may indicate the value of these items here. Do not include this
amount &5 revenue in Part | or as an expense in Part il.

{See Instructions in Part 111.)
Did the crganization compty with the public inepection requirements for relurns and exemption applications?

Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contribulions?
Did the oiganization solicit any coniributions or gifts that were not lax deductible?
if "Yes,"” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or

gifts were nottaxX JBAUCHIDIE? | T i it
501{c){4), {5}, of (E) organizations. a Were substantially all dues nondeduclible by members? L.
. Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less?

1 "Yes" was enswered to either 85a or B5b, do not complete 85¢ through 85h below unless the organization

received a waiver for proxy 1ax owed for the prior year.
Dues, assessments, and similar amounts frorn members 85¢
Section 162(e) lobbying and pelitical expenditures &5d
Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033(e)(1}{A) dues nclices ) ghe
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85e}

Does the organization elect to pay the seclion 6033(e) tax on the amount on line 85f7
If section 6033(e){1)(A} dues notices were sent, does the organization egree to add the amount on line 85f
{o its reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the

following tax year?
501(c)(7) orgs. Enter: a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on

501(c)(12} orgs. Enter: a Gross income from members or shareholders
Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other
sources against amounts due or received from them.)

At any time during the year, did the organization ewn a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or

paninership, or an entity disregarded as separate frem the organization under Regutations sections 301.7701-2

and 301.7701-37 [f"Yes,” complele PRILIX i
501(c)(3) organizations. Enter: Amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under:
section 4911 P 0 ;ssction4gi2 P 0 :sectiondgss »

501(c}(3) and 501(c){4) orgs. Did the organization engage in any section 4958 excess benefit transaction

during the year or did it become aware of an excess benefit transaction from a prior year? if "Yes,” attach

a statement explaining each transaction

Enter; Amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year
seclions 4912, 4955, and 4956

Enter: Amount of tax on line 89¢, above, reimbursed by the organization

List the states with which & copy of this returnis fled P None

Number of employees employed in the pay period that includes March 12, 2005 (See

BEEOUMNT oo
e ves." enter the neme ofhe foreign countny B
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirerments for Form TD F 90-22.1, Reporl of Foreign Bank

&nd Financial Accounts.

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office cutside of the United States?

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ¥

Section 494 7(a)(1) nonexempt charitabie trusis filing Form 890 in lieu of Form 1041- Check here

snd enter the amount of iex-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax vear P » eg j

Form 920 (2005)
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5! " Anaslysis of Income-Producing Activities (See the instructions.)
Excluded by sec. 512, 513, of 514 €y -

Nate: Enter gross amounts unless oiherwise Unrelsted businese income

. Relal

indicated. . (A) ®) © ®) o o
. Business code Amount Exclusion] Amount

93 Program service revenue: code

exempt function
income

Medicare/Medicaid payments

Fees and contrects from government agencies
Membership dues and assessments

Interest on savings and tempaorary cash investments
Dividends and interest from securities

16,151

24,033

Other revenue: &

Sales Tax Collection Allowanc 33

104 Subtotat (add columns (B), (D). and (E))
{05 Total (add line 104, calumns (B), (D), and (E)}
Note: Line 105 plus line 1d, Part 1. should equal the amount on line 12, Part L.

T Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See the instructions.)

Line No. Explsin how each activity for which income is reported in column (E) of Pant VIt contributed importantty 10 the accomplishment
Y of the organization's exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes}.
MN/A

Information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries and Disregarded Entities (Se¢ the instructions.)
(A) ) ) (B) €) (D) . {E) ‘
‘Name, address, and EIN of corporation, Percentage of Nature of activities Total income End-of-year
parinership, or disregarded entity ownership inlerest 25868
N/A . %
%
%
o .
% Information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the instructions.}
{8) Did the orgsnization, during the year, recéive any funds, direclly or indirecily, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? Yes 1X] No
(b) Did the organtzation, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personat benefit contract? No

Note: If "Yes" to (b), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 {see instructions).

telurn, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
arer (other than officer) i based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Please } : (LA |

S fan Signature of officer Date

Here KAREN WENDLAND o EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or prini name and fitle -y 1 :

neme 2 /Q} A . -
N e/ o choo e
Sreparer's g/ 12/06/06| empovea b [ || P00076144
Crepéarers /Carrell and Company, /CERE En P 55-203852€

’ Firm's name ( ours
Use Only 1 o omrored), {2640-A Mitcham Drivée Phone
address, and ZiP + 4 Tallahassee, FL 32308 ne. » 850-877-1089¢

Under penahies of perjury, | declare thal | have examined th
and belief, it is true, cgrrect, and corn;:l:lJDeclaralion of pri
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SCHEDULE A Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c}(3) OMB No. 154
(Form $90 or $90-EZ) (Except Frivate Foundstion) and Section 501(e), 501(f). 501(k), 501(n), 0. 1545-0047
‘ or 4947(a){1) Honexempt Charitable Trust
bt Supplementary Information{See separate instructions.) ‘ 2005

E:g;g?nliegbenaee&ﬁfg:w P MUST be comp'leted by the above organizations and sttached to their Form 990 or 890-EZ

Name of the organization . Employer identification number

CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510
Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Employees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees

(See page 1 of the instructions. List each one. If there are none, enter "None.")
{2) Name and address of each employee paid more {b) Title and average hours (d) Contrib. to  |{e} Expense
per week devoted to position | {c) Comp, | empl. ben. plans} account & other
& deferred comp showances

than 850,000

*

‘Total number of other employees paid over $50,000
& Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contiractors for Professional Services

(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one (whether individuals or firms). If there are none, enter "None.”)
, {b] Type of service {c} Compensaiion

{2) Name and address of each independent contracior paid more than $50.000

Total number of others receiving over $50,000 for

professmnal services
% Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Other Services
(List each contractor who performed services other than professional services, whether individuals or

firms. If there are ncne, enter "None." See page 2 of the instructions.)
. (b) Type of service (¢} Compensation

(2) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000

Total number of other contractors receiving over

$50,000 for other services

tor Feperwork Reduction Act Hotice, ses the Instruct!ons for Form €20 and Form 980-E2. Schedule A (Form 890 or 280-E2) 2005
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ScheduleA(FoerQO or 690-£7) 2005 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59- 2104510

Statements About Activities (Ses pags 2 of the instructions.)

During the year, has the organization attempted to influence national, state, or local fegislation, including any
attempi to influence public opiriion on a legislative matter of referendum? If "Yes," enter the fotal expenses paid
or incurred in connection with the lobbying activities > s {Must equal amounts on line 38,
Part VI-A, or ling 1 of Part VI-B.)

Orgamzallons that made an election under sechon 501(h) by filing Form 5768 musi complete Part VI-A. Other
organizations checking "Yes" must complete Parl VI- B AND attach a statement giving a detailed description of
the lobbying activities. :

During the year, has the orgarization, either dlrect!y or indirectly, engaged in any of the following acls with any
substantial contributors, trustees, directors, officers, creators, key employees, or members of their families, or
with any taxable erganization with which any such person is affiliated as an officer, director, trustee, majority
owner, or principal beneficiary? (If the answer 1o any question is "Yes,” attach a detailed statement explaining the

fransactions.)

Sale, exchange, or leasing of property? . T R LT
Lending of money or other extension of credit?

F-urnis_hing of goods, services, or facilities?

Payrneni of compensation (or peyment of reimbursement of expenses if mare than §1.000)7

LR bl

Transfer of any part of its income or assets?

Do you make grents for scholarships, fellowships, siudent loans, elc ? (if "Yes,"

you determine that recipients qualify lo receive payments.)

Do you have a section 403(h) annuity plan for your employees? -

During the year, did the organization receive a contribution of qualified real property interest under section 170{h)?
Did you mairtain any separate account for participating donors where donors heve the right to provide advice on
the use or distribution of funds?

Do you provide credit counseling, debt management, credil repair, or debt negotiation services?

.Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (See pages 3 through 6 of the instructions.)

X
p 4
X
X

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (Fleese check only ONE applicable box.}
5 A church, convention of churches, of association of churches. Section 170(b)(1)(A}().
A school, Section 170(b)(1)(A) . (Alsc complete Pan V.) ’
A hospnal or a cooperative hospital service organization. Section 170(b)(THA).
A Federal, state; or local government or governmental unit. Section 170(0)(1{A) (V).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with & hospital. Section 170(b}{ 1){A)iii). Enter the hospital's name, city,

(Also compleie the Support Schedule in Parl IV-A.)

11a IZI An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public. Section
170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

11b - A community trust. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vD. (Alst complete the Support Schedule in Part 1V- -A)

12 . An'organization that nosmally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipls
from sctivities relsted to its charitable, etc., functione-subject to certain exceplions, and {2) ne more than 33 113% of its support
from gross investment income and unrefated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30, 1975, See section 509{a)}(2). (Alsc compiete 1he Support Schedule in Parl IV-A.)

13 D An organization thal is not controlled by any disqualified persons {other than foundation managers) and suppors organizations
described in: (1) lines 5 through 12 above; or {2} section 501(c)(4), (5), or (8), if they meet the test of section 509{a}(2}. Check
the box that describes the type of supporting prganization: » Type 1 ] Type 2 Type 3

Provide the following information about the supporied orgenizetions. (See page 6 of the instructions.)

(b} Line number

(&) Name(s) of supporied organization(s} from sbove
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996 of $80-27) 2005 CAFPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 55-2104510
Suppoert Schedule (Complete only if you checked & box on fine 10, 14, of 12.) Use cash method of accounting.

Note: You mey use the worksheet in the instructions for converting from the sccrusl to the cash method of sccounting.
{2) 2004 {b} 2003 {c) 2002

{d) 2001 (e} Tota

Calendar vear (or fiscal vear beginningin) P

1§ . Gifis, grants, end contributions received. (Do

876,414
0

238,401 140,621

247,981 249,411

‘not Include unusuel grents, See line 28.)

16 Membership fees received
47 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise

sold or services performed, or furnishing of
fecilities in any acivity that is related to the
orgenizetion's cheritable, efc., purpose

Gross income from interest, dividends,
amounis received from payments on securities
wans (section 512(8}{5)), rents, royalties, and
unrelated business iexable income (less
section 511 texes) from businesses acquired
by the organization afier June 30, 1975

30,203 151,016

42,005

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 18

Tax revenues levied for the organization's
benefit and either paid to it or expended on.

its behalf

The value of services or facilities furnished to
the orgenization by & governmental unit
without charge. Do not include the value of
services or fadililies generally furnished to the
public without charge :

Other income. Attach a schedule. Do nol
include gain or (loss) from

\

0

sale of cophial 2ssets

Total of fines 15 through 22

.303,502

314,532

302,198

201,809

1,122,141

Line 23 minus line 17 . . .

273,299

271,897

260,183

165,736

Enter 1% of line 23

3,035

3,145

Organfzatiohs described on lines 10 or11;  a- Enler 2% of amount in column (e), line 24

Prepare a list for your records to show the name of and amount contributed by each person (other than &
governmental unit or publicly supported organization) whose lotal gifts for 2001 through 2004 exceeded the
amount shown in line 26a. Do not file this list with your return. Enter the total of all these excess amounts
Total support for section 509(a)(1) test: Enter line 24, column (e)

Add: Amounts fiom column (&) for lines:

971,125
18 94,711 : S

e R

_ 22 : ‘ . . | 26d 258,512
Public support (line 26¢ minus line 264 total) 26¢ 712,613
Public support percentage (line 26e (numerator) divided by line 26¢ {denominator)) 26
Organizations described on line 12: " a For amounts included in lines 15, 16, and 17 that were received from a "disqualified
person,” prepare a list for your records to show the name of, and total amounis received in each year from, each "disqualified person.”
Do not file this list with your return. Enter the sum of such amounts for each year:

{2003) ' (2002) (2001)

For any smount inciuded in fine 17 that was received from each person (other than "disqualified persons®), prepare a list for your records to
show the name of, and amouni received for each year, that was more than the targer of (1} the amount on line 25 for the year or (2) $5,000.
(Include in the list organizstions described in lines 5 through 11b, as well as individuals.) Do not file this list with your return. After computing -
the difference between the amount received and the larger amount described in (1} or (2), enter the sum of these differences (the excess

amounts) for each year:

(2003} (2002) (2001)

Add: Amounts from column (e) for lines: ' 16
17

Add: Line 27z total. and line 27b total

Fublic support (line 27c total minus line 27d tol8l) ... ... .. 0oitiiiinr e a e B >

Total support fof section 509(a)(2} test: Enter amount from line 23, column (e) | [ 27f l

Fublic support percentage (line 27e (numerstor) divided by line 27f {denominator))

investrment income percentzge (line 18, column {e} inumerater) divided by line 27f (denominstor}}

Unususl Grants: For an organization described in line 10, 11, or 12 that received any unusual grants during 2001 through 2004,

prepare & lisi for your records to show, for each year, the name of the contributor, the dete and amount of the grant, and & briel

description of the nature of the arant. De not file this list with your return. Do not include these grants in line 15,
Scheduie A {Form 290 or $90-E2Z) 2008
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schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2005 CAPITAL MEDICAL SCCIETY FOUNDATION K8-2104510 Page 4
¥~ Private School Questionnaire (See page 7 of the instructions.)
{To be completed ONLY by schocls that checked the box on ling 6 in Part 1V)
19 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by staternent in its charter, bylaws, . N/ A Yes | No
‘ other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governingbody? .. . . SO
30 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its
brochurés, catalogues, and other written communicatians with the public deafing with student admissions,’
programs, and scholarships? - U PP P
3 Hasthe orgamzatlon publicized #ts racially nondlscrimmalory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during
" the period of _saincllauon for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way
that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? ... ... .
it "Yes," please describe; if "No,” please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separale stalernent.)
32 Does -!).':e or'gani;zaﬁon maintain the following: T :
a Records indicating the rachsl composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? ... ... 32a
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nendiscriminatory
baSis? ................................................................................................................... azb
¢ Copnes of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other wrilten communications to the public dealing
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? e 32¢
d Copies of all material used by the organization of on its behalf to solicit comtrbUtioNs? e 32d
if you answered “No" 1o any of the above, please explain. {If you need more space, sttach a separate statement.)
33 Does 'lﬁe organ;zatlon discriminate by race in any way with respéct i T
& Students' rights or privileges? Ll e
B ADMISSIONS PONGIBST il e i 33b
< EumYmem°ffaCU'W°’admi“i-"“a““eS‘Bfr"......‘.................'...............‘....‘.' .................................... 33¢
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? ' . .. ... ............ g 33d
e Educational policies? ... ... e et ettt 33e
FoUse Of fBCHIIEED . i iiii et iee e et 331
§  AWNIBIC PROGRBMST it et | 339
h Other extracurricular activities? . e e e e e et era e
If you answered "Yes" to any of the dbove, please expiain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)
34a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a QOVErnmMEnal BGeNCY T e
b Has the organization's right 1o such aid ever been revoked or suspended? L e
If you answered "Yes" 0 either 24a or b, please explain using an attached siatement.
38  Does the organization cerlify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05

sf Rev. Proc. 75-50. 1875-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No." sttech an explsnation | ... e

EScheduie A {Form

280 of $90-E2) 20
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Scheduls A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2008 CAPTTAY, MEDTCAL SQCIETY FCUNDATION 5£-2104351¢ Page 5

Lobkying Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See page 9 of the instructions.)
~ {To be completed ONLY by zn eliaible oraanization that filed Form 5768) N/a

Check W =z l i if the organization belongs to an sffilisted aroup. Check B b l | # vou checked “a" end "imited control” provisions epply.
- . . {8} (b}
Limits on Lobbying Expenditures - Affiliated group To be completed
) tolals for ALL electing
orgenizalions

(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid of incurred.)

36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43
44

Taotal lobbying expenditures to influence public opinfon {grassroots lobbying)
Total lcbbying expenditures 1o influence a legisiative body (directlobbying)

Total lobbying expenditures (edd lines 36 and37) . :
Other exempt purpose expenditures TR

Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table-

if the amount on line 40 is- The lobbying nontaxable amount is-

Not over $§500,000 L. 20% of the amounton line4g
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 |, ., .. $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000

Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 | $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000

Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 | | $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000

Over $17.000000 .. .......... . $1,000000 L
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 41) ... ...
Subtract line 42 from line 36. Enter -0- if line 42is more than line 36
Subtract line 41 fromline 38. Enter -0- if ling 41 is more then fine36

Caution: If there is an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you must file Form 4720.

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h) ,
{Some organizations that made & section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below,
See the insiructions for fines 45 through 50 on page 11 of the instructions )

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

{a) (b) (c} () (e}

Calendar year (or
2003 2002 Total

fiscal year beginning in) W 2005 2004

45

Lobbying nontaxable amount . ..., ..

46

Lobbying ceiling amount (150%.of
ing4S(e}y ... ........ .............

47

Total lobbying expenditures .. .......

48

Grasgsroots nontaxable amount ... ...

48

Grassroots ceiling amount (150% of
ling 48{e)} e i,

50

Grassroots lobbying expenditures , . ..
] Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities
(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) {(See page 11 of the instructions.)

During the year, did the organization attempt to infiuence national, state or local legislation, including any ves | No A ¢
attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matler or referendum, through the use of: moun

T "o oo oo

Volunteers .............................................................................................
Paid staff or management {Include compensation in expenses reporied on lines throughchl}

Media adversemEnIS

{5 pa (e[ be ¢ ¢

if “Yes" to any of the above, alse sttech 8 staterment giving s detziled description of the lobbying activities.

Schedule A {(Form €80 or $90-EZ} 2005
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A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2005 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY rOJNDATiON 55-210451¢ Fage 6
JiEE  Information Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharitable
Exempt Organizaticns (See npage 12 of the instructions.)
I Did the reporiing organization directly or indirectly engage in any of the following with any other organization described in section
501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3) organizations) or in seciion 527, relating to political organizations?
a Transfers from the reporling erganization to a noncharitable exempl organization of: Yes | No
(M Cash e RO e, 51a(i) X
() Oher®ssets | ... .. ... YRR afil) X
b Other transactions:
() Salesor exchanges of assels with a noncharitable exernpt organlzahon _______________ T ______________________ b(i} b4
(i) Purchasesofasselsfromanonchamameexemptorgamzahcn ...... b} X
(lil) Rental of facilities, equipment, or other assets ... ... U b(ii) X
(iv) Reimbursement amangements . . .......cccoeeeiiiiiiieion e, e biiv} X
(v) . Loans or loan QUBIBNIBES | L ettt b{v) X
(vi) Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations s e e h{vl) X
¢ Sharing of facilities, equipment, mziling lists, other assets, or paid employEes e c X
d  If the answer to any of the above is *Yes,” complete the following schedule, Column (b) should always show the fair market value of the
goods, other assets, of services given by the reporting organization. If the organization received less than fair market value in any
transaction or sharing arrangement, show in column (d) the value of the goods, other essels, of services received:
(a) ‘ (b) (c) ()
Line no. Amount involved Name of nonchariteble exempt organization Description of transfers, ransactions, and sharing arrangements
S5lc . 36,000| Capital Med Society Share facilities and persconnel
:2a s the organization directly or indirectly affiliated with, or related to, one or more tax-exempt organizaﬁons i
described in section 501{c) of the Code (other than section 501(c}{(3)} or insection 5277 | . . ....... . > @ Yes D No
b |f"Yes” complete the following schedule:
(2} (b} : (c}
Name of crganization Type of organization’ Descriplion of relationship

'Capital Medical Societ 501 {c) (6) Share facilitieg & perscnnel
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Special Events Schedule
Form 990 : 2005
For celendar vear 20085, or tsx vear beginning 7/01/05 ,andending 6/30/06
Name Employer Identification Number
CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510
(A) {8) {c) Others Total
Gross receipls 43,433 250 ) 0 " 43,683 ‘
Less contributions 0 0 0 0 ' 0
Grass revenue 43,433 250 0 0 43,683
Less direct expenses 12,650 ' 0 0 0 19,650
Net income (loss) 23,783 250 0 0 24,033
" Description:  (A) Auction Sales
() Simpler Times Book
(C}

Others
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Schedule B ‘ . OMB No. 1545.0047
(Form 590, $50-E2, Schedule of Contributors

or SS0-FF) Supplementary information for _ 2 0 G 5
Depariment of the Treasury iine 1 of Form 290, 890-EZ, and 290-PF (see instructions) ‘

Internal Revenue Service

Harme of organization Empioyer idenilfleation number

CAPITAL, MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION. ' 59-2104510‘
Organization type (check one): : '
Filers of: Section: .
=brm 950 or 990-EZ @ E01{c)( 3 ) (enter number) organizalion

D 4947(a)(1) nonexemp!t charitable trust not trea.ted as a private foundation
D 527 political organization

“orm 990-PF . D 501({c)(3) exempt private foundation
D 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitabie trust treated as a privatg foundation

[] 501(c)(3) taxeble private foundation

heck if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. {Note: Only a section 501(c}(7), (8), or (10)
srganization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule-see instructions.) '

seneral Rule-

D For organizations filing Form 980, 980-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. (Complete Farts t and il.)

special Rules-

For a section 501(c)(3) organization filing Form 890, or Form 990-EZ, that met the 33 1/3% support test under Regulations
sections 1.509(a)-3/1.170A-9(¢e) and received from any one contributor, during the year, a contribution of the greater of
$5,000 or 2% of the amount ¢n ling 1 of these forms. (Complete Parts | and 1l.)

L—_l For a section 504(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization filing Form 890, or Form 9%0-EZ, that received from any one contributor,
during the vear, aggregate contributions or bequests of more than $1,000 for use exclusively for religious, charitable,
scientific, lterary, or educational purposes, or the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. (Complete Parts 1, Il, and

my .

D For a section 501(c)(7), (B), or {10} organization filing Form 990, or Form 990-EZ, that received from any one contributor,
during the year, some contributions for use exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but these contributions did
not eggregate to more than §1,000. (If this bax is checked, enter here the total contributions that were recelved during
the year for an exclusively' religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Do not complete any of the Parts unless the General Rule
applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $5,000 or more

UG IR VOB e

- >avtion: Organizations that are not covered by the General Rule andfor the Special Rules do not file Schedule B (Form 980,
190-EZ, or 990-PF), but they must check the box in the heading of their Form 990, Form 890-EZ, or on line 2 of their Form
190-PF, to cerlify that they do not meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 280, 990-E2Z, or 890-PF).

Schedule B (Form 9290, 896-EZ, or £90-PF) {2008)

‘or Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions
or Form 990, Form §80-EZ, and Form 250-PF.
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2005)

Page 1 of 1

i 13

Name of crganization

Employer identification numbaer

CAFPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510
41 Contributors (See Specific Instructions.)
(2} (b) {c) {d)
No. | Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Aggregate contributions Type of contribution
1 Capital Health Plan Person
-~ 1545 Raymond Diehl Road Payroll
. $ 20,000 Noncash
Tallahassee 'FL 32303 {Complete Part Il if there is
a noncash contribytion.)
{a) , - {b) {c) {d)
No. Name, address, end ZIP + 4 Agaregate contributions Type of contribution
2 Frueauff Foundation : Person
800 S Shackleford Rd Ste 300 Payroll
‘ . $ 30,000 Noncash
Little Rock AR 72211 (Complete Part Il if there is
a noncash contribution.)
@) ' ) ©) )
No. ) Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Aggregate contributions Type of contribution
3 Perkins Charitable Foundation Person
1422 Euclid Ave., 1030 Hanna Bldg. Payroll
: $ 7,000 Noncash
Cleveland QH 44115 {Complete Parl Il if there is
S & noncash contribution.)
(a) (b) . {c) (d)
Ho. - Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Aggrecate contributions Type of contribution
4 United Way of the Bend Person
307 E 7th Ave Payroll
- 5 8,813 Noncash
Tallazhassee FL 32301 (Complete Part Il if there is
' a noncash contribution.)
(a) , - (b) {c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Aggreaate contributions Type of contribution
5 | pathology Associates " Person
1899 Eider Court ' Payroll ]
s 5,250 Noncash
Tallahassee FL 32308 (Complete Par Il if there is
a noncash contribution.)
(a) (b} (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Aogrecate contributions Type of contribution
& SunTrust Person
215 8. Monroe Street Payroll
: 3 10,962 Noncash
Tallzhascee L 22201 {Complete Far il § there is

a noncash contribution.)

of Pert |
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050 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION ‘12/6/2066 ".:Sé PM
59-2104510 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/20086 . -
Statement1 - Form 990, Part |, Line 6b - Rental Expenses
Description ‘ ~___Deduction

Building Rental

Cleaning & Maintenance 382

Repairs : - B24

Utilities 741

Depreciation 857

Pest Control 27

Dumpster Fees 11

2,842

Total
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050" CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 12/6/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2008

St_a!ement 2.Form 890, Partll, Line 23 - Specific Assistance to Individuals

Description Amount
Scholarships Given . _ $ 23,000
Total ' $ 23,000

State.ment 3 -Form 890, Partll, Line 43 - Other Functional Expenses

, Total Program Mgt & Fund-
Description Expenses Service General Raising
$ $ $ $
Expenses )

Patient Care Expense 12,860 12,8690

Insurance 2,813 2,622 291

Management Fee 36,000 36,000

Taxes & Licenses ‘ 186 lae

Feeg & Penalties 52 52

Patient Assistance 6,215 6,215

Dues & Subscriptions ' 142 142

Total : ' $ 58,368 % 57,839 § 529 8 : T
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! 050 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 12/6/2006 1:36 PM

58-2104510 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2006

Staternent 4 - Form 890, Part IV, Line 57 - L and, Buildings, and Equipment

Description

Beginning Accurﬁ ' End of Accum
of Year Deprec Year Deprec

Land, buildings & equipment

] 220,890 § 201,830 & 215,590 § 197,066

! 83,718 83,718
: Total ] 304,608 5 201,830 % 299,308 5 187,066

Statement 5 - Form 280, Part IV, Line 58 - Other Assets

Beginning End of

Description of Year Year
Utility Deposit b S 680
Total 8 0] $ 680

Statement 6 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 62 - Deferred Revenue
Beginning End of
Description of Year Year
$ 17,300 $

Total 8 17,300 S 0
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050" CAPITAL MEDICAL SQCIETY FOUNDATION | 12/6/2006 1:36 PM

59-2104510 : Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2006

Statement 7 - Schedule A, Part lll, Line 3a - Explanation of Grant I‘Loan Qualifications

Description

Scholarships appllcatlons are distributed to pre-med students attendlng
Florida State University. Applications are submitted for review to a
scholarship ccmmittee which awards available scholarships based on
financial need, grade point average, and a personal interview.
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4562 Depreciation and Amortization OMB Ne. 1545-0172
“orm : : .
{Including Information on Listed Property} 2005

‘Rev. Jenusry 2006) .
Depariment of the Treasury

nternal Revenue Service ! P See ceparate instructions. B AHach to vour tax refurn, e o, 87
Name(s} shown on return Identifying number
CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 59-2104510

Business or eclivity to which this form relates
Indirect Depreciation
% Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 178
Note: if you have any listed property, complete Pant V before you complete Part |,

105,000 ‘

4 Maximum amount. See the instructions for a higher limil for certain businesses . . ... ... ... 1
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see Instructions) . e 2
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reductionin limitation i 3 420,000
4  Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter-0- L 4
5 Dollar imitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. f zero or less, enter -0-. If married filing separately, see instr. ... 5
(aj Description of property {b} Cosl (business use only} ((;} Elecied cost
5 ‘
7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 ... Lz
8  Total elecied cosi of seclion 179 property. Add amounts in column (. lines6and? . 8
9  Tenlative deduction. Enter the smatlerofline 5orline 8 e 8
10  Carryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2004 Form4562 . ... .. 10
11  Business income limitation. Enler the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) . 11
412  Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines © and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 ..., . '
13  Carryover of diszllowed deduction to 2008. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 P f 13 ]
Note: Do not use Pari Il or Part Il below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.
HE ©  gpecial Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Do not include listed pmperty ) {See instructions.)
14  Special allowance for cenain aircrafi, certain property with & long production period, and qualified NYL
of GO Zone property (other than Tisled property) placed in service during the tax year {see instructions) ... 14
15 Property subject to section 168(N(1) election ... e 15
16 i depreciation {including AR ittt iieiesiiiiciiiteieiiiiaiegiiiiieeseiiasiii: 16 238
4% MACRS Depreciation (Do not include listed propery.) (See instructions.)
Section A
17  MACRS deductions for 2ssels placed in service in tax years beginning before 2005 | .. ....... .. ... oo
18 if you are electing to group any assets ptaced in service during the tex year into one or more general assel secounts, check here >
Section B-Assets Placed in Service During 2005 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
. {b) Month a.nd {c) pasis_for depreciation (d) Recovery ) .
{a} Classification of propeny vear placedin | (businessfinvestment use X {e} Convention () Method {g) Depreciation deduclion
. only-see instructions} period
19a 3-year property
b 5-vear property 1,097 5.0 MO 200DB 55
¢ 7-vear property '
d 10-year property
e 15-yesr property
f 20-year propery
g 25-year property ,7 25 yrs. S
h Residential rental : : 27.5 yrs. MM S
property 27.5 yrs. MM SiL
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM SiL
+ property : : ' MM SiL .
Section C-Asse}_su i ice During 2005 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a Class life sn
b 12-year 12 yrs. SiL
¢ 4U-ve ar ] 40 vrs, MM - SiL
HiIVE  Summary (see instructions)
21 Listed property. Enter amount rom e 28 TSR R TSRO PP PR U 21
22 Total. Add smounts from line 12, lines 14 threugh 17, lines 19 and 20 in column {(g), and fine 21.
Enter here 2nc on the eppropricte lines of vour return. Farinerships anc € corporstiong-seeinetr_ .. . .. ey
23 For sssets shown above and placed in service during the current year,

enter the portion of the basis attributable to section 263Acosts . . .. ... ... ... ....... 23

Carn AKRT (900K (D ww + ooneY
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50 12/06/2006 1:36 PM
Depreciation and Amoertization ‘ OMB No. 1545-0172 _

rm 4 5 6 2 {including Information on Listed Property) 2 0 0 5

ev. Jenuary 2008}
wpartment of the Treasury . ) o ™
p . P Sce separate instructions. ¥ Attach to your tax return, AM

‘etnal Revenue Service
: .| dentifylng number
CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION ' 59-2104510

Jsiness or activity to which this form relates

Buildlng Rental

: " Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179

Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part |,

ame(s) shown on returmn

[ Maximum amount. See the instructions for @ higher limit for certain businesses . ... .. ... 1 105,000
?  Total cost of section 17§ property placed in service (see instructions) . ... 2
1 Threshold cost of section 178 property before reduction in imitetion T U PO 3 420,000
+  Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter G- e 4
3 Doliar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from Ime 1, If zero or less, enter -0-. lf married fhng separately, see instr, 5
(a) Description of properly - {b} Cost (business use only) {c} Elected cost
3 .
7 Listed property. Enter the amountfromline 29 . .. Lz
8 Total elected cost of section 179 properly. Add amounts In column(c), lines 6 end 7 ... ..iiiieeies AU I
9 . Tentative deduction. Enter the smaliet of fine 5 or ine 8 . e e aas )
0 . Carryover of disallowed deduclion from line 13 of your 2004 Form 4562 ____________________________________________
1 Business income limitation. Enter the smelier of business income (not less than zero) of line & (see lnslruchons} ________
2 Section 179 expense deduction. Add fines-8 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 ..., . o
3 Carryover of dissliowed deduction to 2006. Add lines § and 10, less ling12 ., .. ... - l 13 l
fote: Do not use Pari Il or Par 1 below for listed property. Instead, use Patt V. -

Special Depreciation Allowznce znd Other Depreciation jpo not include listed property.) {See instructions.)

4  Special allowance for cerain aircraft, cerlain property with a long production period, and qualified NYL
or GO Zone propeny (other thar listed propeily) placed in service during the tax year {see msiruchons) ___________ o 14
5  Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election .. s 18
[:] her deprecigtion (including ACRS) ... ... ..o et e ey gt 16 545
i "~ MACRS Depreciation {Do not inciude hsted property.} (See instructions.}
Section A .
7 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2005 .., ... e e
8 If you are electing to group 8ny sssets placed in service during the tax year into one or mere peneral asset accoumts, check here >
Section B-Assets Placed in Service During 2005 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
] {b) Month and {c) Basis for depreciation id) Recovery ’
{a) Classification of propery year placed In {business/investment use {e) Convention (f) Method (g} Oepreciation deduction
sgrvice | only-see instructions) period
I9a  3-vear propery: ;
b S-year property j
¢ 7-year property
d 10-year propefnty
@ 15-year property
§_ 20-year property
g 25-year property 25 yrs. SiL
t Residential rental 27.5 yrs. MM SIL
property 27.5 yrs. MM SA.
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM Sh.
property MM SL
Section C-Assg ice During 2008 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a_ Class life ’ sn
b 12-year 12 yrs. S
¢ 40-veer 40 yrs, MM Sh
. Summary (see instructions)
21 Listed property. Enter amount from ine 28 L 21
25 Totsl. Add amounts from line 12, ines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in cofumn (g), and line 21,
. Enter here and on the eppropriate lines of your return, Fernerships and S corporetions-sesinstr. ..o
23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year,
enter the portion of the besis atiributable to section 263Acosts . . . . ... e 23 i ; 3
- Form 4562 (2005) (Rev. 1-200¢
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59-2104510
FYE: 6/30/2006

050" CAFITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION

Federal Asset Report
Form 280, Page 1

12/06/2006 1: 36 PM

Asset Description

&.vear GDS Property:
30 Computer - LW & RM

Prior MACRS:
26 Computer ]
Mass Sale: 12/31/05

28 Desk & Chairs
29 Dell Computers (2)

Other Depreciation:

5 FAX Modem
: Mass Sale: 12/31/05
6 Projector
Mass Sale: 12/31/05
9 Laptop Upgrade
plopTre © Mass Sale: 12/31/05
10 File Server :
Mass Sale: 12/31/05
11 Desk
12 Fumiture
13 Carpet
Mass Sale: 12/31/05
16 Laptop
27 Computer Equipment

Total Other Depreciation

Total ACRS and Qther Depreciation

Amortization:
15 Software
Mass Sale; 12/31/05

Grand Totals
Less: Dispositions

Net Grand Totals

Date Bus Sec Basis

In Service Cost % 179Bonus_for Depr PerConvMeth Prior Current
6/09/06 1,097 1,087 5 MQ200DB ¢ 55
1,097 1,097 ] 55
10/21/99 882 882 5 HY 200DB 882 0
4/11/02 913 X 639 5 HY 200DB 803 73
5/05/04 lz708 X 1,025 5 HY 200DB 683, 410
3,503 2,546 2,368 483
10/18/95 216 216 5 MO SA 216 0
11/03/95 384 384 5§ MO SAL 384 0
3/26/96 275 275 5 MO S/L 275 0
8/08/96 2,627 2,627 5 MOSL 2,627 0
12/13/94 455 455 5 MO S/ 455 0
12/29/95 295 295 7 MOS/LL 295 0
5/12/97 1,353 1,353 7 MOS/L 1,353 0
3/22/01 - 51 511 5§ MO S/L 434 77
3/08/02 2,215 2,215 § MO200DB- 1,947 161
8,331 8,331 7,986 238
%,331 8,331 7,986 238
4/03/97 660 660 3 MOAmort 660 0
660 660 660 0
13,591 12,634 11,014 776
6,397 6,397 6,397 0
1AM — 5237 4.617 776




050 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION
Federal Asset Report

59-2104510
FYE: 6/30/2006

Building Rental

12/06/2006 1:36 PM

Date
Asset Descriplion In Service  Cosi
Prior MACRS:
24 Building Renovations 4/06/99 6,528
25 Carpet L 3117799 3,214
9,742
Other Depreciation:
i Roofing 4/18/85 800
13 Building 12/01/83 164,749
14 Land 12/01/83 83,718
15 Pavin -12/01/84 5,000
16 Building renovations 8/26/97 3,758
17 Renovations ! 3/11/85 9,295
18 Landscaping 3/11/85 167
19 A/C & Fumiture 1/01/90 6,275
20 - Lights 1/01/91 1,185
21 A/C 6/01/91 2,975
22 Wallpaper 5/22/97 2,450
23 Wallpaper 6/11/97 2,000
Total Other Depreciation 282,372
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 282,372
" Grand Totals 202,114
Less: Dispositions 0

Net Grand Totals

© 292,114

Basis
% 179Bonus _for Depr PerConvMeth Prior Current

6,528 39 MMS/AL 1,039 - 168
3,214 7 HY 200DB 3,070 144
9,742 4,109 312
800 18 MO S/L 800 0
164,749 15 MO S/L 164,749 0
83,718 0 - Land 0 0
5,000 15 MO S/L 5,000 ¢ 0
3,758 39 MO S 751 95
9,295 18 MO S/L 9,295 0
167 18 MO S/L 167 0
6,275 31 MO S/L 3,105 202
1,185 31 MO S/L 549 38
2,975 31 MOSL 1,364 96
2,450 3% MO S/L 513 62
2,000 39 MO S/L 414 52
282,372 186,707 545
282,372 186,707 545
292,114 190,816 857
0 0 0
_ 292,114 190,816 857
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050° CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION

12/06/2006 1:36 PM

59-2104510 State Asset Report
FYE: 6/30/2006 | Form 990, Page 1
.Date Basis | Slate State Federal Difference
Asset Description In Service Cost for Depr Prior Current Current Fed - State

&.vear GDS Prope .

30 Computer - LW & RM © 60906 1,097 1,097 0 55 55 0
. 1,097 1,097 0 55 b 0
Prior MACRS: ’ : ,
26 Computer 10/21/99 882 882 882 0 0 0
: Mass Sale: 12/31/05
28 Desk & Chairs 4/11/02 Q13 639 203 73 73 0
29 Dell Computers (2) 5/05/04 1,708 1,025 683 410 410 0
' : 3,503 2,546 2,368 483 483 0
Other Depreciation; ‘
— § FAX Modem 10/18/95 216 216 216 o 0 o]
' : Mass Sale: 12/31/05 , )
6 Projector 11/03/95 384 384 384 0 0 0
’ Mass Sale: 12/31/05
9 Laptop Upgrade 3/26/96 275 275 275 0 0 0
) Mass Sale: 12/31/05
10 File Server 8/08/96 2,627 2,627 2,627 0 0 0
Mass Sale: 12/31/05
11 Desk ) 12/13/94 455 455 455 0 0 0
12 Fumiture ) 12/29/95 295 295 295 0 0 0
13 Carpet ‘ 5/12/97 1,353 1,353 1,353 - 0 0 0
Mass Sale: 12/31/05
16 Laptop 3/22/01 511 511 434 77 77 0
27 Computer Equipment 3/08/02 2,215 2,215 1,947 161 161 [
Total Other Depreciation 8,331 - 8,331 7,686 238 238 0
Total A_CRS and Other Depreciation 8,331 8,331 7,986 238 : 238 1]
Amortization: :
15 Software 4/03/97 660 660 660 0 0 0
. Mass Sale: 12/31/05
660 660 660 0 0 0
Grand Totals 13,591 12,634 11,014 176 776 0
Less: Dispositions 6,397 6,397 6,397 0 0 0
.. Net Grand Toetals 6,237 4,617 - 776 776 0

7,194




S 10

W

: — Fage af
050 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 12/086/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 State Assef Report
FYE: 6/30/2006 Building Rental
) ‘ Daie Basis State State Federal Difference
Asset Description In Service  Cost for Depr Prior Current Current . Fed - State
Prior MACRS: .
74 Buwlding Renovations 4/06/9% 6,528 6,528 1,039 168 168 0
25 - Carpet 3/17/99 3,214 3,214 . 3,070 144 144 0
9,742 9,742 4,109 312 312 0
Other Depreciatioﬁ:
1 Roofing 4/18/85 800 800 800 0 0 0
13 Building .. 12/01/83 164,749 164,749 164,749 0 0 0
14 Land 12/01/83 83,718 83,718 0 0 0 0
15 Paving 12/01/84 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 1] 0
16 Building renovations ’ 8/26/97 3,758 3,758 . 751 95 a5 0
17 Renovations 3/11/85 9,295 9,295 9,295 0 -0 0
18 Landscaping 3/11/85 167 167 167 0 0 0
19 A/C & Fumniture 1/01/90 6,275 6,275 3,105 202 202 0
20 Lights 1/01/91 1,185 1,185 549 38 k}:] 0
21 A/C ) 6/01/91 2,975 2,975 1,364 96 96 ]
_+22 Wallpaper : 5122197 2,450 2,450 513 62 62 0
23  Wallpaper 6/11/97 2,000 2,000 414 - 82 52 0
Total Other Depreciation 282,372 282,372 186,707 54: 545 0
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 282372 782,372 186,707 545. 545 - .0
Grand Totals 292,114 292,114 . 190,816 857 857 0
Less: Dispositions 0 0 0 0 o 0

Net Grand Totals 292,114 292,114 190,816 857 857 0




050° CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION

59-2104510 AMT Asset Report

FYE: 6/30/2006

12/06/2006 1:36 PM

) Date
Asset Description In Service  Cost
S-vear GDS Property:
30 Computer- LW & RM 6/09/06 1,097

Prior MACRS:

26 Computer 10/21/99
‘ - . Mass Sale: 12/31/05

27 Computer Equipment 3/08/02

28 Desk & Chairs 4/11/02

29 Dell Computers (2) 5/05/04

Other Depreciation:

5 F/—ﬂupﬁ Modem 10/18/95
Mass Sale: 12/31/05

6 Projector 11/03/95
Mass Sale: 12/31/05

9 Laptop Upgrade 3/26/96
piop Tper Mass Sale: 12/31/05

10 File Server 8/08/96
: Mass Sale: 12/31/05

11 Desk 12/13/94

12 Furniture 12/29/95

13 Carpet 5/12/97
Mass Sale: 12/31/05

16 Laptop 3/22/01

Total Other Depreciation

Total ACRS and Other Depreciation

Grand Totals
Less: Dispositiens

Net Grand Totals

1,097

882

2,215
913
1,708

5,718

[=F = g ] (=) o o o

Sl
311

513

7,326
882

6,444

Form 990, Page 1

o

Basis

: 1,097
1,097

882

1,550
639
1,025

4,096

ocoo O @ o O

511
511

31l

5,704
882

4,822

% 179Bonus_for Depr. PerConv Meth

5

Lh Lh Lh th

A ooo (=] [ = A~

Prior Current
MQI150DB 0 41
0 41
HY 150DB 882 0
HY 200DB 1,947 179
HY 200DB 803 73
HY 200DB 683 410
4,315 662
HY 0 0
HY 0 0
HY 0 ]
HY 0 0
HY 0 0
HY 0 1]
HY 0 0
MO S/L 434 77
434 77
434 77
4,749 780
882 0

3,867 780
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056 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 12/06/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 AMT Asset Report

FYE: 6/30/2006 - Building Rental

‘ Date Bus Sec Basis

Asset Description In Service _Cost % 179Bonus_for Depr PerConv Meth Prior Current

Prior MACRS: . . . ‘ . )
24 Building Renovations - 4/06/99 6,528 6,528 39 MMS/L 1,039 . 168

25 Carpet . 3199 3,214 3214 7 HY 150DB 3,017 197
‘ 9,742 9,742 . 4,056 365

Other Depreciation:
1

Roofing 4/18/85 0 0 0 HY 0 0

13 Building ‘ - 12/01/83 ] 0 0 HY 0 0
14 Land : _ 12/01/83 0 0 0 HY 0 ¢
15 Paving ' 12/01/84 0 0 ¢ HY 0 0
16 Building renovations . 8/26/97 0 ¢ 0 HY 0 0
17 Renovations 3/11/85 0 0 0 HY 0 0
18 Landscaping 3/11/85 0 0 0 HY Y 0
19 A/C & Fumiture 1/61/90 0 0 0 HY 0 0
20 Lights 1/01/91 0 0 0 HY 0 0
21 A/C ‘ 6/01/91 ¢ 0. 0 HY 0 0
22 Wallpaper 5/22/97 0 0 0 HY 0 0
23 Wallpaper 6/11/97 0 6 0 HY 0 0
Total Other Depreciation "0 0 0 0

Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 0 0 0 0

A ——
Grand Totals 9,742 9,742 ) 4,056 365
Less: Dispasitions 0 " 0 0 ‘ 0

Net Grand Totals 9,742 9,742 4,056 365
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050 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FCUNDATION | 12/06/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 Depreciation Adjustment Report
FYE: 6/30/20086 Ali Business Activities
AMT
. o i Adjustments/
Form Unit Asset Description ' Tax AMT Preferences

MACRS Adjustments: _
26 Computer 0 0

Page 1 1 0
Page 1 i 28 Desk & Chairs 73 73 0
Page 1 H 29 Dell Computers (2) ‘ 410 410 0
Page | 1 30 Comiputer - LW & RM 55 41 _ 14
Rental 1 24 Buiiding Renovations 168 168 0
Rental 1 25 Carpet 144 197 -53

850 889 -39
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056 CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION | 12/08/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 Bonus Depreciation Report |
FYE: 6/30/2006 ’
Date In Tax Bus Tax Sec Current Priof Tax - Basis
Asset Property Description Service Cost Pet 179 Exp Bonus Bonus for Depr
Activity: Form 990, Page 1 ' |
28 Desk & Chairs 4/11/02 913 0 0 274 639
29 Dell Computers (2) 5/05/04 1,708 0 0 683 1,025
Form 990, Page 1 2,621 0 0 957 1,664

Grand Total 2621 0 0 957 1,664
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59.2104510 Future Depreciation Report FYE: 6/30/07
FYE: 6/30/2006 . Form 890, Page 1
o Date In
Asset Description Service Cost Tax AMT -
Prior MACRS:
28 Desk & Chairs 4/11/02 913 37 37
29 Dell Computers (2) 5/05/04 1,708 246 246
30 Computer - LW & RM 6/09/06 1,097 417 317
’ 3,718 700 600
Other Dépreciation:
11 Desk ' 12/13/94 455 0 0
12 Furniture 12/259/95 295 0 0
16  Laptop 3/22/01 511 0 0
27. Computer Equipment 3/08/02 2215 107 89
Total Other Depreciation 3,476 107 89
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 3,476 107 29
Amérlizaﬁon:
0 1] 0
Grand Totals 7,194 807 689
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050" CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION 12/06/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 _ Future Depreciation Report FYE: 6/30/07
FYE: 6/30/2006 Building Rental
. Date In
Asset Description Service Cost Tax AMT
Prior MACRS: .
24  Building Renovations " 4/06/99 6,528 167 167
25 Carpet _ 371199 3,214 0 0
9,742 167 167

Other Depreciation:

1 Roofing - 4/18/85 800 0 0
13 Building 12/01/83 164,749 0 0
14 Land ‘ 12/01/83 83,718 0 0
15 Paving 12/01/84 5,000 0 0
16 Building renovations 8126/97 . 3,758 95 0
17 Renovations 3/11/85 0,295 0 0
18 Landscaping 3/11/85 167 0 0
19 A/C & Furniture 1/01/90 6,275 203 0
20 Lights 1/01/91 1,185 38 0
21 A/C 6/01/91 2,975 96 0
22 Wallpaper 5/22/97 2,450 63 0
23 Wallpaper 6/11/97 2,000 51 0
Total Other Depreciation ‘ 282,372 546 0

Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 282,372 546 0

Grand Totals 292,114 713 167
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59-2104510 Future Depreciation Report FYE: 6/30/07
FYE: 6/20/2008 Form 290, Page 1
] Date In.
Asset Description Senvice Cost State AMT
Prior MACRS:
28 Desk & Chairs 41102 013 37 37
29. Dell Computers (2) 5/05/04 1,708 246 246
30 Computer - LW & RM 6/09/06 1,097 417 317
‘ 3,718 700 600
QOther Depreciation:
i1 Desk 12/13/94 455 0 0
12 Furniture 12/29/95 C 295 0 0
16  Laptop ‘ 3/22/01 511 0 0
27 Computer Equipment 3/08/02 2,215 107 89
Total Other Depreciation 3,476 107 3]
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation - 3,476 107 89
Amortization:
0 0 0

Grand Totals 7,194 807 689
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650" CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION

59-2104510

Future Depreciation Report

Building Rental

12/06/2006 1-36 P
FYE: 6/30/07

FYE: 6/30/2006

Date In

Asset Description Senvice Cost State AMT
Prior MACRS:
24 Building Renovations 4/06/99 6,528 167 167
25 Carpet 3/17/99 3,214 0 0
9,742 167 167
Other Depreciation: i
|
1 Roofing 4/18/85 800 0 0 |
13 Building 12/01/83 164,749 0 0
14 Land 12/01/83 83,718 0 0
15 Paving 12/01/84 5,000 0 0
16 Building renovations 8/26/97 3,758 95 0
17 Renovations 3/11/85 9,295 0 0
18 Landscaping 3/11/85 167 0 0
19 A/C & Fumniture 1/01/9¢ 6,275 203 0
20 Lights 1/01/91 1,185 ig 0
21 A/C 6/01/91 2,975 96 0
22 Wallpaper 5722197 2,450 63 0
23 Wallpaper 6/11/97 2,000 51 0
Total Other Depreciation 282,372 546 0
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 282,372 546 0
Grand Totals 292,114 713 167
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050" CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATION - 12/6/2006 1:36 PM
59-2104510 Federal Statements A
FYE: 6/30/2006 ' |

Form 290, Part |, Line 1a - Direct Public Support

Description : Cash Noncash Total
‘ g 36,645 8 [ 3¢, 645
Contributions from Schedule B : 92,525 92,525
Total g 129'170. $ 0 8 128,170

Form 290, Partl. Line 1¢c - Government Contributions

Description Cash - Noncash Total
Leon County Board of County Commissi s 98,246 S ] 98, 246
Leon County Department of Health 15,565 15,565
Community Human Service Partnership 6,250 6,250
Wakulla RBoard of County Commissiocner 3,500 3,500
Jefferson County Health Department 1,300 1,300
Gadsden County Board of County Commi 32,000 3,000

Total s 127,861 $A 0 5 127,861
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050 'ChEITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FCUNDATION
Federal Statements

59-2104510
FYE: 6/30/2006

St

12/6/2006 1:36 PM

Schedule A, Part IV-A, Line 26b - Excess Gifts

Donor Name

Bellamy MD, Raymond E.
Blue Cross Blue Shield
Blue Foundation

Bryant MD, Gerald .
Capital Health Plan
Frueauff Foundation
Manning, Charles
Memorial Hospital of RI
Miscellaneous

Perkins, Leigh H.
Rotary Club

Rural Health Network
Stewart MD, David

TWP Tennis Tournament

United Way of the Big Bend

Total

$

Total

5,325
4,000
8,000
2,000
80,000

. 120,000

6,000
3,500
110, 445
22,070
5,500
3,500
8,000
3,000

21,625

$

oo

402,965

$.

Excess

60,577
100,577

. 2,647

163,801
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59-2104510 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2006 :

Pt a3

12/6/2006 1:36 PM

Special Events Direct Expenses

Description

Column A
Auction Sales
Auction Expenses

SubTotal

Total

Direct expenses other than fundraising expenses
reported on Form 990, page 1, line 9b.

Amount

19,650
19,650

19,650
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m 8868 Application for Extension of Time To File an
av. Decarmber 2004} Exempt Organizaﬁon Retu 11 OMB Np. 1545-1709
partment of the Treasury ¥ File 2 separate application for each retum.
ernal Revenue Service
> X]

If you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Tand check thiS BOX e,
¥ you are filing for an Additional (not automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Il {on page 2 of this form).

» not complete Part W unless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form BB68.
Piide Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time- Only submit original (no copies needed)

. - D

rm 890-T corporations requesting an automatic &-month extension-check this box and complete Partlonly - . .. ...

i

| other corporations (including Form 990-C filers) must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time 1o file income tax retums.
artnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form B736 to request an extension of time to file Form 1065, 1066, or 1041,

ectronic Filing (e-file). Forrn BBB8 can be filed electronicél!y if you want a 3-month autoratic extension of time to file one of the
turns noted below (6 months for corporate Form 990-T filers). However, you cannot file it electronically if you want the additional
ot automatic} 3-month extension, instead you must submit the fully completed signed page 2 (Part 11} of Form B868. For more
\ails on the electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs. gowv/efile. .

pe or Name of Exempt Qrganization

int :
e by the CAPITAL MEDICAL SOCIETY FOUNDATICON

e date for Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.

pdipell 1204 MICCOSUKEE ROAD

structions. City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
TALLAHASSEE FL. 22308

heck type of return to be filed (file a separale application for each return):
X]| Form 990 Form ©90-T (corporation) Form 4720

Form 990-BL Form_QQO-T (sec. 401 (a) or 408(a) trust) Form 5227
Form 990-EZ Form 990-T (trust other than above) Form G069
Form 990-PF Form 1041-A Form 8870

Employer identification number

59-2104510

Telephone No. » 850-877-9018 | FAXNo. B )
» [

If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbex ... .......

If this is for @ Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this

for the whole group, check this box # [ . ifitis for part of the group, check this box B | | and attach 2 list with the

ames and EINs of all members the extension will cover.
1 |request an automatic 3-month (6-months for a Form 890-T corporation) extension of ime until 2/15/ 07
to file the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's returmn for:

» | | calendaryear . ... or
[ tax year beginning 7/ 01/05 ,andending  6§/30/06 .

2 |f this tax year is for less than 12 moniths, check reason: D Initial retum D Final return D Change in accounting period

3a |f this application is for Form 05h-BL., 980-PF, 890-T, 4720, or 6068, enter the tentative tax, less any

nonrefundable credits. See instructions . L $
b if this application Is for Form 980-PF or 990-T, enter any refundable credits and estimated tax payments ...............
made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed asacredit 5
¢ Balance Due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, or, if requireﬁ, depb.slil ''''''''' S
with ETD coupon or, if required, by using EFTFPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See
a1 2 =2 LR R R $
Saution. If you are geing 1o make an electronic fund withdrawal with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-E0 and Form 8679-EQ .
or peyiment instructions.
] Form 8868 (Rev. 12.200

“or Privacy Act end Paperwork Reductlon Act Notice, see Instructions.
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Primary Healthcsre Implementation Advisery Board
Annual Report Fiscal Year 2004/2005

Executive Summary

Resolution 02-05, adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on January 29, 2002
requires the Primary Healthcare Implementation Advisory Board to report annuzlly on
the effectiveness of the Primary Healthcare Program and to report its findings and
recommendations for programmatic improvements. The Executive Summary presents:
(1) the highlights of the program for FY 04-05; and (2) Areas for Concern; and (3) the
Advisory Board’s recommendations for programmatic improvements. ‘

The Leon County Primary Healthcare Program, in its fourth year, continues to show
outstanding results. Simultaneously, however, the Program is also beginning to show 2
number of opportunities for improvement.

Program Highlights for FY 2004/2005

1. The Primary Healthcare Program continues to be a sound investment, returning
$5.33 in Community Benefits for each $1 of county tax dollars expended. The
value of volunteered services and in-kind contributions continues in excess of
£2,000,000. -

2 For FY 2004/2005, Bond Community Health Center, Neighborhood Health
Services, and the WeCare Network of the Capital Medical Society provided
services for 7,998 Leon County citizens, 177% of the designed capacity (4,500
citizens) of the program. : :

3. For FY 2004/2005, Per Member per Y ear cost decreased by 10.0% to $131.75 Per
Member per Year over the FY 03-04 cost of £146.55. As a point of comparison,
the FY 01-02 cost Per Member per Year was $254.87 and the Healthy Kids
program is currently reporting an average cost of $780 per child per year.

4. For FY 2004/2005, the Primary Healthcare Program, in cooperation with the
FAMU School of Phammacy, filled 58,540 prescriptions with a value of
$2,500,328.80.

5. Avoided hospital inpatient admissions total 176 for the FY 2004/2005, resulting
in cost avoidance of $1,061,205.17

Areas for Concern
1. Uncompensated Care (charity care) provided by Leon County Hospitals during

FY 200472005 was $22,077,567, a small decrease of $16,343 from FY 2003/2004.
Total Uncompensated Care (charity care and bad debt) totaled $84 Million for FY
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2004/2005 for Leon County’s hospitals. The cost of uncompensated care is cost-
shified to the insured population of Leon County.

2. Emecrgency Room Visits by Leon County citizens for non-emergency services
(Non-emergent care) totaled 15,461, an increase of 1,041 (7.4%) over
FY?2003/2004. Capital Regional Medical Center Non-emergency hospital ER visits
increased 35.6% while Tallahassee Memorial Hospital’s Non-Emergency hospital
ER Visits decreased by 9.1%. Non-emergent hospital emergency room visits
increase the cost to all Leon County Citizens.

2 The Agency for Health Care Administration’s 2004 update of its 1999 Health
Insurance Study (August 2005) estimates the number of uninsured citizens under
age sixty five (65) in Leon County is 18,887.

4. The healthcare services delivery system of the Primary Heatthcare Program is at
capacity.

Recommendations

The Primary Healthcare Implementation Advisory Board recommends: -

1. A local private company, currently successfully transmitting volumes of
digitalized patient data between hospital and physician offices, has offered to
perform these services as a public service, after link-up. We recommend a
continuing investigation of the cost, operating requirements, and other issues
which may. be attendant to this opportunity for antomated electronic data
interchange. .

2. The Leon County Primary Healthcare Program’s system for the delivery Patient
care is at capacity. We recommend the consideration of a more comprehensive
health care program for the uninsured citizens of Leon County, while maintaining
the strengths of the current program.
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Primary Healthcare Implementation Advisory Board
Annual Report Fiscal Year 2004/2005

The Leon County Primary Healthcare Program
Background

On January 29, 2002, the BOCC adopted Resolution 02-05 requiring the Primary Healthcare
- Implementation Advisory Board to report annually on the effectiveness of the Primary
Healthcare Program for the uninsured and to report its findings and recommendations for

programmatic improvements.

CareNet is comprised of Bond Community Health Center, Inc., Neighborhood Hezlth Services,
Inc., the We Care Network of the Capital Medical Society Foundation, the Leon County Health

. Department, Tallzhassee Memorial HealthCare, Capital Regional Medica) Center, Florida State
University College of Medicine, Florida A and M University College of Pharmacy and
Pharmaceutical Sciences and Tallahassee Community College. Through Leon County and the
Leon County Health Department, CareNet received Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) Community Access Program (CAP) grants for information systems,
marketing services, and other purposes.

CareNet Model
The Primary Healthcare Services Delivery System

CareNet, is a public and private sector partnership of a voluntary coalition of healthcare
providers designed for the purpose of providing cost effective primary and specialty healthcare
services to low-income and uninsured citizens of Leon County.

CareNet Goals and Objectives

e To provide access to primary and speciaity healthcare services in the most cost cffective
and efficient manner
To leverage County, State, Federal and private funds to the highest extent possible
To establish continuity of primary care relationships and reduce non-emergent hospital
cmcrgency room visits by Leon County residents

o To maintain high regard and respect for individual dignity

| Primary Care

| -
Bond Community Health Care Center, Ine. and Neighborhood Bealth Services, Inc. provide
primary care. Both Clinics provide a wide range of primary healthcare services for children and
adults. The Clinics acoept patients by appointment or walk-in and upon referral from hospital
emergency departments, Bond Community Health Center and Neighborhood Health Services
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provide social workers and case managers for patient follow-up. Both Clinics offer extended-
hours of operation for medical scrvice delivery and are well situated to public transportation.
Relative ease of access is provided with Bond Community Health Center at two locations: 710
W. Orange Avenue and 872 West Orange Avenue and Neighborhood Health Services at 438
West Brevard Street.

Clinic facilities offer on-site laboratory services and on-site care and case management for
patients with diabetes and hypertension,

Neighborhood Hezlth Services and Bond Community Health Center conduct community health
screenings for early detection of chronic conditions of asthma, diabetes, and hypertension.
~ Ninety-six (96) patients reccived chronic disease self-management instructions during this fiscal

year.

Specizlty Physician Care

Significant to the CareNet model of healthcare service delivery is the continuum of carc and
added value of the We Carc Network of the Capital Medical Society Foundation. We Care
Network relies upon the availability of physician volunteers. Availability of specialty care is
limited by the capacity of various volunteer specialists who donate their services. Currently, the
Network reports it is at capacity in the following medica) specialties: Gynecology, Neurology,
Endocrinology, and Gastroenterology. The We Care Network provided health care services to
Seven Hundred Seventy-three (773) patients for FY 2004/2005, an increase of twenty-three
percent (23%) over FY 2003/2004.

Prescription Sexvices

The Florida A&M University College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences provides
prescription drug services at Bond Community Health Center. Pharmacy services are supported
by FAMU. Prescription Drug cost is substantially reduced by the participation of the FAMU
pharmacy in the federal prescription drug purchasing program. The pharmacy programs also
provide the opportunity to take advantage of the drug manufacturers special low-income and
uninsured programs. The FAMU pharmacies also provide educational services on appropriate
drug usage and disease management counseling.

Hospital Uncompensated Medical Care

Capital Regional Medical Center 2nd Tallzhassee Memorial Healthcare provide inpatient care for
referrals from the We Care Network, Historically, the inpatient hospital services have been

provided without charge.

According to the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA),rduring FY 2004/2005,
Tallahassee Memorial Hospital experienced a total of $19,375,703 in the provisions of health
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care services for which they were not compensated. Capital Regional Medical Center provided
$2,701,864 in uncompensated care for the same period. Uncompensated care (charity care) for
Leon County for FY 04-05 is $22,077,567. Total uncompensated care (charity care and bad debt)

in FY 2004/2005 was $84 million. Uncompensated care increases the cost of health care for the -

insured citizens and employers of Leon County.

Primary Heallthcare Program Fundiog -

The total current funding to provide primary healthcare to the uninsured residents of Leon
County is $1.2 million. Initially, the Leon County Board of County Commissioners approved a
Municipal Service Taxing Unit (MSTU) of .5 (172 cent) maximum millage. In the program’s
first year, the MSTU’s millage rate was 06 cents. This millage rate generated $458,000 and
$567,000 from the general funds revenue of Leon County, plus $175,000 in federal Medicaid
match monies totaled $1.2 Million for the program. In FY 2002/2003 the Board of County
Commissioners approved the full funding of the Primary Healthcare Program through a .12

MSTU millage rate.
In September 2004, Leon County Board of County Commissioners approved a .22 MSTU for FY

04-05. The .22 MSTU is to continue providing health care services through the Primary
Healthcare Program and for funding of women’s health services at Bond Community Health

Center for three years.

The Municipal Service Taxing Unit’s millage rate was returned to its .12 level by Board of
County Commissioner during the FY 2005/2006 budget process.

Clinic Funding FY 2004/2005
Primary Care

Primary Healthcare Program funding to the Clinics is in the form of allocations for medical
personnel. Staffing additions are based upon the staffing needs of the individual clinics. Both
clinics have 2 medical practitioner (physician), a nurse, part time pharmacist, part time pharmacy
assistants, and from one to two medical support personnel as needed. Bond Community Health
Center was allocated $10,383 per month and Neighborhood Health Services was allocated
$6,700 per month for medications. Each clinic was additionally allocated $8,833 monthly for
diagnostic services, and $250 for laboratory scrvices. Within the FY 2004/2005 contract, Bond
Community Health Center opted to utilize the $140,000 allocation for a Medical Practitioner
(physician) to fund laboratory services. Primary Healthcare Program Expenditures, by clinic, for
FY 2004/2005 were as follows: : '
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Registered Nurse/Licensed Practical Nurse $50,000
Omne Full Time and One Part Time Support $35,000
bart time Pharmacy Clerical $15,000
Medical Services
M_edications $£124,600
Diagnostic Services $106,380
[_aboratory Services $138,000
Hotsl $468,980
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edical Practitioner (physician) _5140,000
'Registered Nurse/Licensed Practical Nurse $50,000
Registered Pharmacist (Part time) $70,000
One Full Time and One Part Time Support $30,000
Pharmacy Clerical (Part time) ' $15,000

Medical Services

ll\/(ech'c:zm'ons $80,400
Diagnostic Services | $106,380
Laboratory Services £3,000

Total | $494,780

Funding amounts differ due to differences in
Staff composition.
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Specialty Care

We Care etwo

| Project Coordinator (Part time) | $23,840
Case Manager $29,484
Case Management Aide $21,060
Operating Expenses $9,232
Capital Expense 36,427
Total | 590,043

Primary Healthcare Program Administrative Expense

Personnel Services Per 1.46 FTE '$76,653

Total $76,653.00

Leon County Health Department (LCHD) and Leon County Primary Healthcare Program
(LCPHP) :

The Leon County Primary Healthcare Program is implemented to meet the unanswered
healthcare needs of qualified Leon County citizens exclusively. Both CareNet clinic facilities
participate additionally in the state and federal programs. With the Leon County primary
healthcare program established to supplement the federal and state existing programs, a need to
identify patients as Leon County Health Department (LCHD) and/or Leon County Primary
Healthcare Program (LCHCP) was created. A means of identifying patients as LCHD or
LCHCP was developed by creating a database of each participant in the state and federal
programs. CareNet facilities have the capability of identifying LCHD patients.  Mandatory
monthly reporting is required of Clinic facilities and, contains the following: a) a comprehensive

.
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tist of all clients registered for the period with a unique patient identifier and program stast date;
b) number of total patients seen for the period and total number of patient encounters; ¢) number
of LCHD and LCPHP patients seen and number of patient encounters; and d) total amount of
sliding scale fee revenues collected with the number of patients charged. The data base of
existing paticnts has been created and is providing Clinics with the capability to determine if the
patient is a LCHD and/or LCPHP. Further, the monthly reports are verified and audited for
accuracy under agreement with the Leon County Health Department. Clinic’s monthly reports
are verified by Primary Healthcare Program staff. CareNet information system development
activities have been funded by grants from the federal Health Resources znd Services

Administration (HRSA).
Pregram Accountability

To ensure success of the program and provide a necessary level of accountability the following
clements are included in each of the contracts with the CareNet partners. These provisions

include:
N No funds for staffing will be provided until such time as the staff member has been

hired and present on duty station.

2) All invoicing and reporting must be completed prior to the disbursement of funds.
3) LCHD and LCPHP patient reports, total patients served, encounters and sliding fee
revenue must be reported.

4) Termination clause if funds not appropriately expended.
5) Restriction of county funding to verified Leon County residents only.

CareNet Information System

The CareNet Information System esteblished a central server cépab]c of accepting manually
entered patient referrals from hospitals and manually entered uploads from health care centers.
All provider parmers were provided ready access 10 the system via the internet.

However, due to the design requirement that patient data be manually entered twice, utilization
of the system has proven erratic and inconsistent. The CareNet group deemed that aitemnative
communications methods currently being utilized are reasonably accepted. And further, that
scarce healthcare funds should be used for the provision of healthcare services. Therefore,
support of the system has ceased. '

Access to Healthcare Workgroup

The Access to Heafthcare Workgroup is a sub-committee of the Primary Healthcare
Impiementation Advisory Board (PHIAB) and was formed to research methods other
jurisdictions have used to develop comprehensive healthcare delivery systems for the uninsured;
to address opportunities presented by the current program, and to consider possible sources of
permanent funding. The committee is currently examining various comprehensive healthcare
systems used by counties from across the country, with size and demographic similarities to
Leon County, An objective of the sub-committee is to identify means for permanently funding

Ry S
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healthcare to the un-insured 2nd under-insured of Leon County by a method which places less
reliance upon property 12x revenues. .

Primary Healthcare Program Performante

Monthly targets of CareNet patients have been established for each clinic and contractual
changes appropriate thereto have been made. Funding allocation and distribution are linked to
ihe monthly patient targets for Fiscal Year 2004/2005 and these monthly targets were met.

Hospital Emergency Departments

For Fiscal Year 2004/2005, the emergency departments of Capital Regional Medical Center
(CRMC) and Tallahassee Memorial Hospital (TMH) continued to experience an overall high
demand for emergency services.

For FY 2004/2005 period, 15,461 patients presented at the hospitals’ emergency departments for
non-emergency care services. This figure represents an increase of 1,041 patients from the FY
2003/2004 total of 14,420. CRMC experienced an increase of 1,877 patients presenting for non-~
emergency care services during FY 2004/2005, while TMH experienced a decrease of 836

patients.

The following is data collected from local hospitals and compiled by staff regarding non-
emergent hospital emergency department visits:

Non-emergent Hospital Emergency Department Visits
October 1, 2004 through September 30, 2005

et Ty ; 2 : :
Leon 5,787 70% : 5,062 71%
Neighboring
Counties 1,578 19% 1,678 23%
South Georgia 93 1% 67 1%
Other/Unidentified 924 11% 332 5%
Total 8,322 100% 7,139 100%

Copclusion: 30% of Non-emergent Hospital Emergency Department Visits at TMH are from
outside Leon County and 29% of Non-emergent Hospital Emergency Department Visits at
CRMC are from outside Leon County.




Avtachment ¥ L2
Primary Healthcare Implementation Advisory Board Page __/ 7~ -.-,.Gf....‘{ <
Annual Report Fiscal Year 2004/2005
Page 9

TMH Non-emergent Hospital Emergency Department
Comparisen FY 2003/2004 to FY 2004/2008

Leon 6,301 5,787 514 Decrease
Neighboring . o :
Counties 1,743 1,578 165 Decrease
South Georgia 62 93 31 Increase
Other/Unidentified 1,052 0924 128 Decrease
Total 9,158 8,322 836 Decrease

CRMC Non-emergent Hospital Emergency Department
Comparison FY 2003/2004 to FY 2004/2003

Ak

]

Leon 3,744 5,062 1,318 Increase
Neighboring
Counties 1,182 ‘ 1,678 : 496 Increase
South Georgia 46 67 2] Increase
Other/Unidentified 290 T332 42 Increase
Total 5,262 7.139 1,877 Increase

Leon County Primary Healthcare Program

The Primary Healthcare Program during FY 2004/2005 provided primary and specialty care for
7,998 Leon County citizens. These patients represent an attainment of one hundred seventy-
seven (177%) of the targeted number (4,500) of patients established at the inception of the
program. The FY 2004/2005 number of patients increased from the FY 2003/2004 number of
7,188 by 810 patients, an eleven percent (11%) increase.

Patient Volume for FY 2004/2005

Primary Care Services Only

Specialty Care Services Only
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Cost of Primary Healthcare Program

Bond CHC $468,980 $115.14

Neighborhood HS $494,780 . $171.91

$90,043 o $116.48

Total patient care costs of the program for the fiscal year was $1,053,803 or $131.75 per patient.
As a point of comparison, the County’s cost for FY 2003/2004 was $146.55 and was $254.87 in

the initial year (FY 2001/2002) of operation.

Leveraged Resources

CareNel is committed 10 leveraging resources to the fullest extent possible. In that endeavor,
CareNet and the Primary Healthcare program benefit significantly from in-kind and volunteer
contributions. '

$294,465

Florida State University College of Medicine 587,426

Capital Medical Society Foundation, CRMC -
d TMH $1,906,906

Quest Diagnostics, Inc, $356,000

edical Services-Volunteer : $278,453

A dministrative Services-Volunteer $7,943

Total $2,931,193
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Community Benefit

All citizens of Leon County pay for healthcare services for low-income and uninsured citizens
through direct and indirect expenses. At times these expenses are evident in higher hospital and
insurance costs. At other times the expenses are evident in higher costs of social programs. The
table below demonstrates the more evident value of the Leon County Primary Healthcare
program. Values presented are net of cost and represent savings or avoided expense. '

Prescriptions filled _ 58,540 $2,500,828.80
Emergency Department Visits Avoided 475 $156,421,23
ospita} Admissions Avoided 176 $1,061,205.07

Value of Volunteered Services and In-kind WeCare Network, |
contributions TMH and CRMC | ~ $1,906,906.66
Value of New Money to County 50

" ITotal Community Benefit to County $5,625,361.60
Primary Hezlthcare P_ro_ggm Expense $1,053,802.84

eturn on Jnvestment

533TO1

The Leon County Primary Healthcare Program continues to be a viable program of great value to
the County.




